Pension Board

DATE: Wednesday 2 November 2016
TIME: 2.00 pm
VENUE: Committee Rooms 1 & 2,

Harrow Civic Centre

MEMBERSHIP (Quorum 3)

Chair: Mr R Harbord

Board Members:

Councillor Kiran Ramchandani Employer Representative - London Borough of

Harrow

Gerald Balabanoff (VC) - Scheme Members' Representative - Pensioners

Sudhi Pathak - Employer Representative - Scheduled and Admitted
Bodies

John Royle - Scheme Members' Representative - Active
Members

Contact: Alison Atherton, Senior Professional Democratic Services
Tel: 020 8424 1266 Email: alison.atherton@harrow.gov.uk

( %?/‘fﬂ&tCDUNCIL )

LONDON



AGENDA - PART I

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS
To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members.
Reserve Members may attend meetings:-

(1) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve;

(i) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and

(i)  the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the
Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve;

(iv)  if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after
the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after
his/her arrival.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising
from business to be transacted at this meeting, from:

(@)  all Members of the Committee;
(b)  all other Members present.

3.  MINUTES (Pages5 - 10)

That the minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2016 be taken as read and signed
as a correct record.

4, PUBLIC QUESTIONS *

To receive any public questions received in accordance with Committee Procedure
Rule 17.

Questions will be asked in the order notice of them was received and there be a
time limit of 15 minutes.

[The deadline for receipt of public questions is 3.00 pm on 28 October 2016.
Questions should be sent to publicquestions@harrow.gov.uk

No person may submit more than one question].
5. PETITIONS

To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under
the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution).

6. DEPUTATIONS

To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule
16 (Part 4B) of the Constitution.

Pension Board - 2 November 2016 2



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

INFORMATION REPORT - ACTUARIAL VALUATION 2016 (Pages 11 - 46)
Report of the Director of Finance

INFORMATION REPORT - LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW PENSION FUND:
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2016 (Pages 47 - 64)

Report of the Director of Finance

INFORMATION REPORT - STATUS OF PENSION BOARD/ INSURANCE
ARRANGEMENTS (Pages 65 - 72)

Report of the Director of Finance

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW PENSION BOARD: DRAFT ANNUAL
REPORT TO COUNCIL 2016 (Pages 73 - 80)

Report of the Director of Finance

REVIEW OF TERMS OF REFERENCE (Pages 81 - 90)

Report of the Director of Finance

INFORMATION REPORT - THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT SCHEME
g:lér%lggEMENT AND INVESTMENT OF FUNDS) REGULATIONS 2016 (Pages

Report of the Director of Finance

INFORMATION REPORT - STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT
PRINCIPLES/INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT (Pages 105 - 118)

Report of the Director of Finance

INFORMATION REPORT - PENSION FUND COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 21 JUNE
2016 AND 6 SEPTEMBER 2016 (Pages 119 - 142)

Report of the Director of Finance
INFORMATION REPORT - PERFORMANCE MONITORING (Pages 143 - 146)
Report of the Director of Finance

INFORMATION REPORT - COMPLIANCE WITH THE PENSIONS REGULATOR
CODE OF PRACTICE (Pages 147 - 156)

Report of the Director of Finance

INFORMATION REPORT - KNOWLEDGE AND UNDERSTANDING OF LOCAL
GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME (Pages 157 - 210)

Report of the Director of Finance

Pension Board - 2 November 2016 3



18. INFORMATION REPORT - WORK PROGRAMME 2016-17 (Pages 211 - 214)
Report of the Director of Finance
19. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Which the Chairman has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with.

AGENDA - PART Il
Nil

* DATA PROTECTION ACT NOTICE
The Council will audio record item 4 (Public Questions) and will place the audio recording on the
Council’s website, which will be accessible to all.

[Note: The questions and answers will not be reproduced in the minutes.]

Pension Board - 2 November 2016 4



Agenda Item 3
PageS 5to0 10 'IL

PENSION BOARD

28 JUNE 2016

Chair: * Mr R Harbord
Board T Councillor Kiran Employer Representative -
Members: Ramchandani London Borough of Harrow

* Gerald Balabanoff (VC) Scheme Members'
Representative - Pensioners
* Sudhi Pathak Employer Representative -
Scheduled and Admitted
Bodies
T John Royle Scheme Members'
Representative - Active
Members
*  Denotes Member present
T Denotes apologies received

40. Attendance by Reserve Members
RESOLVED: To note that there were no Reserve Members in attendance.
41. Appointment of Chair
RESOLVED: Having noted that the Board’s terms of reference required the
Chair to be appointed for a three year period, confirmed the appointment of

Richard Harbord as Chair of the Pension Board for the Municipal Year
2016/17.

Pension Board - 28 June 2016 5 -20 -



42,

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

-21 -

Appointment of Vice Chair

RESOLVED: Having noted that the Board’s terms of reference required the
Vice-Chair to be appointed for a three year period, confirmed the appointment
of Gerald Balabanoff as Vice-Chair of the Pension Board for the Municipal
Year 2016/17.

Declarations of Interest

RESOLVED: To note that no interests were declared by the Board Members
present.

Minutes

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 22 March 2016, be
taken as read and signed as a correct record.

Public Questions

RESOLVED: To note that no public questions had been received.
Petitions

RESOLVED: To note that no petitions had been received.
Deputations

RESOLVED: To note that no deputations had been received.

RESOLVED ITEMS

Motion to exclude the Press and Public

RESOLVED: That in accordance with Part | of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for
the following item(s) for the reasons set out below:

ltem Title Reason
16. Information Report — Actuarial ~ Information under paragraph 3
Variation 2016 (contains information relating to

the financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including
the authority holding that
information).

5) Pension Board - 28 June 2016



49,

50.

51.

Information Report - Actuarial Variation 2016

The Board received a confidential report of the Director of Finance and a
detailed presentation on the 2016 Valuation assumptions from Laura Molloy,
Actuary, Hymans Robertson.

The Actuary advised the Board that all local government pension schemes in
England and Wales would have their valuations done this year. Ms Molloy
outlined the key assumptions in making the valuation.

The Board made comments and asked detailed questions. The officer
undertook to provide a written response to some of the queries raised.

The Board thanked Ms Molloy for her presentation and attendance.
RESOLVED: That the report and presentation be noted.
Motion to re-admit the Press and Public

RESOLVED: To re-admit the press and public to the meeting for the
remainder of business.

Information Report - London Borough of Harrow Pension Fund: Draft
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March
2016

The Board received a report which presented the draft Pension Fund Annual
Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The officer reported that comments made by the Pension Fund Committee
had been incorporated into the report and he drew attention to the improved
commentary as requested by the Board. In response to a question he
confirmed that the Pension Fund value had reduced by £14m. In terms of
funding arrangements, the officer advised that at the 2013 actuarial valuation,
the Fund was assessed as 70.3% funded (73.5% at the March 2010
valuation) which corresponded to a deficit of £234m (2010 valuation:£157m)
at that time. On 31 March 2015 the net liability had been £357m compared to
£300m on 31 March 2016.

The Board expressed concern in terms of the time it took for the changeover
in Fund managers and suggested that the Authority should have a process
whereby it could react more quickly. Referring to the 34% of the Fund
invested in SSGA MPF All World Equity Index Sub-Fund, a member of the
Board stated that this was a sizable amount in one Fund. The officer advised
that this was the ‘backstop’ for the equity strategy.

The Board made comments and asked detailed questions. The officer
undertook to provide details of the figures omitted in relation to the actuarial
present value of promised retirement benefits and also details of the oversight
and management costs (Note 10). In response to a question as to the
number of scheduled or admitted bodies which owed money to the Fund at
the end of the year the officer commented that there was at least one and that

Pension Board - 28 June 2016 7 -22 -



52.

53.

54.

-23-

he would provide Board members with a full list. The Pension Regulator had
said that there should be a note about this in the accounts and annual report.

RESOLVED: That the draft Pension Fund Annual Report and Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 be noted.

Information Report - Management and Investment Expenses
Benchmarking

The Board received an update report on developments in connection with
benchmarking the management and investment expenses of the Fund and
sought their views on the benchmarking exercise carried out by CEM
Benchmarking.

The Board commented that whilst the benchmarking exercise had not been
overly useful it was good to see that Harrow was not out of line with the rest of
the world. It was suggested that it might be appropriate to see if the London
Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) could carry out a benchmarking exercise.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
Information Report - Pension Fund Committee Meeting 9 March 2016

The Board received a report which detailed matters considered by the
Pension Fund Committee on 9 March 2016 and invited comments.

Members of the Board who had attended the meeting of the Pension Fund
Committee the previous week expressed concern in relation to local
investment and the building of houses. A member stated that he would wish
to see independent advice on the governance of this issue and this view was
endorsed by the Chair of the Board.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

Information Report - London Borough of Harrow Pension Board: Draft
Annual Report to Council 2016

The Board agreed to consider an information report in relation to the London
Borough of Harrow Pension Board: Draft Annual Report to Council 2016 as
urgent for the reasons set out on the supplemental agenda.

The officer introduced the report which advised the Board of a need to
prepare a report on their work for presentation at Full Council on
22 September 2016. He asked the Board to consider what they would wish to
be included in the report. The Director of Finance added that whilst a factual
outline had been drafted for the Board, the report itself had to come from the
Board members.

The Board commented:

° the report needed to include a flavour of the work done;

8 Pension Board - 28 June 2016



55.

56.

57.

. the membership was for three years and if it changed at that point
there was concern that work would have to be started again;

° there were a number of new Members on the Pension Fund Committee
who would therefore need to develop their knowledge of the subject
matter;

° the Pension Fund Committee needed to value the Board and its work

and development of a relationship would be beneficial. Joint training or
presentations outside the formal meeting process may assist with this;

. the Chair of the Pension Fund Committee was welcome to attend the
Board.

The Chair undertook to draft the report and to circulate it to Board colleagues
for their input.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
Information Report - Work Programme 2016/17

The Board received a report which provided a suggested work programme to
the end of the 2016/17 financial year.

The officer advised that he had requested that the Authority’s Pensions
Manager provide the Board with monitoring information on the administration
of the Pension Fund. It was suggested that the work programme also include
consideration of the Board’s terms of reference.

The Chair suggested that a joint meeting with the Pension Fund Committee
be convened in September for the consideration of the actuarial variation.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted and the work programme be amended
in line with the Board’s comments.

Information Report - Annual Review of Internal Controls at Longview
Partners

The Board received a report which set out, in summary, the contents of the
latest internal controls report from Longview Partners LLP.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
Any Other Business

The members of the Board present expressed the view that they wished their
meetings to be held during the day.

RESOLVED: That the next meeting of the Board be held at 2.00 pm on
Wednesday 2 November 2016.

Pension Board - 28 June 2016 ®) -24 -



-25.

(Note: The meeting, having commenced at 2.26 pm, closed at 4.44 pm).

(Signed) RICHARD HARBORD
Chair

10 Pension Board - 28 June 2016



Agenda Item 7
Pages 11 to 46

PENSION BOARD

Date of Meeting:

Subject:

Responsible Officer:

Exempt:

Wards affected:

Enclosures:

2 November 2016

Information Report — Actuarial Valuation
2016

Dawn Calvert, Director of Finance

No

All

2016 Valuation - Initial Whole Fund
Results (Hymans Robertson)

Section 1 - Summary

This report invites the Board to receive a presentation from the Actuary,
Hymans Robertson LLP on progress on the triennial valuation to date and, in
particular, on the initial whole fund results.

For Information

(Harroutouncr)
1 arroanCOUNCIL

LONDON



Section 2 - Report

1. At its meetings on 22 March 2016 and 28 June 2016 the Board received
presentations from the Actuary, Hymans Robertson LLP on the Actuarial
Valuation 2016 and made various observations which have been reported
to the Pension Fund Committee.

2. The Pension Fund Committee has resolved that the Actuary makes a
presentation to each of its meetings and it is important that the Pension
Board be accorded the same facility. Whilst the role of the Board is to
oversee the administration of the Fund it is felt that to carry out this
function effectively it needs to be provided with information that is
consistent with that provided to the Committee.

3. Ms Gemma Sefton the partner responsible for the valuation has been
invited to make the same presentation that she made to the Committee on
6 September covering progress to date and the most significant issue at
this stage, the initial whole funds results. The slides supporting Ms
Sefton’s presentation are attached.

4. The Board is invited to receive the presentation from Ms Sefton, comment
as members see fit and note this report.

5. Both before and during its next meeting on 22 November the Committee
will be considering the next stage of the valuation process and have
invited the Board to attend both sessions.

Financial Implications

6. Whilst, clearly, the results of the triennial valuation have a major impact

on the management of the Pension Fund and the contributions from the
General Fund there are no financial implications arising directly from this
report.

Risk Management Implications

7. The Pension Fund has its own risk register which includes risks arising in
connection with the triennial valuation.

Equalities implications
8. There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.
Council Priorities

9. Whilst the financial health of the Pension Fund and the employer’s
contribution affects the resources available for the Council’s priorities
there are no impacts arising directly from this report.

12



Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

Name: Dawn Calvert E Director of Finance

Date: 20 October 2016

Ward Councillors notified: Not applicable as the
report is relevant to all
wards.

Section 4 - Contact Details

Contact: lan Talbot, Treasury and Pension Fund Manager
0208 424 1450

Background Papers - None

13




This page is intentionally left blank

14



NOSLY3d0Y H SNVWAH

Awoyiny 1onpuod [eroueuly ay)
aje|nBal pue pasuoyine si 477 UosHeqoy SuewWAH

910 Jeqwieldes 9 .
UOlOS BWIWIBL)

S}inSaJ punj) a|OyM |enjiul — uolenjeA 91.0¢

pun, uoIsudJ MOLBH

), Joy3nolog uopuo|

15



NOSL1¥390Y H SNVWAH

‘*o 2000000000 O

LTOC Y2IBIN T€

LT0T YoJen/Asenigad
9T0C 49qWBNON ¢¢
9T0C 49qWSAON ¢
910¢ 4290120 81
9T0C 4990320 Aj4e3
9T0¢ 49qwaidas Og
9T0C Joquwia1das 9T
9T0C Jaquaidas 9
9T0C Isndny 0T
910¢ AInf/aunt
9T0C {unr 1¢

4

Vv'8Y pue uodaJ uonenjea jo ugis

paa.3de
Juswalels A3ajesis Suipund pue s3nsad JaAojdwa |euld

991}WWO0)) SUOISUdd Y}IM PamalnaJ sa13a1elis uipund
pJeoq uoisuad

p|ay s914934ns 42Ao|dw3

NV 8uisn pa3sal sa1da1e4ls uoingluo)

pJeog AJOSIAPY SWaYdS 03 S} NS3J JO uoissiwgng
SJ921440 01 panss| syjnsaJ 49Aojdwi]

99111WWO0) SUOISUd YHM PasSSNISIP S} NSaJ puny 3|Oy
SJ921440 01 PANSSI S} NS4 puny 3|OYM

pasuea|d pue paAladal eleq

99131WWO0)) SUOISUdd Ym pasude suoindwnssy

110dazx ssarsoxd 9107

16



NOSL1¥390Y H SNVWAH

sdajs 1xoN

[ Noos
 aNiN0D

' 4

Sj|nsaJ uonen|ep a)ep 0] sdajs Jo deoay

(JOA0D 0] SUIOS M dIe JeYM

17



NOS1Y3dOY 3= SNVWAH

d1ep 0} sdIg




NOQ I MAGNM H NV WA U \ \

sjuawanosdwi auniny

sieaA om) 1se| ul pasuaLadxe 10} 19POW OTOZ IND

Sjusawanoduwil ‘syjuswanosdwi payead
A11|11e|OA BAOWIBL 01 ETOT  auminy 40y €107 IND ‘sishjeue puny ay0dsag A1Ina8u0T]
dn 9ye)1 pajedidijue ueyl J9MOT %G %0T dn 2ye1 05:09

%0°'T - 1dYd = 1dJ :9T0C WV
%80 - 1dd = 1dJ :€T0C W
:yoeoudde ui aSueyd %T'C %S'C (1dD) seseaJoul uoisuad

%L°0—1dY :9T0¢C IV
%S0 + 1dY -€TOC IV
:yoeoudde ui1 a3uey) %G'C %8'€ ymwmous Aed wuiay 3uo

'e'd %9°T = YOV :9T0C IV
'e'd %9°T = YOV :€T0C IV

(VOv) uondwnsse asuewJojiad (uaniyau
-}no 13sse apnuid snd sy|1o JUSWISIAUI 94N1ny
:yoeosdde ui a3ueyd oN %8'€ %9t pawnsse) ajed Junoasiq

uondwnsse Jo uoneAalag | uonenjea 910z uonenjea €10z

19318) Surpuny 10J suondwnsse A3y

19



NOSLY390Y H SNVWAH \

siauoisuad m sJauolsuad paJiaja@ m S9Ny W

910¢ £10C

pajEpl[EA
puUB PIATIIAI vIep dIYSIOqUIdN

20



NOS1Y3dOY 3= SNVWAH

SINSAI puny S[OY A




NOS143904 H SNVWAH \

sw.Ja) yseo ul Ajpybis usjjes sey 1018

%P L %0L |9/ Sulpun
(wgeze) (wiee) TeIIETq
w199 wgss 5195SY
we8s wog/ sall|iqel| |elol
W1 wQ09¢ J9UOISU=(d
WT/T WEET paJJaaQ
we/e WEGT 9AI0Y

S1[NSAI UONBN[BA PUNJ SJOYAM

22



NOSL1¥390Y H SNVWAH

00t 0§ - (0s) (hot) (nsT) (0o7) (0s7)
I (57 C) UOl3=n[EA SIk 12 (1949P) / Sniding
_ A.: sway sousadxa Jayl0
[ fw_l suondwinsse [epueUly ul 83uey)
5B suoipdwnsse JiydesSowsp ul 8duey)
LE polied 3y} 1ano sousuadxs diysiagquia|y

| :.L ENJIJE JO }SOJ UBY] $58| SUOIINGLIIUOY)

&ty e pajoadxe Uy} Je3es.8 SUINJeL JUBWIISONU|
I ?mv (312148p) / snjclins uo 1s8483U|

I € 7 ) uot3enien 352] 1€ (1P / sniding

9T0Z 01 £T0C Wouj (Md1y2a)/sn|ding jo sisAjeuy

(PA3ureyo uonisod Surpuny oty sey AYm

-

23



NOS14390Y H SNVWAH &

saul|pesy a8y} Jou ‘sjieeQ
pajoadxas jey) Joamo —
dn-aye} 0G:0G
pajoadxa uey)] syjesp Jauoisuad Jama4 —
pajoadxa uey] sionea| Ajluea Joma{ —
pajoadxa uey] sjuswadijal yjjeay (|l ;lameH —

SJUBWSAO\
(%6°€) %00 ‘%L ‘%/,C 1endy —

(%2°2) "e'd %G g pajadxy —

(sJopJo asealoul uoisuad) sasealtoul uoisuad
sioAo|dwe ssouoe Alea seoq —

pajoadxa uey] Jomo —

ymmoub Aed

oudLIadxd dIgsIoquIdIN

24



NOSL1¥390Y H SNVWAH

suJnjal Xapul Uo paseq Solsnels cowtmnsf :90.N
Ll

**saljl|iqel| pasealoul aAey splalA puoq Buljed

9I0C {EN TE STOC JEIN TE 710¢ JEN TE £10CJEN TE
%00°¢-
%00°T-
uonepu| paldw)— _ ./.ﬂ!.é.ﬂﬂ%h %00°0
("Ju1 94€ “sieah g1 13m0
5118 -
3514) 5318 pajull-xopu %00'T
(sieaA GT 13m0 3514)
S)18 152131Ul pax4
%00
éi o
%007

€T0Z 1B T€ @ouls spjath puoq N

€ 10T Q2UIS OUAIdAXY

25



NOS143904 H SNVWAH &

pajoadxe uey) Jobuolis usaq aAey suinjal Josse INg

910C 1BIN TE SLOC4EIN TE PIOC JBN TE €10 N TE
%0001~

%000

suinyal papadxy

sulinlsd
|ENIOE PO1ELLIST s %0007

i; %000¢

9107 01 £T0Z WOJ} suinlal Juawisanul pajdadxa sA [enloy

(*7U09) €17 20UIs doUdLIddX

%000¢

26



NOS143904 H SNVWAH &

9102 19bpng Buldg ul 1no s)sedalo) Ymolab Hgo -

9L02 ‘'OND . uoissaida( jeals) ayj Jdeaxs poliad
a/qesedw oo Aue je uey) JeMo|S usaq sey SISLI) |eroueul-
ay)] aauIs pliom padojarsp ay) Ul Yumoub 21uouod 7,

]INsal JIxaug ay) ajep-a4d sulaouod Aue|y

1 ng

Alne|joAa bulels pasealou| —
pue Ajuielaoun pausyybioH —
0) SOA

S193IeW [eIOURUL] JOJ JOO[INQ)

27



NOS143904 H SNVWAH &

H30 pue SNO 22JN0S

020 6102 8102 102 9102 §102 oz
50

0l

Gl

| 0z

| | | 5T

0€

j1ebpng M uBwWsaielS uwNiny Ymolb lenjoy %

sjse2a.o) yimoib 4ao

/ y  [IMOIS J0J SUONEIadXd om0

--.---.

28



NOS143904 H SNVWAH &

910¢ uebio dr
sJeah o¢ 1sed ayj JoA0 paAalyoe asouy)
JO JOyYs [|e) sulnal jesse Auew pue ablisAlp 0] 8nuUnRuUOD
A|leqolb suonipuod a1wouods pue Aoljod se JuswuolIAUB
JuswisaAul buibus|ieyo e ajedionue suondwnsse 910z JnO,,

910C ‘PIofo aljjleg
_S19yJew Alinba |eqo|b pue spuoq piaiA ybiy ‘1pa.o
apelb Jusw]SaAUl ‘Spuoqg JuswuIaA0b 1ayJew padojaaap
10J us||e) aA_Y 972027 — 91 0Z 10} S1Sedal0) uinjal pajoalold,

\QVBE JOSSE 10J UBdW SIY} S0P 18U M
y 4

29



NOS14390Y H SNVWAH &

sulnj}aJ swes ay) a)jesausab 0) papasu YSid 810N

TV AHMOR LAHILS "TIVAL HALL SOFEMTEY URIRD SINeG
AFEA [0 SUUNGAS DU A Junoee A1

%Z LT %68 %00 ar
%G L %S"L WG, ke
AMNE3 wuy
oy %ET il
L ows
Aynb3 o
02 spuog
— %001
s
L__.N BEE
|
%S
spuog Gl
5102 s00¢ 5661

%574 UIEa 0] papasdu S101SaAUl JEUM JO S)ELLIIST

BX9) SIOISIAUI O] SUBIUW SIYI 1Y

30



NOS1Y3dOY 3= SNVWAH

sda1s 1XaN




NOS143904 H: SNVWAH & A
é193.Je1 ayl 1y 01 ey

JoAojdwa yoea ued }siJ ydnw MmoH

é193.Je1 ay3 01 193 01 JoAo|dwa
yoes aAIS 01 Juem am op Suo| MOH

sioAo|dwa pueisiapun

/ gover uonnqLyuod 10£ojdwa Sumjeg

/
y 4

32



Buipun) bunsaw Jo sabueys poob e paspN

indino sjdwes ‘SSy4wWod ‘d17u Y SUBWAH :
NOSL14390Y H: SNVWAH Juapnid aq 0} aAoal 5

8]ep UoIEeN|eA WOJ) SIBaA

8l Gl ¢l 6 9 € 0
%0

%S¢

%09

2ouBYO 9 Ul |

%S.

uelpan %001

(%) 18Ae7 Buipund

%Scl

%0G1

aouByo g Ul | %G1

%00¢

[rou1 O MOLIBH SJeI UOHNQLIUOD 3u1119S

33



NOSLY3IF0Y H SNVWAH
¢ A8ajens
7 A8a1ens
T A8a1ea1s
SEO0C NI S13AT1 $S320NS
SNIANN4 40 %S 1SHOM 40 AOOHINMIIN AD3IL1VY1S NOILNAIYLNOD

3H1 40 I9VHIAVY INY3L ONO1

plioM Mmadu, 8yl

y 4

Ve

||e 10} }9s salbajel}s
ajed uollnqlIIuod paseq sy

plOMm pjo, 9yl

SEEYY

LEOT SEOT €€0C TEOTC 6¢0C LCOC ScOC €¢0C T¢0C 6T0C LTOC STOT €10¢C
%09

%09
U0IsSs94304d SUIPUN

%0L

%08

[oA9] Suipunyg

%06

%00T

%0TT

sIoAo1dwd

IO)0 :S9JeI UONNQLIIUOD SUINOS

34



NOSLY3d0Y H SNVWAH

Paso|0
1o uadp

yibus|

10BNUOD
JaAojdwa

jo adA|

yibuauls
|eloueul ELE]
Buipun4

\H“wt% a1k SIdA0TdwId [[e SUISTUS0IY
y 4

35



NOSL1¥390Y H SNVWAH

3
-

Juswlels ABajesis Buipund 1,0z UdJe\ pun4 uoisuad molieH Jo ybnoiog Uuopuo :80inas§

¢c
-siseq BuroBuo 1g=p uonESSaD S (adwexa 10y
uo pRENoED sabueyn uswwanon Jo lisuyoeww)
{fue §) 133p Bulunooo uonESS3D J0 JUSND
UDIIESS3D) J9EQUCD auEl 3l U] "S497 2w u spediogped ajgefed
3L O pus 34 I =108 225 — UONESS3D JO SSOUEISLUNDIEY UL o pabygo febs) aue saipog 3P UMIESS3D

1e andxs o} pawnsse
51 uonedispey

oy jeudosdde siIseq B UD pSIEIND|ED 39 [IM J02p UORESSSD)
Juswssibe vorissIwpE Jo swuE) o 1aelgns pasess aq UED

painpayos se ‘sqissod Leseusb
0 0] JoU DWNSSE 51 UCHESSSD)

ruonediogred
JO UDIESS3)

T 2] == e 10N _ U safojdws may
10EQUoD
Jo sieak © 158 Ul SUCOEN|EA USanga] siesasau JenbBad e ‘papisoud Aunses [NETY]
pamawnal Apenouey | o [2as) S pue ‘SJUNCWE PUE S3)EJ UORNGLILCD maaad ol WBu sy sswesa Auogny Buusisiunupy — S3JEI JO MIIAIY
wawsbueus wawabueus safiueysa
uonEsI|Iqe1s UCRESIIGEIS ucQngquiuos
3o ET LT Y] 3o £g pauanon &g pasanony o Buiseyyg
WL}
zequos Bumewsy
a} Jaao snpdins Aoy Buusisiuwpy wawsbueus wawabueus

auy Bupeauds fg auy Ag pepiuuad =g A2Ww SUOQONPEY JSABMOH “SEd UORES]|IgELS UOESHIGE]S snjdins
SUOQNQUILCD Sonpay S01AUSS aumny e yday suocnguiuos yseodde pausgsiy £ pauanon Aq pausnosy JLEUENLTET]
7]
ajoM — spuawled
noWe Aesuciy unowe AErsuopy WUNoWE Aelsuoiy wnowe Asjzuopy | wunowe Amsuop fuaacoal payag
(=) =pon

sl

¥OBUD JUELBADD | AJUMDSS ¥28UD JUEUSACD | KJUNoSs

— pouad faaooad

oenuos Buipusrsing o3 poaigns — suead G| o jaalgns — sieaf g sieak Qg smeak g HOLSP WM UIEE
Tay
oW oM oW a7 10N =35 - 53, UM BFS - 53 LEJES pASIIQES
120 — 3 apusddy
S35 SEINIDULO
=By pauleny (T30 - g apusddy
‘uado § yoemdde (0 - Q xipu=ddy 3a5) uado y yormdde (70— O xipu=ddy

¥paug pun paalolg

aas) yoeoudde aby paureny Ppaun pun pajoaliony

aas) yoeoudde ppasd pun parealioug

3|l IDIALSS AN

(3 =pu=ody

Fas5) pung au (3 =ipu=ddy aas)
Ul LLE] JORNUCD paXY E] @j0N 335 - _siseq sy, Te] =0 225 - siseq sy, ucnedioped
sawnsse ‘Guobun o anow £ew ng “BuBug oy anow Aew ng ‘BuoBug pun4 wust-Buo) sswnsse ‘Bulobug pasn siseq
=) SJUELUS M3U O] PSSO SJUELUa Mau o] uadg SAUSpEIY _ |ood NuUncy adf3-qng
SAIpOE WOISSIUPY s1afopdw3g
EETETETLITY Buneubisag pue saipog wolSsSIWPY AJUNUWILLGT salpog panpayasg Jakojdw3 yo adA)

\%

siafojdwa Jualagip 1oy pasn sayseocsdde Juasagip syl £F

JTAQI JUAUIR)R]S AZdleng SuIpun,j

36



NOSL1¥390Y H SNVWAH £z

suolngluuon AlaA0oay 11o1je( se 0}

paJtiajal Alsnoinaid sem siy] ‘(snjdins) po1ep s . oAojdwa
ue Jiedal 0] palinbal suolNgLIIUOd 8y] O] SI8Jal SIY|
ajey uonnqiiuon Aiepuodsag .

‘9]ey 99IAI8S

alnin4 ay) se 0] patiajal Ajlsnoinaid sem siy| “silaguaw
Ag pauJea bBuiaq sjiyauag mau JO 1S00 8] 0] SJ8Jal SIY |
ajey uonnguiuon Aiewiad -

SUONIULIAP kI UONNJLIUO))

37



NOSL1¥390Y H SNVWAH

1UBWUJIBAOD) [BD20T] pUE ..
saniunwwio) ¢

sawayos uoisuad a2i1Al8s 21|gnd
JO uoljeJiSIuIWpPE puB 82UBUIBAOL)

Io1e[nBay
SUoisud YL

AdNSVv3idl WH -

4

pJeog uoisuad |e

pleog AlosIApY swayog

dVvsS

SUDISUS JUSLUUISACS |EXD

suolnenbay (buidesy pi1ooay)
suoisuad mo_>_mw ollgnd

38



NOSL1¥390Y H SNVWAH

8T0C
-piw ut ‘Ajgeqoud

sUESENTY

SJ0O1edIpu|
9JUew.Jo}iad
LENRUEIETITg

LT0¢C ¢O

Aioiniels

' 4

910¢
€0 ul ‘Ajqissod ¢Sy nsaJ ysljqnd
1NH siseq |elaenloy

SJ0o1edlpu|
9JUeWJ0}9d
A9y Jo 19¥seg époaisanbal 1eymn

910z dos 0 Aq ojul uonenjea
1sonbay

2JUaN|juj ¢ S19MOd

(avo) o104 ! 101e|nSay

SI01B[N3AI,, OM] AU,

39



NOSLY3E0Y 3 SNYWAH &
sosodind Buipunj Joj a|gelns 1.usl siseq | ANH
pajou aAey (Y9 — luapnud Ajojelaqijep si siseq Buipun4

%T6 %V L |99 Sulpun
(ws9) (wgze) TeIIETq
w199 w199 5195SY
woz/ wess sal|iqel| |elol
Ww//€ Wit Jauoisuad
wgzT WT/T patisjeq
wTze weG/e 9AIOY

40

(siseq LIANIH) (siseq Suipuny)

9T0C Y21eIN TE | 9TOC Y21eNl T€

SISBq VS
— §)NSAI UONBN[BA Puny AJOYAM




NOSL1¥390Y H SNVWAH

ssaJi804d

“‘IO 2000000000 ®

LTOC Y2IBIN T€

LT0T YoJen/Asenigad
9T0C 49qWBNON ¢¢
9T0C 49qWSAON ¢
910¢ 4290120 81
9T0C 4990320 Aj4e3
9T0¢ 49qwaidas Og
9T0C Joquwia1das 9T
9T0C Jaquaidas 9
9T0C Isndny 0T
910¢ AInf/aunt
9T0C {unr 1¢

yx4

Vv'8Y pue uodaJ uonenjea jo ugis

paa.3de
Juswalels A3ajesis Suipund pue s3nsad JaAojdwa |euld

991}WWO0)) SUOISUdd Y}IM PamalnaJ sa13a1elis uipund
pJeoq uoisuad

p|ay s914934ns 42Ao|dw3

NV 8uisn pa3sal sa1da1e4ls uoingluo)

pJeog AJOSIAPY SWaYdS 03 S} NS3J JO uoissiwgng
SJ921440 01 panss| syjnsaJ 49Aojdwi]

99111WWO0) SUOISUd YHM PasSSNISIP S} NSaJ puny 3|Oy
SJ921440 01 PANSSI S} NS4 puny 3|OYM

pasuea|d pue paAladal eleq

99131WWO0)) SUOISUdd Ym pasude suoindwnssy

110dazx ssarsoxd 9107

41



NOS1Y3dOY 3= SNVWAH

NoA Juey [,




NOSL1¥390Y H SNVWAH

'9JaY pauleju0D 92IApE puB UOoIlewoul 8y} Buipnjoul ‘YoM |eLienioe Jo Swia)l Ulelad 1o} SpJepue)s
18S pue |1ouno) Buiuoday |eloueuld ayl Aq panssi ale (SSY1) SpJepuels |elenoy |eoluyos]

‘QyL suoisusd -
pue :BuljspoN — N SVYL -
‘eled-qsvL -

‘Buiodey — Y SYL -
‘leligjew aiaym yym palidwod usaq aney
pue uonejuasald siy} 0} uonejal ul s|gedlidde ale ,spiepuels [elenjoy [BoIUyos] Buimo|oyay]
"uonejussaid
sIy} Jo asodind Jayjo Aue 1oy Aljigel| ou sydadoe 477 uosuaqoy suewAH “siaAojdwe 0y uonensn)|l
Jo} Ajaind paledaid sem pue S497 a8y} Ul SONSSI JUSLIND Y} SBSSNISIp uonejuasald SIy|

"ssaud)a|dwod 10 Aoeunooe ay}

0} se Aued pJiyl Aue 0} saijueliem JoO uolejuasaldal ou seyew 477 uosuaqoy suewAH ‘Aued Jayjo

Aue 0} a21Ape Jo sasodind ay} o) jou pue Ajioyiny Buls)siuiwpy Se asn 9]0S S}l 10} pun4 uoIsuad
MmolieH Jo ybnosog uopuoT ay} JO 8310 SUOISUS By} 0} passalppe sl uonejuasald siy]

SUOIBIIWIT PUB SQOUBI[Y

43



NOS1Y3dOY 3= SNVWAH

xipuaddy




NOS143904 H SNVWAH &

7z

sjuawaaocidun  spuawaacidun
payead-uoy payead
suondwnsse olydelbowa(

proTbupung | %0r | %l | %Wl |
(noysq) (089 | 5o | (ezd | *°% P
preTBupung | %zr | %L | %ol Nl S
(noyeq) (r52) | (620 | (o) | *BE I8
preTBupuny | %pl | %L | %6l 2
(uauaq) 6z2) | woo | (e) | POV P
%rZ | % | %0C

SaSBaIIU| Jj3uag

suondwnsse |eloueul{

a1mnJ 9] Noqe
ondwnsse 0] 9ANISUIS 1B SITNSAY

45



This page is intentionally left blank

46



Agenda Item 8
Pages 47 to 64

Pension Board

Date of Meeting: 2 November 2016

Subject: Information Report - London Borough of
Harrow Pension Fund: Annual Report and
Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2016

Responsible Officer: Dawn Calvert, Director of Finance

Exempt: No
Wards Affected: All
Enclosures: Annual Audit Letter 2015/16 (KPMG)

Management Expenses

Section 1 - Summary

Summary

This report presents the Pension Fund Annual Report and Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 together with the Annual Audit
Letter 2015/16 of the auditors KPMG and answers to queries raised by the
Board at their previous meeting.

For information

Section 2 - Report

1. At their meeting on 28 June 2016 the Board received the Pension Fund
draft Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March
2016.

LONDON

(Harroutouncr)
47 arroanCOUNCIL



. They were advised that the audit of the Accounts by KPMG LLP would
commence in July. The results of the audit were considered as part of the
Council’s overall Accounts by Governance, Audit, Risk Management and
Standards Committee on 8 September 2016. They will be recommended
for agreement by the Pension Fund Committee on 22 November.

. The Board were additionally advised that the audited accounts together
with the Auditor's report would be presented to the Board at its next
meeting.

. The accounts can be accessed at:

http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/200110/council budgets and spending/698/
statement of accounts/2

. The audit of the Pension Fund Accounts was conducted at the same time
as that of the rest of the Council’'s Accounts. In their “External Audit Report
2015/16 — London Borough of Harrow and Harrow Pension Fund” and
subsequent letter (copy attached) KPMG make relatively few references to
the Pension Fund with the key points as follows:

¢ \We also anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion in relation to the
Fund’s financial statements, as contained both in the Council's
Statement of Accounts and the Pension Fund Annual Report by 30
September

The audit of the Fund was completed alongside the main audit. There
are no specific matters to bring to your attention relating to this.

Our audit of the Fund’s financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2016 has not identified any misstatements that have been
corrected in the final version of the accounts which we believe should
be communicated to you.

We are pleased to report that there are no uncorrected audit
differences

Our audit work included a detailed consideration of the Actuary’s
valuation and we performed substantive testing over the completeness
and accuracy of data provided to the Actuary as the basis for their
valuation. We are satisfied with the reasonableness of the actuarial
valuation and its reflection in the year end accounts.

6. The Auditors made only one recommendation in relation to the Fund as
follows:

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment
of Funds) Regulations 2009 required that all pension schemes have their
own back (sic) account effective 1 April 2011. Specifically the regulations
state the following: “On and after 1st April 2011, an administering
authority must hold in a separate account kept by it with a deposit-taker
in accordance with this regulation — (a) all monies held by the authority
on that date; and (b) all monies received by it on or after that date for the
purpose of its pension fund.”

48



Although a separate bank account has been set up for the Fund, it is not
being used for all pension fund transactions. We understand a number of
historic income and expenditure transactions are still processed through
the Council’s bank account. As a result, the Fund is not fully compliant
with the requirements of the legislation.

It should be noted that, since 1 April 2015, the Pensions Regulator now
has an oversight role in relation to scheme administration and
governance. As such, the Fund may be subject to increased levels of
external scrutiny in future. We recommend the Fund amends all historic
processes to ensure all pension fund specific transactions are processed
through the Fund bank account. We recommend the bank account is put
into full use in order that the Pension Fund is fully compliant with all
regulations.

Officers were not able to accept this recommendation and commented
as follows:

In accordance with the legislation the separate bank account was
opened from 1 April 2011 and, since then, an increasing number of
fransactions have been processed directly through the account. These
include the pensioners’ payroll, transfers in and out of the Fund, lump
sum and death benefits payments, the receipt of contributions from
admitted and scheduled bodies and income from the property
investment manager. The account is reconciled monthly.

Each month, Pension Fund related expenditure (particularly employee /
employer contributions) and income transactions processed through the
Council’s bank account are identified. A monthly cash transfer is made
from the Council into the Pension Fund account and, at year end, the
appropriate debtor is shown in both the Pension Fund and the Council’s
accounts.

From the time the account was established every effort has been made
to maximise its use consistent with the Council’s existing systems and
the costs and risks associated with changes. This will continue to be the
case.

However, the Council uses a commercial soffware package (SAP) and
Substantial support would be needed from them to make any system
changes necessary. For all transactions to go directly through the
Pension Fund account, changes would be necessary for the following
processes: accounts payable / purchase orders; accounts receivable;
VAT, payroll tax deductions; manual cheque payments; receipt of
foreign currency payments.

The Council is of the view that to make the changes necessary for the
Pension Fund bank account to directly process all transactions would
entail certain costs and uncertain risks which cannot be justified at this
time.

. At their meeting on 28 June 2016 the Board raised specific queries
detailed with comments below.

49



7.1 Query - The Board expressed concern in terms of the time it took for the
changeover in Fund managers and suggested that the Authority should
have a process whereby it could react more quickly.

71

Comment - At the meeting of the Pension Fund Committee on 6

September 2016 the Chair asked officers to expand on the concern
raised by the Board and others attending the meeting raised similar
concerns. A report on the issues will be presented to the next meeting
of the Committee on 22 November but the Committee will be reminded
that, when necessary, a “special’ meeting can already be called at short
notice. This facility has been used twice in the last in the last two years.

7.2 Query - Referring to the 34% of the Fund invested in SSGA MPF All
World Equity Index Sub-Fund, a member of the Board stated that this
was a sizeable amount in one Fund. The officer advised that this was the
‘backstop’ for the equity strategy.

7.2 Comment - Having considered its Funding Strategy Statement, return
aspirations and risk appetite the Committee has agreed that 62% of the
Fund should be invested in Global Equities with an acceptable range of
58-68%. To control the risk within this allocation, half the investments
are made with “active” fund managers with the remainder (34% in the
Annual accounts) in the “passive” SSGA MPF All World Equity Index
Sub-Fund where returns will be exactly in line with the movement of
Global equities. The Committee is satisfied that this investment remains
in line with its current Strategy.

7.3 Query - The officer undertook to provide details of the figures omitted in
relation to the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits and
also details of the oversight and management costs (Note 10).

7.3 Comment -

Uncertainties

Effect if actual results differ from

Actuarial present
value of promised
retirement benefits

Estimation of the net liability to pay
pensions depends on a number of
complex judgements relating to the
discount rate used, the rate at which
salaries are projected to increase,
changes in retirement ages, mortality
rates and expected returns on pension
fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries
is engaged to provide the fund with expert
advice about the assumptions to be
applied.

assumptions
The effects on the net pension liability of

changes in individual assumptions can be

measured. For instance:

» a 0.5% decrease in the discount rate
assumption would result in an increase in
the pension liability of £88m

*a 0.5% increase in assumed earnings
inflation would increase the value of
liabilities by approximately £21m

* a one-year increase in assumed life
expectancy would increase the liability by
approximately £28m

7.3 Comment - Attached is an analysis of administrative costs, investment
and management expenses and oversight and governance costs as
summarised in Note 10 to the Accounts.

50



7.4 Query - In response to a question as to the number of scheduled or
admitted bodies which owed money to the Fund at the end of the year
the officer commented that there was at least one and that he would
provide Board members with a full list. The Pension Regulator had said
that there should be a note about this in the accounts and annual report.

7.4 Query — Please provide a breakdown of the entries in Note 17 in respect
of two of the debtors categories

7.4Comment —

£000 £000
Other local authorities
LB Harrow 1,752
Scheduled/Admitted bodies
Alexandra School 12
Park High School 31
Salvatorian College 16
St Bernadette’s School 6
St Dominic’s College 24
Stanmore College 42

North London Collegiate School 44
Carillion Services
Chartwells
Sopria Steria
Others

N
loh © h O

208
All the sums outstanding from the scheduled/admitted bodies were
routine contributions which were received by the statutory deadline of
19 April.

Financial Implications

8. Whilst this report discusses all aspects of the financial standing of the
Pension Fund there are no financial implications arising directly from it.

Legal Comments
9. Regulation 57 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013
requires that an administering authority must produce an annual report

containing certain specified matters. The report must be published before
1 December of the scheme year end.

Risk Management Implications

10. All risks are included within the Pension Fund Risk Register.

51



Equalities implications
11. There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.
Council Priorities

12.The financial health of the Pension Fund directly affects the resources
available for the Council’s priorities.

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

Name: Dawn Calvert L Chief Financial Officer

Date: 20 October 2016

Ward Councillors notified: Not applicable as the
report is relevant to all
wards.

Section 4 - Contact Details

Contact: lan Talbot, Treasury and Pension Fund Manager
0208 424 1450

Background Papers - None

52




€g

KPMG

Annual Aud
elle
/

London Borough of Harrow

DRAFT - October 2016




LONtents

The contacts at KPMG Page
in connection with this

report are:
Report sections
Andrew Sayers

Partner
KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 07802975171 Appendices
andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk

— Headlines 3

1. Key issues and recommendations

Emma Larcombe 2. Summary of reports issues
Senior Manager

KPMG LLP (UK) 3. Audit fees

Tel: 07920 257 310
emma.larcombe@kpmg.co.uk

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual
capacities, or to third parties. Public Sector Audit Appointments issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies summarising where
the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is expected from audited bodies. We draw your attention to this document which is available on Public Sector Audit
Appointment’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should
contact Andy Sayers, the engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact the national lead
partner for all of KPMG’s work under our contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Andrew Sayers (andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk). After this, if you are still
dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk, by telephoning 020 7072
7445 or by writing to Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ.

m © 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International’), a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



Section one

Headines

This Annual Audit

summarises the outcome
from our audit work at
London Borough of Harrow in
relation to the 2015/16 audit

year.

Although it is addressed to
Members of the Authority, it

is also intended to
communicate thes

messages to key external
stakeholders, including
members of the public, and
will be placed on the
Authority’s website.

KPMG

VFM
conclusion

Letter

VFM risk areas

e key

Audit opinion

Financial
statements
audit

We issued an unqualified conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements to secure value for money (VFM conclusion) for 2015/16 on 28
September 2016. This means we are satisfied that during the year the Authority had appropriate arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its resources. To arrive at our conclusion we looked at the Authority’s
arrangement to make informed decision making, sustainable resource deployment and working with partners and third parties.

We undertook a risk assessment as part of our VFM audit work to identify the key areas impacting on our VFM conclusion and
considered the arrangements you have put in place to mitigate these risks.

Our work identified the following significant matters:

— The Authority has significant savings targets to achieve in the coming years. The 2015/16 MTFP taken to the February 2015
Council meeting highlighted a finding gap of c.£23m for 2016/17 and c.£15m and c.£14m in 2017/18 and 2018/19 respectively.

— In addition, the Authority has low general fund reserves of £10m.

— We considered the budget setting and monitoring process, including how saving targets are monitored and reported. We
reviewed a sample of specific savings targets and confirmed that there was adequate challenge and monitoring of the savings
throughout the year.

— We also considered the level of reserves, whilst we note that the Authority’s reserves are low in comparison to other London
Borough'’s, the low level of reserves is within the Council’s financial plan and is a conscious decision. At the end of 2014-15 the
General Fund Reserve balance was £10m. This remained consistent throughout 2015-16. As the reserves balance has not
moved in year this demonstrates that the council was able to achieve its year end position without the use of its reserves.

— We found the controls in place over financial planning and budget monitoring to be robust, however we did raise two medium
priority recommendations in relation to improving the monitoring and reporting process of savings going forward.

We issued an unqualified opinion on the Authority’s financial statements om 28 September 2016. This means that we believe the
financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority and of its expenditure and income for the year.
The financial statements also include those of the pension fund.

Our audit, identified a total of four audit adjustments, that required reporting, these had a total value of £12.7 million. The largest of
these adjustments was for £11.7m and related to the classification of PPE assets between operational and surplus assets.

The remaining audit adjustments were not adjusted by management as they do not have a material impact on the financial
statements. These uncorrected adjustments relate to PPE and include the omission of two assets from the revaluation cycle and the
miscalculation of depreciation on PF| assets.

We raised a total of 14 recommendations as part of our audit, all apart form one have been accepted by Management and have
action plans in place to ensure they are implemented ahead of the year end.

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International”), a

Swiss entity. All rights reserved

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential




Section one

Headlines (cont

KPMG

Other information
accompanying the
financial statements

Pension fund audit

Whole of Government
Accounts

High priority
recommendations

Certificate

Audit fee

Whilst not explicitly covered by our audit opinion, we review other information that accompanies the financial statements to
consider its material consistency with the audited accounts. This year we reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and
Narrative Report. We concluded that they were consistent with our understanding and did not identify any issues.

There were no significant issues arising from our audit of the pension fund and we issued an unqualified opinion on the
pension fund financial statements as part of our audit report. We raised one high priority recommendation in relation to fully
utilising the Pension Fund bank account for all pension transactions.

We reviewed the consolidation pack which the Authority prepared to support the production of Whole of Government
Accounts by HM Treasury. We reported that the Authority’s pack was consistent with the audited financial statements.

We raised three high priority recommendations as a result of our 2015/16 audit work. These are detailed in Appendix 1
together with the action plan agreed by management. Our three high priority recommendations related to:

— The quality and review of PPE;
— The processing of journals; and
— Fully utilising the Pension Fund bank account.

We will formally follow up these recommendations as part of our 2016/17 work.

There is one outstanding objection relating to the 2014-15 accounts that we inherited from the previous Auditors. This
objection remains outstanding as at the date of this report. As a result the 2014-15 certificate has not yet been issued and
we are unable to issue our 2015-16 certificate until this objection is closed.

Our fee for the 2015/16 audit of the Authority was £150,725 excluding VAT and £21,000 excluding VAT for the Pension
Fund. This fee was in line with that highlighted within our audit plan agreed by the Governance, Audit, Risk Management and
Standards Committee in January 2016. Our fee for the certification of grant claims for Housing Benefits is £27,735 excluding
VAT.

Fees for other grants and claims (Teachers Pension and Pooling Capital Receipts) are £6,500 excluding VAT.

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a

Swiss entity. All rights reserved

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential




Appendices

ApPendix 1: Key ISSLES and recommendations

Issue and recommendation

Management response / responsible officer / due date

LS

Quality and review of PPE

Our final accounts audit identified a number of proposed adjustments to the PPE balance which
we would expect management to have identified as part of their review of the financial statements.
The adjustments included:

= The omission of two assets from the revaluation process despite being recorded as requiring a
full inspection in year

= Annual depreciation charge for PF| assets calculated post year end revaluation
= £11.72m of assets incorrectly classified as operational land and buildings

We recommend going forwards the Council performs a thorough review of the PPE balance to
identify similar avoidable adjustments prior to submitting the accounts for audit. Checks of
accuracy of data input and reconciliations to ensure the completeness of the information provided
should be performed. The Council should ensure a robust quality review process is in place ahead
of the 2016/17 year end audit to identify avoidable misstatements in the accounts.

Accepted

Officers acknowledge the recommendations raised and the need to improve certain
procedures and processes. To prevent such occurrences happening again additional
controls (reconciliations / review of accounting guidance) will be implemented.

Responsible Officers: Head of Corporate Estate / Technical Accounting Manager
Due Date: February 2017

Processing of Journals

Our documentation of the Council’s journals processes identified a central finance team who post
all journals required for both the Council and the Pension Fund. Journals are requested and
authorised by appropriate individuals throughout the Council, however only the central finance
team are able to post these journals onto the ledger.

While this demonstrates strong segregation of duties in the control, from our discussions with the
Council we understand there is no process to review the completeness and accuracy of the
journals posted by this team. Without an independent review there is a risk that fraudulent
,erroneous or inaccurate journals are posted. The risk of inappropriate journals being authorised is
mitigated from the Council’'s monthly budget monitoring processes however this is only likely to
identify large journals.

We recommend the Council introduce a control to perform a sample review of journals posted on a
monthly basis to ensure the journal posted was requested by an appropriate individual in the
Council and has been posted accurately, in line with the initial request.

Accepted

Officers have already identified the need and recently put in place a monthly sample
testing and review of journals. The review currently under taken by the interim
Technical Accounting Manager checks the accuracy, validity and correct
authorisation of the journal. The testing will also assess the completeness of
supporting documentation.

Processing of journals will be discussed at the next Finance Team meeting and
training provided where required

Responsible Officer: Interim Technical Accounting Manager
Due Date: Implemented (August 2016)

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential




Appendices

ApPendix 1: Key ISSLES and recommendations

Issue and recommendation

Management response / responsible officer / due date

89

Use of Pension Fund bank account

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations
2009 required that all pension schemes have their own back account effective 1 April 2011.
Specifically the regulations state the following: “On and after 1st April 2011, an administering
authority must hold in a separate account kept by it with a deposit-taker in accordance with this
regulation —(a) all monies held by the authority on that date; and (b) all monies received by it on or
after that date for the purpose of its pension fund.”

Although a separate bank account has been set up for the Fund, it is not being used for all pension
fund transactions. We understand a number of historic income and expenditure transactions are
still processed through the Council’s bank account. As a result, the Fund is not fully compliant with
the requirements of the legislation.

It should be noted that, since 1 April 2015, the Pensions Regulator now has an oversight role in
relation to scheme administration and governance. As such, the Fund may be subject to increased
levels of external scrutiny in future. We recommend the Fund amends all historic processes to
ensure all pension fund specific transactions are processed through the Fund bank account. We
recommend the bank account is put into full use in order that the Pension Fund is fully compliant
with all regulations.

Not Accepted

In accordance with the legislation the separate bank account was opened from 1
April 2011 and, since then, an increasing number of transactions have been
processed directly through the account. These include the pensioners’ payroll,
transfers in and out of the Fund, lump sum and death benefits payments, the receipt
of contributions from admitted and scheduled bodies and income from the property
investment manager. The account is reconciled monthly.

Each month, Pension Fund related expenditure (particularly employee / employer
contributions) and income transactions processed through the Council’s bank
account are identified. A monthly cash transfer is made from the Council into the
Pension Fund account and, at year end, the appropriate debtor is shown in both the
Pension Fund and the Council’s accounts.

From the time the account was established every effort has been made to maximise
its use consistent with the Council’s existing systems and the costs and risks
associated with changes. This will continue to be the case.

However, the Council uses a commercial software package (SAP) and substantial
support would be needed from them to make any system changes necessary. For all
transactions to go directly through the Pension Fund account, changes would be
necessary for the following processes: accounts payable / purchase orders;
accounts receivable; VAT; payroll tax deductions; manual cheque payments; receipt
of foreign currency payments.

The Council is of the view that to make the changes necessary for the Pension Fund
bank account to directly process all transactions would entail certain costs and
uncertain risks which cannot be justified at this time.

Responsible Officer: Interim Treasury and Pension Fund Manager

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential




Appendices

Appendix 2: summary of reports ISsued

This appendix summarises
the reports we issued in 2016.

These reports can be
accessed via the Governance,
Audit, Risk Management and
Standards Committee pages
on the Authority’s website at
www.harrow.gov.uk.

External Audit Plan (January 2016)

The External Audit Plan set out our approach to the 2016
audit of the Authority’s financial statements and to

work to support the VFM conclusion. January

February
Audit Fee Letter (April 2016)
March

The Audit Fee Letter set out the proposed audit
work and draft fee for the 2016/17 financial year.

April
May
June
July
August

Auditor’s Report (September 2016) September

The Auditor’s Report included our audit opinion on
the financial statements including the pension fund October
accounts along with our VFM conclusion.

November

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Report to Those Charged with Governance
(September 2016)

The Report to Those Charged with Governance
summarised the results of our audit work for
2015/16 including key issues and recommendations
raised as a result of our observations.

We also provided the mandatory declarations
required under auditing standards as part of this
report.

Annual Audit Letter (October 2016)

This Annual Audit Letter provides a summary of the
results of our audit for 2015/16.




Appendices

Appendix 3 Audit Tees

This appendix provides
information on our final fees

To ensure transparency about the extent of our fee relationship with
the Authority we have summarised below the outturn against the
2015/16 planned audit fee.

External audit fees 2015/16 (£'000)

for the 2015/16 audit.
External audit 160 7 151 151
Our final fee for the 2015/16 audit of the Authority was £150,752, 140
which is in line with the planned fee. = Planned
" . . . . 120 = Actual

— An additional fee in relation to consideration of a formal

objection to the 2014-15 accounts will be charged following the 100

completion of our work. This fee will be agreed with the Authority 80

and the Public Sector Audit Appointments once our work is

completed. 60
Our final fee for the 2015/16 audit of the Pension Fund was in line 40
with the planned fee of £21,000.

20
Certification of grants and returns 0 ° 0 0
. . . O T T 1
Unde_r our terms of engagement W|t_h Public S_ector Audit _ Audit fee  Pension Fund Audit-related  Non-audit
Appointments we undertake prescribed work in order to certify the audit fee services work
Authority’s housing benefit grant claim. This certification work is still
ongoing. The final fee will be confirmed through our reporting on the
outcome of that work in January 2017.
Other services
We charged £6,500 excluding VAT for additional audit-related
services for the certification of the Pooling of Capital Receipts grant
claim and the Teachers Pension return, which are outside of Public
Sector Audit Appointment’s certification regime.
m © 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International”), a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



a #  Download on the
in| flo i[O & i00i

kpmg.com/socialmedia kpmg.com/app

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



This page is intentionally left blank

62



£'000

2015-16

£'000

2014-15

£'000

hanagement p

Administrative costs

Pensions ini ion and central recharges

Computer software

Administrative expenses

LAPFF and PLSA (ex NAPF) fees

Other

TOTAL

Investment management expenses (fees shown as %)
State Street

K ( First £100m @ 0.05%, thereafter @ 0.04%)

U
AllWorld ( First £100m @ 0.07%)

70

All World ( Thereafter @ 0.06%)

67

TOTAL

137

(Average assets 2015-16: £220m)

GMO

Between £32m and £80m 0.90%

579

224

(Average Assets 2015-16 £74m)

Longyvie:

iew
First £25m @ 0.75%

188

lext £25m @ 0.65%

163

lext £75m @ 0.60%

144

TOTAL

495

403

(Average assets 2015-16 £76m)

Oldfield Partners

0.90% with a 0.15% rebate monthly.

667

234

(Average assets 2015-16 £74m)

Fidelity

0.25%

271

Rebates

350

Wellington

First £20m @ 0.65%

Next £30m @ 0.50%

Thereafter @ 0.45%

376

Rebates

253

[BlackRock

147

(First £10m @ 0.35%, thereafter @ 0.15%)
(Average assets 2015-16 £87m)

Aviva

Fund of Funds fee of 0.214%

11

Underlying managers assume 0.75%

363

(Average assets 2015-16 £52m)

474

433

ht

110

22

|(Average assets 2015-16 £28m )

Standard Life

0.75%

226

220

(Average assets 2015-16 £30m)

Barings

0.91%

208

Pantheon

0.75% of committed capital

299

Underlying managers average 2.25% fee

265

TOTAL

564

526

Record

Fixed fee prior to 2014. From 2014-15 0.03% p.a of the mandate size.

28

21

JP Morgan custody

25

TOTAL

3,452

2,569

Oversight and costs

WM Performance Services

20

Hymans Robertson Actuary

Aon Hewitt Adviser

advisers

Audit fees

Collective Investment Vehicle

Finance support
her

NElEEkEls

TOTAL

536

566

GRAND TOTAL

4,630

3,958

63



This page is intentionally left blank

64



Agenda Item 9
Pages 65to 72

Pension Board

Date of Meeting:
Subject:
Responsible Officer:
Exempt:

Wards affected:

Enclosures:

2 November 2016

Status of Pension Board / Insurance
Arrangements

Dawn Calvert, Director of Finance

No

All

The Need for Pension Board Liability
Insurance (Aon Risk Solutions)

Section 1 - Summary

Summary

This report further advises the Board of its formal status and asks members to
consider the insurance implications arising therefrom.

For information

( %/‘fﬂhCDUNCIL )
65 LONDON



Section 2 - Report

1. At the first meeting of the Board on 25 June 2015 members were advised
that the Terms of Reference agreed by the Council stated that “All
members of the Board are expected to act in accordance with the Code of
Conduct for Councillors where applicable and the Pensions Regulator’s
Code of Practice.”

2. At the same meeting the Board also received a report advising them of
the Code of Conduct for Councillors and asking them to agree to abide by
it. The consideration by the Board was minuted as follows:

Members of the Board made a number of comments during this item as
follows:

e the legal advice received explaining that Board Members should
abide by the Councillors Code of Conduct was required before
any formal agreement. This did not seem to accord with the
information relating to the establishment of Pension Boards;

e practice on this issue seemed to vary nationally and this had not
been a requirement for other members on different Pension
Boards.

The Treasury and Pension Fund Manager explained that his legal advice
was that the Board were co-optees and that the Code of Conduct should
apply.

The Chair asked that the issues raised be investigated and reported back
to the Board before any further action.

3. The matter was further considered at the Board’s meeting on 2 November
2015 when the Council’s legal adviser, HB Public Law, advised that “The
Code (The Council's Code of Conduct for Councillors) is clear that it
applies to co-opted members and appointed members.” The discussion of
the Board was minuted as follows:

The Board received a report of the Director of Finance which set out
additional advice from the Council’s legal adviser regarding the
requirement for Board Members to sign up to and abide by the Council’s
Code of Conduct.

An officer advised that Board Members would be subject to the protocol
on co-optees and advisors as set out in the Council’s Constitution, and
would therefore be required to disclose any pecuniary, non-pecuniary and
conflicts of interests at Board meetings. He added that this requirement
had been communicated to Board members at the time of their
appointments and was also laid out in the Board’s Terms of Reference.

A member of the Board stated that, in his view, the statutory definition of a
conflict of interest did not correspond with that in the Council’s
Constitution and that disclosable pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests
were not the correct test to apply to Board members’ interests and the
Council’s Code of Conduct could not override existing legislation relating
to the conduct of Board members.

Following further discussion, Board members indicated that they were
agreeable to signing the Council’s Code of Conduct.

66



4. The consideration of these matters at the Board was clearly being
replicated within other administering authorities to the extent that the
Local Government Association instructed James Goudie QC to advise. In
his advice of 7 December 2015, the introduction is as follows:

| am instructed to advise the Local Government Association (“the LGA”)
on three, related, questions:-

(1) The legal status of a Local Government Pension Scheme (“‘LGPS”)
Pension Board;

(2) The legal relationship between such a Pension Board and the
‘scheme manager”; and

(3) The “conflict” described below.

5. Both at Harrow’s Board meetings and outside, members have expressed
concern as to the status of the Board and the insurance arrangements for
the members. Mr Goudie comments on both these matters in paragraph
44 of his advice as follows:

As regards insurance:-

(1) Given that a Pension Board is a creature of the 2013 Act and not a
council committee, the council’s indemnity insurance will not automatically
cover the Pension Board’s membership;

(2) There may nonetheless be circumstances in which the Pension
Board’s members would be potentially liable; and

(3) Therefore —

(i) The Council should extend its insurance, or

(i) The Pension Board should procure its own insurance.

6. The Council has always understood that the Board is set up under the
Public Service Pensions Act 2013. This is clear in paragraph 2 of the
Terms of Reference with the responsibility of the Board described as “to
assist the Administering Authority.......................... in ensuring the
effective governance and administration of LGPS.” This was also made
clear to the Council at its meeting on 13 November 2014.

7. It is accepted that the Board is not a Council committee and that it has no
decision making functions. Notwithstanding this, for the sake of efficient
administration it is considered appropriate to use as many of the Council’s
processes as possible. In particular, the “Standards of conduct and
conflicts of interest” paragraph of the Terms of Reference states:

All members of the Board are expected to act in accordance with the
Code of Conduct for Councillors where applicable. In accordance with
s5(5) Public Service Pension Act 2013, a Board member must not have a
financial or other interest that could prejudice them in carrying out their
Board duties. This does not include a financial or other interest arising
merely by virtue of member of the LGPS.

This is seen as a pragmatic solution to the issues raised by the
establishment of the Board as is the servicing of the Board in the same

67



8.

10.

way as that of Council committees. Whilst the Board does not have a
budget of its own it receives an appropriate level of officer support and the
advice of external advisers (eg Hymans Robertson) as it requests.

As regards insurance, the Council's Insurance Manager has been
consulted and has advised: that Harrow’s existing insurance
arrangements do not cover the Pension Board’s membership, as the
Board is not a Council committee. Notwithstanding this it is difficult to
foresee how a claim could arise against the Board’s membership given
that it provides a scrutiny function and has no direct decision making
authority. This view is held by the Council’s insurers and the other
boroughs within the Insurance London Consortium, who were also asked
to consider the position. It has, however, recently come to our attention
that a firm of insurance brokers is currently looking to develop a new
insurance product specifically for Pension Boards. As soon as further
information is made available in this regard the position will be reviewed.

The “brokers” to whom the Insurance Manager refers are Aon Hewitt who,
on 20 September 2016 wrote to the administering authorities as follows:

As many of you will have seen in our recent newsletter we have been
working with our colleagues in Aon Risk Solutions to develop an
insurance product that will provide cover for members of Pension Boards.

Many people are questioning whether Local Pension Boards need to be
covered; our risk colleagues suggest that, while the risk may be
considered remote, in their view there is an exposure as current Liability
Policies do not provide any cover for Local Pension Boards. It is for that
reason that they have developed a policy specifically for Local Pension
Boards with an insurance provider (Chubb/Ace) and a summary sheet is
attached [attached to this report] with a bit more information. My
colleagues can obtain a premium quote for you if it would be helpful (and |
would then leave you to liaise directly with them as any quotations and
formalising a contract must be done in line with compliance
requirements). If you require more information in relation to the Aon
developed solution, please let me know and | can obtain a quotation/put
you in touch with my colleagues at Aon Risk Solutions.

The Board are asked to consider whether they wish officers to obtain
premium quotes as offered by Aon Hewitt.

Financial Implications

11.

Any costs arising from the purchase of an insurance policy to cover the
Board would be met from the Pension Fund.

Risk Management Implications

12.

The report refers to risks potentially being run by the Pension Board and
its members and discusses ways of alleviating them.

68



Equalities implications

13. There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.

Council Priorities

14. The performance of the Pension Fund has a direct impact on the financial
health of the Pension Fund which directly affects the level of employer

contribution which then, in turn, affects the resources available for the
Council’s priorities

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

Name Dawn Calvert (V] Director of Finance

Date: 20 October 2016

Ward Councillors notified: Not applicable as the
report is relevant to all
wards.

Section 4 - Contact Details

Contact: lan Talbot, Treasury and Pension Fund Manager
0208 424 1450

Background Papers - None

69




This page is intentionally left blank

70



Aon Risk Solutions
National | Public Sector

The need for Pension Board

liability insurance

Local Pension Boards are established under the Public Services
Pensions Act 2013 and have been established in order to assist the
Administering Authority of a Local Government Pension Scheme to:

e Comply with:
— The LGPS Regulations 2015

— Any other legislation relating to the governance and
administration of the Scheme

— Any requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator

* Ensure effective and efficient governance and administration

However, according to the legal opinion obtained by the LGA from
James Goudie QC, the Pension Board itself is not a council committee
and therefore there is uncertainty as to whether members of the
board are officials who fall within the scope of the councils own
indemnity provisions.

For moreinformation

Risk. Reinsurance. Human Resources.

71

Insurance of Local Pension Boards

Since the implementation of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013,
Aon clients have queried the extent of insurance cover for members
of the Pension Boards, and Aon have been in discussion with different
insurers to ascertain whether current Officials Indemnity or liability
policies can be extended to include such insurance. Many policies
contain exclusions relating specifically to claims arising out of a
breach of fiduciary duty, responsibility or obligation in connection
with any employee benefit or pension plan, and there is some
reluctance to extend the scope of cover.

Furthermore any claim under an Officials Indemnity policy is subject
to the applicable deductible, but the Authority may be unable to
indemnify the individual, leaving the board member personally
liable for costs within the deductible. Deductibles for Administering
Authorities typically range from £50,000 to £250,000.

To fulfil requirements for certainty of insurance cover, Aon have
developed in conjunction with a leading insurer a pension liability
policy specifically designed to provide protection to Local Pensions
Boards and the personal liability of individual Pension Board members
in the event of claims or investigations against them.

AON

Empower Results®



What is covered? Extent of protection

Loss — Insurers will pay for loss suffered as a result of claims made
during the policy period for wrongful acts, such as breach of trust,
breach of duty, breach of statutory provision, maladministration,
neglect, administrative error or wrongful omission, misstatement,

misleading statement or any other act committed or allegedly

committed by an Insured in connection with their role as members

of a Pension Board.

Investigation expenses — investigations instituted during the
policy period.

Mitigation expenses — Expenses incurred in taking action to
prevent, limit or mitigate exposure to an actual or potential claim.

Extensions of

Damages — i.e. judgements settlements and awards for which
members are legally liable.

Defence costs — legal costs and expenses incurred in defending
claims brought against them.

Investigation expenses — legal costs and expenses incurred in
relation to an investigation connected with the Pension Scheme.

cover include;

* Public Relations Expenses (sub limited)*
 Civil Fines and Penalties to the extent permitted in law
e Emergency Costs (sub limited)*

e Extradition Proceedings Costs

¢ Loss of Documents (sub limited)*
¢ Prosecution Costs (sub limited)*

 Third party provider pursuit costs

The policy is issued on a “claims made” basis meaning that only claims notified during the policy period are covered.

*Sub limits may vary based on the overall limit purchased. Sub limits form part of and are not in addition to the Limit of Liability.

Limit, deductible and cost Key underwriting information

Cost of cover is dependent on a number of factors including:
e Limit of Indemnity required (Limits up to 10m are available)

* Size of the Pension Scheme assets

* Number of members of the Pension Scheme

* No deductible is payable by any individual insured

Quotations can be provided based on:

Latest Pension Scheme accounts
Terms of reference for the Pension Board
Details of the members of the Pension Board

Details of training schedule for board members either
undertaken or proposed

Subject to no known claims or circumstance

) For full details of policy wording terms and conditions please contact your usualrepresentative

or Deborah Ball deborah.ball@aon.co.uk

About Aon

Aon plc (NYSE:AON) is a leading global provider of risk management, insurance brokerage and reinsurance
brokerage, and human resources solutions and outsourcing services. Through its more than 72,000 colleagues
worldwide, Aon unites to empower results for clients in over 120 countries via innovative risk and people solutions.
For further information on our capabilities and to learn how we empower results for clients, please visit

http://aon.mediaroom.com/

Aon UK Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Aon UK Limited Registered Office: The Aon Centre, The Leadenhall Building,
122 Leadenhall Street, London, EC3V 4AN. Registered No. 210725. VAT Registration No. 480 8401 48. Some links on this website may redirect you to third

party sites. Aon is not responsible for this content. Telephone calls are recorded and may be monitored. © 2016 Aon Plc FP number: FPNAT223

Risk. Reinsurance. Human Resources.

72

ON

Empower Results®



Agenda Item 10
Pages 73 to 80

Pension Board

Date of Meeting: 2 November 2016

Subject: London Borough of Harrow Pension
Board: Draft Annual Report to Council
2016

Responsible Dawn Calvert, Director of Finance

Officer:

Exempt: No

Wards Affected: All

Enclosure: Draft Annual Report to Council 2016

Section 1 - Summary and Recommendation

Summary

This report advises the Board of the need to prepare a report on their
work to be presented to the Full Council on 1 December 2016 and
provides a draft for their consideration (attached as an appendix).

Recommendation

The Board is recommended to agree a report on their work to be
presented to the Full Council on 1 December 2016.

LONDON

(Harroatouncr)
23 arroanCOUNCIL



Section 2 - Report

1. The Terms of Reference of the Board require them to present a report on
their work to the Full Council once a year. At their last meeting the Board
received an initial draft for their consideration in advance of this meeting.

2. A revised draft is attached for the Board to consider and they are
recommended to agree a final version to be presented to the Full Council
on 1 December 2016.

Financial Implications

3. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.

Risk Management Implications

4. All risks are included within the Pension Fund Risk Register.
Equalities implications

5. There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.
Council Priorities

6. The financial health of the Pension Fund directly affects the resources
available for the Council’s priorities.

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

Name: Dawn Calvert |/ Director of Finance

Date: 20 October 2016

on behalf of the
Name: Caroline Eccles | Y] Monitoring Officer

Date: 21 October 2016

Ward Councillors notified: Not applicable as the
proposal affects all
wards

74




Section 4 - Contact Details

Contact: lan Talbot, Treasury and Pension Fund Manager
0208 424 1450

Background Papers - None

75



This page is intentionally left blank

76



APPENDIX

DRAFT
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW PENSION BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT TO COUNCIL 2016
Background

The Board was set up by 1 April 2015 in accordance with the requirements of the
Public Service Pensions Act 2013.

The Act provides for the membership to be of equal numbers of “employer
representatives” and “member representatives”. In addition we have an Independent
Member.

Our Terms of Reference require us to present a report on our work to the Full
Council once a year.

Meetings

We held our first meeting on 25 June 2015 and Richard Harbord and Gerald
Balabanoff were appointed as Chair and Vice-Chair respectively for the remainder of
the 2015-16 Municipal Year.

We have subsequently met on four occasions.

All five members of the Board have attended all except one of the meetings and
Richard and Gerald were re-appointed to their posts on 28 June 2016.

Themes arising during the year were:

Role and Terms of Reference

At our first meeting we were provided with considerable background information on
our establishment, role and Terms of Reference.

We understand our role and are generally happy with the generic nature of the
Terms of Reference. However, our view is that we should meet more than twice a
year and that the periods of office of the various members be staggered to avoid the
potential loss of too much experience at one time.

The issue of payment to the Council officer who is a member of the Board and the
level of payments to non-Council members were raised.

Knowledge and Understanding of the Local Government Pension Scheme

At our first meeting, we were advised of the knowledge and understanding of the
Local Government Pension Scheme required of members of the Board as set out by
the, then, Shadow Advisory Board.

77



To assist in our understanding we have been provided with a large amount of
information about the Scheme, usually with an officer's commentary, including:

e Annual Report and Accounts
e Guide to the Local Government Pension Scheme
e Governance Compliance Statement
o Statement of Investment Principles
¢ Funding Strategy Statement
¢ Reports from the Fund Actuary
Reference to specific training is made below.

Relationship with Pension Fund Committee

At each meeting, the Board have been advised of the agendas of, and decisions
taken by, the Pension Fund Committee at its recent meetings. Our views have, in
turn, been reported to the Committee. The Board has also been explicitly invited to
attend the Committee meetings and the training sessions held prior to each meeting.

Both the Board and the Committee have emphasised the importance of maintaining
good relationships between the two bodies. The Chairs of the Committee and the
Board have met and our Chair has been invited to speak at the Committee.

A recurring theme throughout the year has been legal advice that members of the
Board are not entitled to remain at the Committee’s meetings when exempt papers
are discussed even though Board members are expected to abide by the Council’s
Code of Conduct. A compromise was eventually reached whereby Board members
could see all exempt papers other than those involving personal information of
officers.

Annual Report and Financial Statements

At various of our meetings we have been invited to consider the Annual Report and
Financial Statements for the last two years together with their various attachments
and the reports of the Auditor. The areas in which we expressed particular interest

have been:

e Actuarial assumptions
e Employer contributions
e The prospect of the funding deficit being recovered in 20 years

e The performance of the Fund and the way it is discussed in reports to
facilitate the scrutiny process

78



We have received reports and presentations from the Actuary at each of our
meetings in 2016.

Investment and Management Expenses

We reviewed in detail the management expenses of the Fund and requested
benchmarking details.

Benchmarking and key performance indicators

We have shown particular interest in benchmarking and key performance indicators.

At our meeting on 2 November 2015 we reviewed the self-assessment key
performance indicators provided on a pro-forma for the LGPS Scheme Advisory
Board.

Traditionally, reliable benchmarking and comparison information covering all
administering authorities has not been available. However, recent Government
requirements in the context of the pooling arrangements have necessitated the
provision of relatively consistent information from all administering authorities and
Harrow’s results were considered by us on 28 June 2016.

Environmental, Social and Governance Issues

The Board supports the Committee’s stance in expecting fund managers to adopt
appropriate codes of practice and that they be required to provide an explanation
when they do not.

Training

In accordance with the requirements mentioned above, on 27 August 2015 the
Fund’s investment Adviser Aon Hewitt provided an intensive all-day training
programme covering the following:

e Governance and Key Legislation

e Actuarial and Funding Matters

e Investment
All members of the Board were able to attend.
Conclusion

The regulations governing Pension Boards were contained in the 2015 Regulations
(S12015/57)

The main provisions are:

‘(1) Each administering authority shall no later than 1st April 2015 establish a
pension board (“a local pension board”) responsible for assisting it -

79



(a) to secure compliance with -
(i) these Regulations,

(ii) any other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the Scheme
and any connected scheme, and

(iii) any requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the Scheme
and any connected scheme; and

(b) to ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the
Scheme and any connected scheme.

Essentially the role of the Pension Board is one of Scrutiny and our role is wholly
advisory.

The first year has been one of training, understanding the role and scrutinising the
arrangements for the actuarial valuation and areas of key interest such as
management fees etc.

The Board looks forward to consolidating their performance in the second year and
becoming an effective body for scrutiny.

80



Agenda Item 11
Pages 81 to 90

Pension Board

Date of Meeting:
Subject:
Responsible Officer:
Exempt:

Wards Affected:

Enclosures:

2 November 2016

Review of Terms of Reference

Dawn Calvert, Director of Finance

No

All

Terms of Reference

Section 1 - Summary

Summary

The Board are asked to consider whether they wish to ask the Council to
consider amendments to their terms of reference (draft attached as an

appendix).

Recommendation

The Board is recommended to agree what changes to their terms of reference
they wish to recommend to Council.

LONDON

(Harroutouncr)
a1 arroanCOUNCIL



Section 2 - Report

1. At the first meeting of the Board on 25 June 2015 members were advised
of the Terms of Reference agreed by the Council and to recommend any
amendments they may wish to make. A copy of the Terms is attached as
an appendix.

2. The Board were further advised that any changes requested would be
reported to the Council for consideration.

3. The Board noted the report and commented as follows:

e atypo on page 12 was required to replace ‘or’ with ‘for’;

e an amendment could be made to read that the Board shall meet at
least twice a year,

e it was important for continuity to be an important factor in the
membership of the Board. The Board’s operation was a new concept
and if there was a new membership after a couple of years this could
reduce the knowledge and experience built up. This was an issue that
the Chair and Treasury and Pension Fund Manager would consider in
due course.

4. The only other matter raised by the Board which could result in a change
to the Terms of Reference is the issue of payment to the Council officer

who is a member of the Board and the level of payments to non-Council
members.

5. The Board is asked to consider exactly what changes to the Council’s
constitution they would like to recommend to Council..

Financial Implications

6. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Risk Management Implications
7. There are no direct risk management implications arising from this report.
Equalities implications

8. There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.

Council Priorities

9. The performance of the Pension Fund has a direct impact on the financial
health of the Pension Fund which directly affects the level of employer

82



contribution which then, in turn, affects the resources available for the
Council’s priorities

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

Name: Dawn Calvert |/ Director of Finance

Date: 20 October 2016

on behalf of the
Name: Caroline Eccles | vl Monitoring Officer

Date: 21 October 2016

Ward Councillors notified: Not applicable as the
report is relevant to all
wards.

Section 4 - Contact Details

Contact: lan Talbot, Treasury and Pension Fund Manager
0208 424 1450

Background Papers — None

83




This page is intentionally left blank

84



APPENDIX
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW PENSION FUND
PENSION BOARD
TERMS OF REFERENCE

1)  Introduction

The purpose of this document is to set out the Terms of Reference for the local Pension Board
(the Board) of the London Borough Harrow Pension Fund (the Fund).

2) Powers of the Board

The Board will exercise all its powers and duties in accordance with the law and this Terms of
Reference.

3) Role of the Board

The role of the Board, as defined by sections 5(1) and (2) of the Public Service Pensions Act
2013, is to assist the Administering Authority (London Borough of Harrow) as Scheme
Manager in ensuring the effective and efficient governance and administration of the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) including:

- securing compliance with the LGPS regulations and other legislation relating to the
governance and administration of the LGPS;

- securing compliance with requirements imposed in relation to the LGPS by the
Pensions Regulator; and

- such other matters the LGPS regulations may specify.

The Administering Authority retains ultimate responsibility for the administration and
governance of the scheme. The role of the Board is to support the Administering Authority to
fulfil that responsibility.

In its role, The Board will have oversight of the administration of the fund including:
a) The effectiveness of the decision making process

b) The direction of the Fund and its overall objectives

c) The level of transparency in the conduct of the Fund’s activities

d) The administration of benefits and contributions

The Board will provide the Scheme Manager with such information as it requires to ensure that
any Member of the Board or person to be appointed to the Board does not have a conflict of
interest.

85



The Board will ensure it effectively and efficiently complies with the Code of Practice on the
Governance and Administration of Public Service Pension Schemes issued by the Pensions
Regulator. It will help to ensure that the Fund is managed in the same way.

The Board shall meet sufficiently regularly to discharge its duties and responsibilities
effectively.

4) Membership
The Board shall consist of 5 members and be constituted as follows:

(1) 2 Employer representatives — Administering Authority (1), other scheduled and
admitted bodies [ie organisations other than the Administering Authority who,
under the regulations, can participate in the LGPS] (1);

(i) 2 Scheme Member representatives — active members (1), pensioners (1); and
(i) 1 independent member

Elected Members and officers involved in the management and administration of the Fund are
not permitted to become Board members.

Only the Employer and Scheme Member representatives will have voting rights.

Each member of the Board will serve or a period of three years, subject to compliance with
conditions of appointment.

The Chair and Deputy Chair of the Board will be elected by the Board at its first meeting and
will serve for a period of three years. Should the elected Chair be an Employer representative
the Deputy Chair must be a Scheme Member representative and vice versa.

The Chair will ensure that meetings are properly conducted and the decision of the Chair on
all points of procedure and order shall be final.

The Board may, with the approval of the Administering Authority, co-opt persons with sufficient
skills and experience to advise and support them. Co-optees are not Board members and do
not have voting rights.

Each Board Member should endeavour to attend all Board meetings during the year. In the
event of consistent non-attendance by any Board Member the tenure of that membership
should be reviewed by the other Board members in liaison with the Scheme Manager.

Other than by ceasing to be eligible as set out above, a Board member may only be removed
from office during a term of appointment by the unanimous agreement of all other members
and with the agreement of the Scheme Manager. Should any member of the Board cease to
be a member of the relevant group for which he/she has been appointed he/she will
automatically cease to be a member of the Board and the Administering Authority will conduct
a replacement process.

86



5) Appointment of Board members

All Board members will be appointed by Full Council. It is a statutory requirement that the
Administering Authority must be satisfied that a person to be appointed as an Employer or
Scheme Member representative has the relevant experience and capacity to represent
employers or scheme members (as appropriate)

o Administering Authority to nominate one Employer representative

o The second Employer representative to be nominated by the scheduled
and admitted bodies. If more than one is nominated, Council will
determine who is to be appointed.

(i) Scheme Member representatives to be selected through a process administered
by the Administering Authority with a recommendation to Council

(i) Independent member — applications to be invited by public advertisement with a
recommendation by the s151 Officer to Council.

6) Standards of conduct and conflicts of interest

All members of the Board are expected to act in accordance with the Code of Conduct for
Councillors where applicable and the Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice. In accordance
with s5(5) Public Service Pension Act 2013, a Board member must not have a financial or
other interest that could prejudice him/her in carrying out his/her Board duties. This does not
include a financial or other interest arising merely by virtue of being a member of the LGPS.

The policy for identifying conflicts of interest is set out in a separate policy document.

7) Knowledge and Skills
Following appointment each member of the Board should be conversant with:
e The legislation and associated guidance of the LGPS

e Any document recording policy about the administration of the LGPS which is for the
time being adopted by the Fund

The Administering Authority will provide a training programme which all Board members will
be required to attend.

It is for individual Board members to be satisfied that they have the appropriate degree of
knowledge and understanding to enable them, properly, to exercise their functions as a
Member of the Board and therefore, must comply with the Board’s Knowledge and
Understanding and Training Policy.

87



8) Accountability
The Board will collectively and individually be accountable to the Scheme Manager.

The Board will refer all relevant recommendations and decisions to the Pension Fund
Committee of the Administering Authority and, where appropriate, to Full Council. It will
present a report on its work to the Full Council once a year.

9) Decision making

Each voting member of the Board will have an individual voting right but it is expected that the
Board will, as far as possible, reach a consensus. The Chair of the Board, so long as he/she
has voting rights, will have the final deciding vote.

10) Quorum

A quorum will comprise 3 of the 5 members of which at least one shall be an Employer
representative and one a Scheme Member representative.

11) Meetings
The Board shall meet twice a year.

The Chair of the Board, in consultation with the Administering Authority will prepare an agenda
for each meeting of the Board. The administration of the Board will be in accordance with the
normal procedures of the London Borough of Harrow.

An extraordinary meeting will be called when the Chair considers this necessary and/or in

circumstances where the Chair receives a request in writing by 50% of the voting membership
of the Board

12) Publication of Pension Board Information

The Administering Authority will publish up to date information on the Council’'s website
including:

e The names of the Board member
e The Board’s Terms of Reference

e Papers, agendas and minutes of Board meetings.

13) Advice to the Board

The Board will be supported in its role and responsibilities by the Administering Authority
through advice and support as appropriate.

88



14) Expense Reimbursement

Each member of the Board and any co-opted persons, excluding elected Councillors of the
London Borough of Harrow and Council Officers will be reimbursed at a rate of £445 per
annum (exclusive of VAT if payable). All members of the Board and any co-opted persons will

be paid “out-of-pocket”’ expenses when carrying out the functions of the Board including
approved training.

15) Definitions
The undernoted terms shall have the following meaning when used in this document:
Administering Authority London Borough of Harrow

Board or Pension Board  The local Pension Board for the London Borough of Harrow,
Administering Authority for the London Borough of Harrow

Pension Fund as required under the Public Service Pensions Act
2013

Board Member A member of the Board including Employer representatives,
Scheme Member representatives and an independent member

Code of Practice The Pensions Regulator’s [draft] Code of Practice no 14 entitled
“Governance and administration of public service pension
schemes.”

Conflicts of Interest As defined in the Public Service Pensions Act 2013
Conflicts of Interest Policy The policy on conflicts of interest as adopted by the Board

Employer Representative A person appointed to the Board for the purpose of representing
employers for the Scheme

Fund The London Borough of Harrow Pension Fund within the Scheme
administered and maintained by the Scheme Employer

Independent Member A Member of the Board who is neither an Employer
Representative nor a Member Representative

Knowledge and Understanding and Training Policy The training policy as adopted by the
Board

LGPS The Local Government Pension Scheme as constituted by the
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013, the Local
Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings
and Amendment) Regulations 2014 and The Local Government
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2009.

89



Member Representative A person appointed to the Board for the purpose of representing
members of the Scheme

Scheme The Local Government Pension Scheme as defined under LGPS.

Scheme Manager London Borough of Harrow as administering authority of the
London Borough of Harrow Pension Fund

16) Interpretation

Any uncertainty or ambiguity or interpretation required relating to any matters contained in this
document shall be resolved by reference to the Scheme Manager.

90



Agenda Item 12
Pages 91 to 104

Pension Board

Date of Meeting: 2 November 2016

Subject: Information Report — The Local
Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016

Responsible Officer: Dawn Calvert, Director of Finance

Exempt: No
Wards affected: All
Enclosures: The Local Government Pension Scheme

(Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016

Section 1 - Summary

This report advises the Board of The Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 which came into
effect on 1 November 2016.

FOR INFORMATION

(Harroatouncr)
o1 arroanCOUNCIL

LONDON



Section 2 - Report

1. At their meeting on 28 June 2016 the Board were advised of a
consultation document received from DCLG entitled “Local Government
Pension Scheme: Revoking and replacing the Local Government Pension
Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009.”
Comments had been invited by 19 February 2016.

2. The consultation document discussed many important issues in
connection with the future management of the Local Government Pension
Scheme including:

Deregulation of investment decisions

Investment Strategy Statement to replace Statement of
Investment Principles

Non-financial factors — inappropriate use of investment policies
Investment — appropriate use of certain investments

Secretary of State’s powers of intervention

3. However, the consultation process was limited to eight questions to which
answers were requested divided into two proposals as follows:

Proposal 1: Adopting a local approach to investment

Does the proposed deregulation achieve the intended policy aim of removing
any unnecessary regulation while still ensuring that authorities’ investments
are made prudently and having taken advice?

Are there any specific issues that should be reinstated? Please explain why.

Is six months the appropriate period for the transitional arrangements to
remain in place?

Should the regulation be explicit that derivatives should only be used as a risk
management tool? Are there any other circumstances in which the use of
derivatives would be appropriate?

Proposal 2: Introducing a safeguard — Secretary of State power of
intervention

Are there any other sources of evidence that the Secretary of State might
draw on to establish whether an intervention is required?

Does the intervention allow authorities sufficient scope and time to present
evidence in favour of their existing arrangements when either determining an
intervention in the first place, or reviewing whether one should remain in
place?

Does the proposed approach allow the Secretary of State sufficient flexibility
to ensure that he is able to introduce a proportionate intervention?

92



Do the proposals meet the objectives of the policy, which are to allow the
Secretary of State to make a proportionate intervention in the investment
function of an administering authority if it has not had regard to best practice,
guidance or regulation?

4. DCLG have now finalised the Regulations which show only one change

5.

from the draft namely that the date of their coming into force has been
changed to 1 November 2016 with the date by which the new investment
strategy statements have to be published set at 1 April 2017.

A summary of the Regulations, based on that provided by DCLG in the
consultation document is as follows:

(1) Citation, commencement and extent

This details the citation and scope of the regulations, and gives the
date at which they will come into force.

(2) Interpretation

These provisions define terms used in the regulations with
reference to legislation, and cite the legislation that gives
administering authorities the powers that may be impacted by the
regulations.

(3) Investment

This regulation defines what is considered an investment for the
purposes of the regulations. This definition includes futures,
options, derivatives, limited partnerships and some types of
insurance contracts. It also defines who a person with whom a
contract of insurance can be entered into is.

(4) Management of a pension fund

This regulation lists the monies that an administering authority must
credit to its pension fund, including employer and employee
contributions, interest, and investment capital and income. It also
sets out the administering authority’s responsibility to pay benefits
entitled to members, and states that, except where prohibited by
other requlations, costs of administering the fund can be paid by
the fund.

(5) Restriction on power to borrow

This regulation outlines the limited circumstances under which an
administering authority can borrow money that the pension fund is
liable to repay.

(6) Separate bank account

The regulation states that an administering authority must deposit
all pension fund monies in a separate account, and lists those
institutions that can act as a deposit taker. It also states that the
deposit taker cannot use pension fund account to set-off any other
account held by the administering authority or a connected party.
(7) Investment strategy statement

This regulation places an obligation on the administering authority
to consult on and publish an investment strategy statement, which
must be in accordance with guidance from the Secretary of State.
The statement should demonstrate that investments will be suitably
diversified, and it should outline the administering authority’s
maximum allocations for different asset classes, as well as their
approach to risk and responsible investing.

93



In many respects, the investment strategy statement replaces the
list of restrictions given in Schedule 1 of the 2009 Regulations and
enables the criteria to be determined at local level. Schedule 1 of
the 2009 Regulations will remain in force until such time that the
new investment strategy statements have to be published.
Provision is made for authorities to publish their policy on the
extent to which environmental, social and corporate governance
factors are taken into account in the selection, retention and
realisation of investments.

(8) Directions by the Secretary of State

This provision grants the Secretary of State the power to intervene
in the investment function of an administering authority if he is
satisfied that the authority is failing to have regard to regulation and
guidance. He can also Initiate inquiries to determine if an
intervention is warranted, and must consult with the authority
concerned. Once it is determined that an intervention is needed,
the Secretary of State can intervene by directing the authority
undertake a broad range of actions to remedy the situation.

(9) Investment managers

This regulation details how an administering authority must appoint
external investment managers.

(10) Investments under section 11(1) of the Trustee Investments
Act 1961

This regulation allows administering authorities to invest in
Treasury-approved collective investment schemes.

(11) Consequential amendments

This regulation lists the prior regulations that are amended as a
result of the regulations

(12) Revocations and transitional provisions

The provision lists the regulations that are revoked by the
regulations. Transitional arrangements are put in place to ensure
that the existing regulations governing the investment strategy
remain in place until a new investment strategy statement is
published by an authority under regulation seven. These
transitional arrangements apply for up to six months after the
regulations came into effect.

6. With the revocation of the 2009 Regulations a comparison of the two sets
is largely of academic interest. The main changes are those discussed
under clauses 7, 8 and 10 above.

Financial Implications

7. Whilst significant changes in the Regulations can have a significant
impact on the performance of the Fund there are no financial implications
arising from this report.

Risk Management Implications

8. The risks arising from the management and investment of funds are
included in the Pension Fund risk register.

94



Equalities implications

9. There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.

Council Priorities

9. Investment performance has a direct impact on the financial health of the
Pension Fund which directly affects the level of employer contribution
which then, in turn, affects the resources available for the Council’s

priorities

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

Name Dawn Calvert (V] Director of Finance

Date: 20 October 2016

Ward Councillors notified: Not applicable as the
report is relevant to all
wards.

Section 4 - Contact Details

Contact: lan Talbot, Treasury and Pension Fund Manager
0208 424 1450

Background Papers - None

95




This page is intentionally left blank

96



STATUTORY INSTRUMENTS

2016 No. 946
PUBLIC SERVICE PENSIONS, ENGLAND AND WALES

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016

Made - - - - 21st September 2016
Laid before Parliament 23rd September 2016
Coming into force - - 1st November 2016

The Secretary of State makes these Regulations in exercise of the powers conferred by sections
1(1) and 3(1) to (4) of, and Schedule 3 to, the Public Service Pensions Act 2013(a).

In accordance with section 21(1) of that Act, the Secretary of State has consulted such persons and
the representatives of such persons as appeared to the Secretary of State to be likely to be affected
by these Regulations.

In accordance with section 3(5) of that Act, these Regulations are made with the consent of the
Treasury.

Citation, commencement and extent

1.—(1) These Regulations may be cited as the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.

(2) These Regulations come into force on 1st November 2016.

(3) These Regulations extend to England and Wales.

Interpretation

2.—(1) In these Regulations—
“the 2000 Act” means the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000(b);
“the 2013 Regulations” means the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013(c);

“the Transitional Regulations” means the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional
Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014(d);

“authority” means an administering authority listed in Part 1 of Schedule 3 to the 2013
Regulations;

“fund money” means money that is or should be in a pension fund maintained by an authority;

(a) 2013 c.25; see section 2 of and Schedule 2 to that Act as to how the power is exercisable by the Secretary of State.
(b) 2000c.8.

(¢) S.I.2013/2356.

(d) S.I.2014/525.

97



“proper advice” means the advice of a person whom the authority reasonably considers to be
qualified by their ability in and practical experience of financial matters;

“the Scheme” means the scheme established by the 2013 Regulations.

(2) Any restrictions imposed by these Regulations apply to authorities which have the power
within section 1 of the Localism Act 2011(a) (local authority’s general power of competence) or
section 5A(1) of the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004(b) in the exercise of those powers.

(3) Any authority which does not have the powers mentioned in paragraph (2) has, by virtue of
these Regulations the power to do anything authorised or required by these Regulations.

Investment

3.—(1) In these Regulations “investment” includes—

(a)

(b)
(©

a contract entered into in the course of dealing in financial futures, traded options or
derivatives;

a contribution to a limited partnership in an unquoted securities investment;

a contract of insurance if it is a contract of a relevant class, and is entered into with a
person within paragraph (2) for whom entering into the contract constitutes the carrying
on of a regulated activity within the meaning of section 22 of the 2000 Act(c).

(2) The persons within this paragraph are—

(a)

(b)

(©)

a person who has permission under Part 4A of the 2000 Act (permission to carry on
regulated activities)(d) to effect or carry out contracts of insurance of a relevant class;

an EEA firm of the kind mentioned in paragraph 5(d) of Schedule 3 to the 2000 Act (EEA
passport rights), which has permission under paragraph 15 of that Schedule(e) to effect or
carry out contracts of insurance of a relevant class; and

a person who does not fall within sub-paragraph (a) or (b) whose head office is in an EEA
state other than the United Kingdom, and who is permitted by the law of that state to
effect or carry out contracts of insurance of a relevant class.

(3) A contract of insurance is of a relevant class for the purposes of paragraphs (1)(c) and (2) if
it is—

(@)

(b)

a contract of insurance on human life or a contract to pay an annuity on human life where
the benefits are wholly or partly to be determined by reference to the value of, or income
from, property of any description (whether or not specified in the contract) or by
reference to fluctuations in, or an index of, the value of property of any description
(whether or not so specified); or

a contract to manage the investments of pension funds, whether or not combined with a
contract of insurance covering either conservation of capital or payment of minimum
interest.

(4) For the purposes of this regulation—

“limited partnership” has the meaning given in the Limited Partnerships Act 1907(f);

“recognised stock exchange” has the same meaning as in section 1005 of the Income Tax Act
2007(g);

“traded option” means an option quoted on a recognised stock exchange; and

(a)
(b)
()
)
(e)
®)
(g

2011 c. 20.

2004 c. 21; section SA was inserted by section 9(1) of the Localism Act 2011.

Section 22 was amended by section 7(1) of the Financial Services Act 2012 (c. 21).

Part 4A of the 2000 Act was inserted by section 11(2) of the Financial Services Act 2012.

Paragraph 15 was amended by S.I. 2003/2066, 2007/3253, 2012/1906,2013/1881 and 2015/575.

1907 c. 24.

2007 c. 3; section 1005 was substituted by the Finance Act 2007 (c. 11) and amended by the Taxation (International and
Other Provisions) Act 2010 (c. 8).

98



“unquoted securities investment partnership” means a partnership for investing in securities
which are not quoted on a recognised stock exchange when the partnership buys them.

Management of a pension fund
4.—(1) An authority must credit to its pension fund(a), in addition to any sum otherwise
required to be credited by virtue of the 2013 Regulations or the Transitional Regulations—

(a) the amounts payable by it or payable to it under regulations 15(3)(b), 67 and 68 of the
2013 Regulations (employer’s contributions and further payments);

(b) all amounts received under regulation 69(1)(a) of the 2013 Regulations (member
contributions);

(c) all income arising from investment of the fund; and
(d) all capital money deriving from such investment.

(2) In the case of an authority which maintains more than one pension fund, as respects sums
which relate to specific members, the references in this regulation to the authority’s pension fund
is to the fund which is the appropriate fund(b) for the member in question in accordance with the
2013 Regulations.

(3) Interest under regulation 71 of the 2013 Regulations (interest on late payments by Scheme
employers) must be credited to the pension fund to which the overdue payment is due.

(4) An authority must pay any benefits to which any person is entitled by virtue of the 2013
Regulations or the Transitional Regulations from its pension fund.

(5) Any costs, charges and expenses incurred administering a pension fund may be paid from it
except for charges prescribed by regulations made under sections 23, 24 or 41 of the Welfare
Reform and Pensions Act 1999(c) (charges in relation to pension sharing costs).

Restriction on power to borrow
5.—(1) Except as provided in this regulation, an authority must not borrow money where the
borrowing is liable to be repaid out of its pension fund.

(2) Subject to paragraph (3), an authority may borrow by way of temporary loan or overdraft
which is liable to be repaid out of its pension fund, any sums which it may require for the purpose
of—

(a) paying benefits due under the Scheme; or

(b) to meet investment commitments arising from the implementation of a decision by it to
change the balance between different types of investment.

(3) An authority may only borrow money under paragraph (2) if, at the time of the borrowing,
the authority reasonably believes that the sum borrowed and interest charged in respect of that sum
can be repaid out of its pension fund within 90 days of the borrowing.

Separate bank account

6.—(1) An authority must hold in a separate account kept by it with a deposit-taker all fund
money.

(2) “Deposit-taker” for the purposes of paragraph (1) means—

(a) a person who has permission under Part 4A of the 2000 Act (permission to carry on
regulated activities) to carry on the activities specified by article 5 of the Financial

(a) An administering authority is required to maintain a pension fund by regulation 53(1) of, and paragraph 1 of Schedule 3 to
the 2013 Regulations.

(b) See regulation 53(2) of and Part 2 of Schedule 3 to the 2013 Regulations for provisions relating to an administering
authority becoming the “appropriate administering authority” in relation to a person.

(¢) 1999 c. 30; see S.I. 2000/1047 and S.I. 2000/1049.

99



Services and Markets Act 2000 (Regulated Activities) Order 2001 (accepting
deposits)(a);

(b) an EEA firm of the kind mentioned in paragraph 5(b)(b) of Schedule 3 to the 2000 Act
(EEA passport rights) which has permission under paragraph 15 of that Schedule(c) to
accept deposits;

(c) the Bank of England or the central bank of an EEA state other than the United Kingdom;
or

(d) the National Savings Bank.

(3) An authority must secure that the deposit-taker may not exercise a right of set-off in relation
to the account referred to in paragraph (1) in respect of any other account held by the authority or
any party connected to the authority.

Investment strategy statement

7.—(1) An authority must, after taking proper advice, formulate an investment strategy which
must be in accordance with guidance issued from time to time by the Secretary of State.

(2) The authority’s investment strategy must include—
(a) arequirement to invest fund money in a wide variety of investments;

(b) the authority’s assessment of the suitability of particular investments and types of
investments;

(c) the authority’s approach to risk, including the ways in which risks are to be assessed and
managed;

(d) the authority’s approach to pooling investments, including the use of collective
investment vehicles and shared services;

(e) the authority’s policy on how social, environmental and corporate governance
considerations are taken into account in the selection, non-selection, retention and
realisation of investments; and

(f) the authority’s policy on the exercise of the rights (including voting rights) attaching to
investments.

(3) The authority’s investment strategy must set out the maximum percentage of the total value
of all investments of fund money that it will invest in particular investments or classes of
investment.

(4) The authority’s investment strategy may not permit more than 5% of the total value of all
investments of fund money to be invested in entities which are connected with that authority
within the meaning of section 212 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act
2007(d).

(5) The authority must consult such persons as it considers appropriate as to the proposed
contents of its investment strategy.

(6) The authority must publish a statement of its investment strategy formulated under paragraph
(1) and the first such statement must be published no later than 1st April 2017.

(7) The authority must review and if necessary revise its investment strategy from time to time,
and at least every 3 years, and publish a statement of any revisions.

(8) The authority must invest, in accordance with its investment strategy, any fund money that is
not needed immediately to make payments from the fund.

(a) S.I. 2001/544; article 5 was amended by S.I. 2002/682.

(b) Sub-paragraph (b) of paragraph (5) was substituted by S.I. 2006/3211 and then further substituted by S.I. 2013/3115.

(c) Paragraph 15 has been amended by S.1. 2003/2066, S.1. 2007/3253, 2012/1906, 2013/1881 and 2015/575.

(d) 2007 c. 28; section 212 was amended by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (c. 13) and there are
prospective amendments made by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (c. 2).

100



Directions by the Secretary of State

8.—(1) This regulation applies in relation to an authority’s investment functions under these
Regulations and the 2013 Regulations if the Secretary of State is satisfied that the authority is
failing to act in accordance with guidance issued under regulation 7(1).

(2) Where this regulation applies in relation to an authority the Secretary of State may make a
direction requiring all or any of the following—

(a) that the authority make such changes to its investment strategy under regulation 7 as the
Secretary of State considers appropriate, within such period of time as is specified in the
direction;

(b) that the authority invest such assets or descriptions of assets as are specified in the
direction in such manner as is specified in the direction;

(c) that the investment functions of the authority under these Regulations and under the 2013
Regulations be exercised by the Secretary of State or a person nominated by the Secretary
of State for a period specified in the direction or for so long as the Secretary of State
considers appropriate;

(d) that the authority comply with any instructions of the Secretary of State or the Secretary
of State’s nominee in relation to the exercise of its investment functions under these
Regulations and the 2013 Regulations and provide such assistance as the Secretary of
State or the Secretary of State’s nominee may require for the purpose of exercising those
functions.

(3) Before making a decision whether to issue a direction under this regulation, and as to the
contents of any direction, the Secretary of State must consult the authority concerned.

(4) In reaching a decision whether to issue a direction under this regulation, and as to the
contents of any direction, the Secretary of State must have regard to such evidence of the manner
in which the authority is discharging or proposes to discharge its investment functions as is
reasonably available including—

(a) any report from an actuary appointed under section 13(4) of the Public Service Pensions
Act 2013 (employer contributions in funded schemes) or by the authority under
regulation 62 of the 2013 Regulations (actuarial valuations of pension funds);

(b) any report from the local pension board appointed by the authority or from the Local
Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board(a);

(c) any representations made by the authority in response to the consultation under paragraph
3
(d) any other evidence that the Secretary of State regards as relevant to whether the authority

has been complying with these Regulations or acting in accordance with guidance issued
under regulation 7(1).

(5) If the Secretary of State is of the opinion that additional information is required to enable a
decision to be taken whether to issue a direction under this regulation, or as to what any direction
should contain, the Secretary of State may carry out such inquiries as the Secretary of State
considers appropriate to obtain that information.

(6) An authority must comply with any request from the Secretary of State intended to facilitate
the obtaining of information under paragraph (5).

Investment managers

9.—(1) Instead of managing and investing fund money itself, an authority may appoint one or
more investment managers to manage and invest fund money, or any part of such money, on its
behalf.

(a) The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board is established by regulation 110 of the 2013 Regulations (which
was inserted by S.I. 2015/57).

101



(2) But the authority may only appoint an investment manager if the authority complies with
paragraphs (3) and (4).

(3) The authority must reasonably believe that the investment manager’s ability in and practical
experience of financial matters make that investment manager suitably qualified to make
investment decisions for it.

(4) The authority must take proper advice in relation to the appointment and the terms on which
the appointment is made.

Investments under section 11(1) of the Trustee Investments Act 1961

10. An authority to which section 11 of the Trustee Investments Act 1961(a) applies may invest,
without any restriction as to quantity, in any investment made in accordance with a scheme under
section 11(1) of that Act (which enables the Treasury to approve schemes for local authorities to
invest in collectively).

Consequential amendments

11.—(1) The 2013 Regulations are amended as follows.
(2) For regulation 57(1)(i) (pension fund annual report) substitute—

“(i) the current version of the investment strategy under regulation 7 (investment
strategy statement) of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management
and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016;”.

(3) For regulation 58(4)(b) (funding strategy statement) substitute—

“(b) the current version of the investment strategy under regulation 7 (investment
strategy statement) of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.”.

(4) For regulation 69(2)(b) (payment by Scheme employers to administering authorities)
substitute—

“(b) paragraph (1)(c) does not apply where the cost of the administration of the fund is
paid out of the fund under regulation 4(5) (management of a pension fund) of the
Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016.”.

Revocations and transitional provision

12.—(1) The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2009(b) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of
Funds) (Amendment) Regulations 2013(c) are revoked.

(2) Regulations 11 (investment policy and investment of pension fund money), 12 (statement of
investment principles), 14 (restrictions on investments), 15 (requirements for increased limits) of
and Schedule 1 (table of limits on investments) to the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 continue to have effect in relation to an
authority until the date when that authority first publishes its investment strategy statement under
regulation 7.

(3) For the period starting on 1st November 2016 and ending on whichever is the earlier of the
date the authority publishes its investment strategy statement under regulation 7, or 31st March
2017, regulation 7 applies to an authority only to the extent necessary to enable that authority to
formulate and publish its investment strategy statement.

(a) 1961 c. 62; section 11(1) was amended by the London Government Act 1963 (c. 4) and the Local Government Act 1985 (c.
51).

(b) S.1.2009/3093.

(¢) S.1.2013/410.

102



We consent to the making of these Regulations
David Evennett
Guto Bebb
Two of the Lords Commissioners of Her Majesty’s Treasury

Signed by authority of the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Marcus Jones
Parliamentary Under Secretary of State
21st September 2016 Department for Communities and Local Government

EXPLANATORY NOTE

(This note is not part of the Regulations)

These Regulations make provision in relation to the management and investment of pension funds
held by administering authorities required to maintain such funds by the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.

Regulations 2 and 3 respectively contain definitions and make provision that the restrictions
imposed by the regulations bind authorities which have the “power of general competence” in the
exercise of that power.

Regulations 4, 5 and 6 respectively set out which payments must be made into and out of the
pension fund, restrict powers of borrowing and require fund money to be in a separate account.

Regulations 7 and 8 respectively require authorities to publish an investment strategy in
accordance with guidance issued by the Secretary of State and enable the Secretary of State to
issue a direction to any authority which fails to comply with its statutory obligations as regards its
pension fund or which fails to act in accordance with the guidance.

Regulations 9 and 10 respectively allow for the appointment of investment managers and
investment in Treasury approved schemes.

Regulations 11 and 12 respectively make consequential amendments relating to the investment
strategy published under regulation 7 and transitional provisions.

No impact assessment has been produced because it has no impact on business, charities or
voluntary bodies and minimal impact on the public sector.

© Crown copyright 2016

Printed and published in the UK by The Stationery Office Limited under the authority and superintendence of Carol Tullo,
Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office and Queen’s Printer of Acts of Parliament.

103



ISBN 978-0-11-114997-3

£6.00
UK2016092116 09/2016 19585

http://www.legislation. gov. uk/id/uksi/2016/946 @l1780111" 149973

104



Agenda Item 13
Pages 105to0 118

Pension Board

Date of Meeting: 2 November 2016

Subject: Information Report — Statement of
Investment Principles / Investment
Strategy Statement

Responsible Officer: Dawn Calvert, Director of Finance

Exempt: No

Wards affected: All

DCLG: Local Government Pension
Scheme — Guidance on Preparing and
Maintaining an Investment Strategy
Statement

Enclosures:

Section 1 - Summary

Summary

This report advises the Board of the Local Government Pension Scheme —
Guidance on Preparing and Maintaining an Investment Strategy Statement

FOR INFOMATION

( ﬁé/?/‘fﬂaCDUNCIL )
105

LONDON



Section 2 - Report

1.

Prior to 1 November 2016, in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of
Funds) Regulations 2009, the Pension Fund Committee was required to
agree a Statement of Investment Principles. Its purpose was to outline
the principles and policies followed by the Committee in the
management of the Fund’s investments.

It was a requirement that the Statement be reviewed periodically and
certainly when strategic changes had been made to investment policies.
The Committee last reviewed the Statement at its meeting on 25
November 2015. This is the Statement under which the Fund
investments have been managed for the last year and is included in the
Annual Report and Financial Statements for 2015-16.

Elsewhere on the agenda the Board have considered a report entitled
“The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment
of Funds) Regulations 2016.”

That report advises the Board of the revocation of The Local
Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2009 and their replacement by The Local Government
Pension Scheme (Management of Funds) Regulations 2016.

The “2016” Regulations replace the requirement for a Statement of
Investment Principles by one for an Investment Strategy Statement.
Since the “2009” Regulations have been revoked there is little to be
gained from comparing the two since the Fund must comply with the
new Regulations as follows:

Investment strategy statement
7.—(1) An authority must, after taking proper advice, formulate an
investment strategy which must be in accordance with guidance issued
from time to time by the Secretary of State.
(2) The authority’s investment strateqgy must include—
(a) a requirement to invest fund money in a wide variety of
investments;
(b) the authority’s assessment of the suitability of particular
investments and types of investments;
(c) the authority’s approach to risk, including the ways in which risks
are to be assessed and managed;
(d) the authority’s approach to pooling investments, including the use
of collective investment vehicles and shared services;
(e) the authority’s policy on how social, environmental and corporate
governance considerations are taken into account in the selection,
non-selection, retention and realisation of investments; and
(f) the authority’s policy on the exercise of the rights (including voting
rights) attaching to investments.

106



(3) The authority’s investment strategy must set out the maximum
percentage of the total value of all investments of fund money that it
will invest in particular investments or classes of investment.

(4) The authority’s investment strateqy may not permit more than 5% of
the total value of all investments of fund money to be invested in
entities which are connected with that authority within the meaning of
section 212 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in
Health Act 2007.

(5) The authority must consult such persons as it considers appropriate
as to the proposed contents of its investment strategy.

(6) The authority must publish a statement of its investment strategy
formulated under paragraph (1) and the first such statement must be
published no later than 1st April 2017.

(7) The authority must review and if necessary revise its investment
strategy from time to time, and at least every 3 years, and publish a
statement of any revisions.

(8) The authority must invest, in accordance with its investment strategy,
any fund money that is not needed immediately to make payments
from the fund.

6. Alongside the Regulations DCLG have issued the attached document
entitled “Local Government Pension Scheme — Guidance on Preparing
and Maintaining an Investment Strategy Statement.”

7. The Guidance highlights the Regulations detailing the matters to be
included in the Investment Strategy Statement (Regulation 7 as copied
above) and the sanctions available to the Secretary of State (Regulation
8). It goes into further detail in respect of what is required under
Regulation 7(2)(a) to 7(2)(f).

8. Whilst many of these requirements are covered in the Fund’s current
Statement of Investment Principles a number are not. The Committee,
the Board, other employers and the Committee’s advisers will be
consulted over the next few months in order that the Committee can
agree the Investment Strategy Statement at their meeting of 7 March
2017. Comments are invited members of the Board either at the meeting
or subsequently.

Financial Implications
9. Whilst the implementation of the Statement of Investment Principles and
Investment Strategy Statement has major financial implications for the
Pension Fund there are none arising from this report.

Risk Management Implications

10. The risks arising from the management and investment of funds are
included in the Pension Fund risk register.

107



Equalities implications

11.

Whilst the Fund’s policy on how social, environmental and corporate
governance considerations are taken into account in the selection, non-
selection, retention and realisation of investments can have major
equalities implications there are no direct equalities implications arising
from this report.

Council Priorities

9.

Investment performance has a direct impact on the financial health of the
Pension Fund which directly affects the level of employer contribution
which then, in turn, affects the resources available for the Council’s
priorities

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

Name Dawn Calvert V] Director of Finance

Date: 20 October 2016

Ward Councillors notified: Not applicable as the

report is relevant to all
wards.

Section 4 - Contact Details

Contact: lan Talbot, Treasury and Pension Fund Manager
0208 424 1450

Background Papers — None

108




Dpartment for
Communities and
Local Government

Local Government Pension Scheme

Guidance on Preparing and Maintaining an Investment
Strategy Statement

September 2016
Department for Communities and Local Government

109



OGL

© Crown copyright, 2016
Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.

You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium,
under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this
licence,http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/ or write to the
Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU, or email:
psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.

This document/publication is also available on our website at www.gov.uk/dclg

If you have any enquiries regarding this document/publication, complete the form at
http://forms.communities.gov.uk/ or write to us at:

Department for Communities and Local Government
Fry Building

2 Marsham Street

London

SW1P 4DF

Telephone: 030 3444 0000

For all our latest news and updates follow us on Twitter: https://twitter.com/CommunitiesUK

September 2016
ISBN: 978-1-4098-4897-4

110



Foreword

This guidance has been prepared to assist administering authorities in the local
government pension scheme in England and Wales with the formulation, publication and
maintenance of their Investment Strategy Statement.

New investment regulationsto be introduced later this year will include a requirement for
administering authorities to publish new Investment Strategy Statements by 1% April 2017
in accordance with the guidance set out below.

Administering authorities will be required to act in accordance with the provisions in this
guidance when Regulation 7 of the Local Govenrment Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 comes into force.

Part 1

Introduction and background

This guidance has been prepared to assist administering authorities in the formulation,
publication and maintenance of their Investment Strategy Statement required by
Regulation 7 of The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of
Funds) Regulations 2016. Unless otherwise stated, references to regulations are to the
2016 Regulations.

An administering authority’s duty to prepare, maintain and review their Funding Strategy
Statement under Regulation 58 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations
2013 (“the 2013 Regulations”) is unaffected.

Statutory background

Regulation 7(1) requires an administering authority to formulate an investment strategy
which must be in accordance with guidance issued by the Secretary of State.

The Investment Strategy Statement required by Regulation 7 must include:-

a) A requirement to invest money in a wide variety of investments;

b) The authority’s assessment of the suitability of particular investments and types of
investments;

c) The authority’s approach to risk, including the ways in which risks are to be
measured and managed;

d) The authority’s approach to pooling investments, including the use of collective
investment vehicles and shared services;

e) The authority’s policy on how social, environmental or corporate governance
considerations are taken into account in the selection, non-selection, retention and
realisation of investments; and

111



f) The authority’s policy on the exercise of rights (including voting rights) attaching to
investments.

The Investment Strategy Statement must also set out the maximum percentage of the total
value of all investments of fund money that it will invest in particular investments or classes
of investment. This, in effect, replaces Schedule 1 to the Local Government Pension
Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (“the 2009
Regulations”).

Under Regulation 7(6) and (7), the statements must be published by 1 April 2017 and
then kept under review and revised from time to time and at least every three years.
Under transitional arrangements, key elements of the 2009 Regulations relating to
investment policies will continue in force until such time that the Investment Strategy
Statement under Regulation 7 is published.

Directions by the Secretary of State

Regulation 8 enables the Secretary of State to issue a Direction if he is satisfied that an
administering authority is failing to act in accordance with this guidance.

One of the main aims of the new investment regulations is to transfer investment decisions
and their consideration more fully to administering authorities within a new prudential
framework. Administering authorities will therefore be responsible for setting their policy on
asset allocation, risk and diversity, amongst other things. In relaxing the regulatory
framework for scheme investments, administering authorities will be expected to make
their investment decisions within a prudential framework with less central prescription. It is
important therefore that the regulations include a safeguard to ensure that this less
prescriptive approach is used appropriately and in the best long term interests of scheme
beneficiaries and taxpayers.

Where there is evidence to suggest that an authority is acting unreasonably, it may be
appropriate for the Secretary of State to consider intervention, but only where this is
justified and where the relevant parties have been consulted. Regulation 8 includes a
number of safeguards, including full consultation with the relevant authority, to ensure that
the proposed power is used appropriately, proportionately and only where justified by the
evidence.

The Secretary of State’s power of intervention does not interfere with the duty of elected
members under general public law principles to make investment decisions in the best
long-term interest of scheme beneficiaries and taxpayers.

The power of Direction can be used in all or any of the following ways:-

a) To require an administering authority to make changes to its investment strategy in
a given timescale;

b) To require an administering authority to invest assets as specified in the Direction;

c) To transfer the investment functions of an administering authority to the Secretary
of State or a person nominated by the Secretary of State; and

112



d) To require an administering authority to comply with any instructions from either the
Secretary of State or the appointed person in circumstances when the investment
function has been transferred.

Before issuing any Direction, the Secretary of State must consult the administering
authority concerned and before reaching a decision, must have regard to all relevant
evidence including reports under section 13(4) of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013;
reports from the scheme advisory board or from the relevant local pension board and any
representations made in response to the consultation with the relevant administering
authority. The Secretary of State also has the power to commission any other evidence or
additional information that is considered necessary.

General

Part 2 below sets out the guidance for authorities under each of the component parts of
Regulation 7. The specific requirements under each heading are shown at the end of
each sub section in a text box and in bold type. It is important to note, however, that these

lists are not exclusive and that administering authorities are also required to comply with
general public law principles and act within a prudential framework.

Part 2

Requlation 7(2) (a) - Investment of money in a wide variety of investments

A properly diversified portfolio of assets should include a range of asset classes to help
reduce overall portfolio risk. If a single investment class is not performing well,
performance should be balanced by other investments which are doing better at that time.
A diversified portfolio also helps to reduce volatility.

For example, the range of asset classes could include UK and overseas equities of
different sectors; bonds with varying maturity; alternative investment assets such as
private equity, infrastructure and cash instruments.

However, this guidance does not purport to prescribe the specific asset classes over which
fund monies must be diversified. This remains a decision for individual administering
authorities to make. Administering authorities are expected to be able to demonstrate that
those responsible for making investment decisions have taken and acted on proper advice
and that diversification decisions have been taken in the best long term interest of scheme
beneficiaries.

An administering authority must also be able to demonstrate that they review their
diversification policy from time to time to ensure that their overall target return is not put at
risk.

Summary of requirements

In formulating and maintaining their policy on diversification, administering authorities:-

e Must take proper advice

113



e Must set out clearly the balance between different types of investments
e Must identify the risks associated with their overall investment strategy
e Must periodically review their policy to mitigate against any such risks

Requlation 7(2)(b) - The suitability of particular investments and types of
investments

The concept of suitability is a critical test for whether or not a particular investment should
be made. Although individual investment classes will have varying degrees of suitability in
the context of an authority’s funding and investment strategies, the overall aim of the fund
must be to consider suitability against the need to meet pension obligations as they fall
due.

Assessing the suitability of different investment classes involves a number of factors
including, for example, performance benchmarks, appetite for risk, policy on non-financial
factors and perhaps most importantly, funding strategy.

What constitutes suitability is clearly a matter for individual administering authorities to
consider and decide in the light of their own funding and investment strategies, but there is
a clear expectation that the assessment should be broadly consistent across all
administering authorities. Administering authorities must therefore take and act on proper
advice in assessing the suitability of their investment portfolio and give full details of that
assessment in their Investment Strategy Statement.

Summary of requirements

In formulating their policy on the suitability of particular investments and types of
investments, administering authorities:-

e Must take proper advice

e Should ensure that their policy on asset allocation is compatible with
achieving their locally determined solvency target

e Must periodically review the suitability of their investment portfolio to ensure
that returns, risk and volatility are all appropriately managed and are
consistent with their overall investment strategy

Requlation 7(2)(c) - The approach to risk, including the ways in which risks are to be
measured and managed

The appetite of individual administering authorities for taking risk when making investment
decisions can only be a matter for local consideration and determination, subject to the
aim and purpose of a pension fund to maximise the returns from investment returns within
reasonable risk parameters.

Some of the key risks that an administering authority needs to be aware include financial,
demographic or regulatory risks. A detailed summary of the identification of all risks and
counter-measures to mitigate against them is beyond the scope of this guidance, but
administering authorities will continue to have regard to the requirement under Regulation

114



58 of the 2013 Regulations to have regard to the “Guidance on Preparing and Maintaining
a Funding Strategy Statement” published by CIPFA, which includes a section on risk and
the ways in which it can be measured and managed.

Summary of requirements

In formulating their policy on their approach to risk, administering authorities:-

e Must take proper advice

e Should clearly state their appetite for risk

e Should be aware of the risks that may impact on their overall funding and
investment strategies

e Should take measures to counter those risks

e Should periodically review the assumptions on which their investment
strategy is based

e Should formulate contingency plans to limit the impact of risks that might
materialise

Requlation 7(2)(d) - The approach to pooling investments, including the use of
collective investment vehicles and shared services

All authorities must commit to a suitable pool to achieve benefits of scale. Administering
authorities must confirm their chosen investment pool meets the investment reform and
criteria published in November 2015, or to the extent that it does not, that Government is
content for it to continue.

Any change which results in failure to meet the criteria must be reported by the
administering authority, and/or pool, to the Secretary of State and the Scheme Advisory
Board.

Administering authorities should set out their approach to pooling and the proportion of
assets that will be invested through the pool. This must include the structure and
governance arrangements and the mechanisms by which the authority can hold the pool to
account.

Where services are shared or jointly procured, the administering authority must set out the
rationale underpinning this and the cost benefit of this, as opposed to pooling.

Administering authorities must provide a summary of assets to be held outside of the pool,
and how this demonstrates value for money. The progress of asset transfers to the pool
must be reported annually against implementation plans and submitted to the Scheme
Advisory Board. Where it is possible that an asset could be pooled in the future, authorities
must set a date for review and criteria that need to be met before the asset will be pooled.

Summary of requirements

In formulating and maintaining their approach to pooling investment, including the use of
collective investment vehicles and shared services, an administering authority must:-

115



e Confirm the pooling arrangements meet the criteria set out in the November
2015 investment reform and criteria guidance at
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file
1479925/criteria_and_guidance_for_investment_reform.pdf, or have been
otherwise agreed by the Government

e Notify the Scheme Advisory Board and the Secretary of State of any changes
which result in failure to meet the criteria

e Set out the proportion of assets that will be invested through pooling

e Set out the structure and governance arrangements of the pool and the
mechanisms by which the authority can hold the pool to account

e Set out the services that will be shared or jointly procured

e Provide a summary of assets that the authority has determined are not
suitable for investing through the pool along with its rationale for doing so,
and how this demonstrates value for money;

e Regularly review any assets, and no less than every 3 years, that the authority
has previously determined should be held outside of the pool, ensuring this
continues to demonstrate value for money

e Submit an annual report on the progress of asset transfers to the Scheme

Advisory Board

Requlation 7(2)(e) - How social, environmental or corporate governance
considerations are taken into account in the selection, non-selection, retention and
realisation of investments

When making investment decisions, administering authorities must take proper advice and
act prudently. In the context of the local government pension scheme, a prudent approach
to investment can be described as a duty to discharge statutory responsibilities with care,
skill, prudence and diligence. This approach is the standard that those responsible for
making investment decisions must operate.

Although administering authorities are not subject to trust law, those responsible for
making investment decisions must comply with general legal principles governing the
administration of scheme investments. They must also act in accordance with ordinary
public law principles, in particular, the ordinary public law of reasonableness. They risk
challenge if a decision they make is so unreasonable that no person acting reasonably
could have made it.

The law is generally clear that schemes should consider any factors that are financially
material to the performance of their investments, including social, environmental and

116



corporate governance factors, and over the long term, dependent on the time horizon over
which their liabilities arise.

However, the Government has made clear that using pension policies to pursue boycotts,
divestment and sanctions against foreign nations and UK defence industries are
inappropriate, other than where formal legal sanctions, embargoes and restrictions have
been put in place by the Government.

Although schemes should make the pursuit of a financial return their predominant concern,
they may also take purely non-financial considerations into account provided that doing so
would not involve significant risk of financial detriment to the scheme and where they have
good reason to think that scheme members would support their decision.

Investments that deliver social impact as well as a financial return are often described as
“social investments”. In some cases, the social impact is simply in addition to the financial
return; for these investments the positive social impact will always be compatible with the
prudent approach. In other cases, some part of the financial return may be forgone in
order to generate the social impact. These investments will also be compatible with the
prudent approach providing administering authorities have good reason to think scheme
members share the concern for social impact, and there is no risk of significant financial
detriment to the fund.

Summary of requirements

In formulating and maintaining their policy on social, environmental and corporate
governance factors, an administering authority:-

e Must take proper advice

e Should explain the extent to which the views of their local pension board and
other interested parties who they consider may have an interest will be taken
into account when making an investment decision based on non-financial
factors

e Must explain the extent to which non-financial factors will be taken into
account in the selection, retention and realisation of investments

e Should not pursue policies that are contrary to UK foreign policy or UK
defence policy

e Should explain their approach to social investments

Requlation 7(2)(f) - The exercise of rights (including voting rights) attaching to
investments

The long-term investment interests of administering authorities are enhanced by the
highest standards of corporate governance and corporate responsibility amongst the
companies in which they invest. Poor governance can negatively impact shareholder
value.

Stewardship aims to promote the long term success of companies in such a way that the

ultimate providers of capital also prosper. Stewardship activities include monitoring and
engaging with companies on matters such as strategy, performance, risk, capital structure

117



and corporate governance, including culture and remuneration. Engagement by
administering authorities is purposeful and can identify problems through continuing
dialogue with companies on these matters as well as on issues that are the immediate
subject of votes at general meetings.

Engagement enables administering authorities as long term shareholders to exert a
positive influence on companies to promote strong governance, manage risk, increase
accountability and drive improvements in the management of environmental, social and
corporate governance issues.

Administering authorities are encouraged to consider the best way to engage with
companies to promote their long-term success, either directly, in partnership with other
investors or through their investment managers, and explain their policy on stewardship
with reference to the Stewardship Code. Administering authorities should become
Signatories to the Code and state how they implement the seven principles and guidance
of the Code, which apply on a “comply or explain” basis.

Concern has been expressed in the past about the scope of Regulation 12(2)(g) of the
2009 Regulations which, in effect, allowed each administering authority to decide whether
or not to adopt a policy on the exercise of the rights attaching to investments, including
voting rights. To increase awareness and promote engagement, Regulation 7(2)(f) now
requires every administering authority to formulate a policy that reflects their stewardship
responsibilities.

Summary of requirements

In formulating their policy on the exercise of rights, administering authorities:-

e Must give reasons in their Investment Strategy Statement for not adopting a
policy of exercising rights, including voting rights, attaching to investments

e Should, where appropriate, explain their policy on stewardship with reference
to the Stewardship Code

e Should strongly encourage their fund managers, if any, to vote their company
shares in line with their policy under Regulation 7(2)(f)

¢ May wish to appoint an independent proxy voting agent to exercise their
proxy voting and monitor the voting activity of the managers, if any, and for
reports on voting activity to be submitted annually to the administering
authority

e Should publish a report of voting activity as part of their pension fund annual
report under Regulation 57 of the 2013 Regulations

118



Agenda Item 14
Pages 119 to 142

Pension Board

Date of Meeting:

Subject:

Responsible Officer:
Exempt:

Wards Affected:

Enclosures:

2 November 2016

Information Report - Pension Fund
Committee Meetings 21 June 2016 and
6 September 2016

Dawn Calvert, Director of Finance
No

All

Minutes of Pension Fund Committee 21
June 2016

Minutes of Pension Fund Committee 6
September 2016

Section 1 - Summary

Summary

The report sets out the matters considered by the Pension Fund Committee at
its meetings on 21 June 2016 and 6 September 2016, attaches the minutes of
the meetings and invites the Board to agree any comments it might wish to

make to the Committee.

( ﬁé/?/‘fﬂaCDUNCIL )
119

LONDON



Section 2 - Report

1. Matters considered by the Pension Fund Committee at its meeting on
21 June 2016

Local Government Pension Scheme Pooling Arrangements Update
London Borough of Harrow Pension Fund: Draft Annual Report and
Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2016
London Borough of Harrow Pension Fund Annual Performance Review
Quarterly Trigger Monitoring Q1 2016
Investment Strategy
Update on Regular ltems:
- Draft work programme
- Performance of fund managers
- Issues raised by Pension Board
Pension Fund Risk Register
Annual Review of Internal Controls at Longview Partners
Actuarial Valuation 2016
Investment Manager Monitoring

A copy of the minutes of the meeting is attached

2. Matters considered by the Pension Fund Committee at its meeting on
6 September 2016

Actuarial Valuation 2016
Performance Measurement Services
London Borough of Harrow Pension Fund: Management Expenses
2015/16
Local Government Pension Scheme Pooling Arrangements Update
Currency Hedging
Quarterly Trigger Monitoring Q2 2016
Update on Regular ltems:
- Draft work programme
- Performance of fund managers
- Issues raised by Pension Board
Annual Review of Internal Controls at Insight Investment
Property Opportunities
Investment Manager Monitoring

A copy of the minutes of the meeting is attached

Financial Implications

3. Whilst this report discusses numerous matters relevant to the financial
standing of the Pension Fund there are no financial implications arising
directly from it.

120



Risk Management Implications

4. Relevant risks are included in the Pension Fund Risk Register.
Equalities implications

5. There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.
Council Priorities

6. The financial health of the Pension Fund directly affects the level of

employer contribution which in turn affects the resources available for the
Council’s priorities

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

Name: Dawn Calvert |/ Director of Finance

Date: 20 October 2016

Ward Councillors notified: Not applicable as the
report is relevant to all
wards.

Section 4 - Contact Details

Contact: lan Talbot, Treasury and Pension Fund Manager
0208 424 1450

Background Papers - None

121




This page is intentionally left blank

122



LONDON

PENSION FUND COMMITTEE

21 JUNE 2016

Chair: * Councillor Nitin Parekh

Councillors: * Jo Dooley * Bharat Thakker
* Norman Stevenson

Co-optee * Howard Bluston * John Royle

(Non-voting): Pamela Belgrave

[Note: Other Attendance: (1) John Royle attended in an observer role, as the
representative of Harrow UNISON;

(2) Honorary Alderman Richard Romain and Colin Robertson attended as
Independent Advisers to the Committee.

(3) Colin Cartwright of Aon Hewitt attended in an advisory role, as the
Council’s Investment Adviser.

(4) Richard Harbord, Chair of the Pension Board, and Gerald Balabanoff, Vice-
Chair of the Pension Board, attended the meeting as observers. They left the
room prior to the consideration of confidential items 18 and 19 on the agenda.

(5) Gemma Sefton, Hymans Robertson, attended the meeting as Council’s
Actuary.]

*

Denotes Member present

130. Attendance by Reserve Members

RESOLVED: To note that there were no Reserve Members in attendance.

Pension Fund Committee - 21 June 2016 123 - 68 -



131. Declarations of Interest
RESOLVED: To note that the following interests were declared:

All Agenda ltems

Councillor Norman Stevenson, a Member on the Committee, declared a non-
pecuniary interest in that he was a Director of Cathedral Independent
Financial Planning Ltd., and that his wife was a member of Harrow Council’s
Local Government Pension Scheme. He added that some of his clients were
also members of Pension Schemes. He would remain in the room whilst the
matters were considered and voted upon.

Howard Bluston, a non-voting co-optee, declared a non-pecuniary interest in
that he was Chair of Edward Harvist Charity, which was managed by
BlackRock Investment Management. He added that he had regular dealings
with Aon Hewitt, the Council’s Investment Adviser, and that he had
represented the Committee at the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum. He
would remain in the room whilst the items were discussed and make
contributions as a non-voting co-optee on the Committee.

Gerald Balabanoff, Vice-Chair of the Pension Board and Scheme Members’
Representative on the Board, declared that he was present as an observer.

He would remain in the room to listen to the discussion except for Part Il items
on the agenda.

132. Appointment of Vice-Chair

RESOLVED: To appoint Councillor Bharat Thakker as Vice-Chair of the
Committee for the 2016/2017 Municipal Year.

133. Minutes
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2016, be
taken as read and signed as a correct record, subject to the following

amendments:

(1) Howard Bluston (Non-Voting Co-optee) and John Royle (Harrow
UNISON) being marked as ‘present’ at the meeting;

(2)  Minute 121: 1% Paragraph, Colin Robertson’s name being replaced
with that of Colin Cartwright and Councillor Councillor Bharat Thakker
being included as part of the small group.

134. Public Questions, Petitions and Deputations

RESOLVED: To note that no public questions were put, or petitions or
deputations received at this meeting.

- 69 - 124 Pension Fund Committee - 21 June 2016



135.

Pension Fund Committee - 21 June 2016 125 -70 -

RESOLVED ITEMS

Information Report - Local Government Pension Scheme Pooling
Arrangements Update

The Committee received a report of the Director of Finance, which provided
an update on the development of the pooling arrangements and the London
CIV (Collective Investment Vehicle), and invited comments on the Fund’s draft
submission to the CIV as part of its submission to DCLG (Department of
Communities and Local Government) by 15 July 2016.

An officer highlighted:

o the main conclusions arising from the Harrow Review, as set out in
paragraph 8 of the report, which included the returns and associated
costs;

o that the DCLG tended to communicate with embryonic pools rather

than individual administering authorities.

The officer circulated two pages titled ‘London CIV — Individual Borough
Response’ setting out an updated version of the London Borough of Harrow
response. The officer referred to the circulated pages and sought comments
on the summaries. He added that he had liaised with Colin Cartwright (Aon
Hewitt) and Colin Robertson (Independent Adviser) in this regard and
reported as follows:

o the assets on page 1 as at 31 March 2015 showed an amount of Liquid
Assets of £653.383m and llliquid Assets of £21.462m, comprising
those assets which ought to remain outside the CIV. In terms of the
transition timeline for individual funds, 44% of the Harrow Fund would
be invested in the CIV by the end of 2016 and 58% by the end of 2018.
The officer explained that this was an aspiration but there was a need
to be satisfied with the opportunities available;

o page 2 of the circulation showing ‘Indicative Sub-Funds Available on
CIV’ had been produced by the CIV and there was concern as to
whether sufficient opportunities would be available for all Funds. In
2016, officers were led to believe that the CIV would let the contract to
Longview;

o if Longview sub-fund was set up in 2016, the transition would be
straightforward. Transition costs would be low during the first year. An
opportunity for transition from Oldfields could arise in 2018;

o a satisfactory emerging markets fund needed to be available before
any transition from GMO could be considered;

o if funds became available in 2016, it would be possible to carry out the
transition from State Street Global Services. Colin Cartwright (Aon
Hewitt) reported that various Funds were being negotiated.



-71-

Colin Robertson (Independent Adviser) reported that the issues were wide
and that only three funds were available currently. It was not possible to
progress as Fund Managers were unknown.

Members noted that there were no alternatives except for a full or 90% of
transition of asset management to the CIV by 2020. Significant transition was
expected by 2018 or, possibly, earlier by 2017 but it was a moving feast. The
Secretary of State could intervene if the government was not satisfied with the
Council’'s performance. There would not be any constraints on the
management of the Strategy but constraints would exist on the Manage
Strategy. The Asset Class Strategy was the more important of all the
strategies. Any influence on the CIV would be through the Joint Committee
which currently consisted of 32 Member authorities but might increase to 33.
A view was that the CIV ought to offer Funds that were acceptable to Harrow.

Richard Romain (Independent Adviser) asked if the investment structure
would need to change and enquired about the soft/hard close methodology.
He commented that the Pension Fund Strategy was risk averse and his
message to Members of the Committee was that they needed to choose a
strategy which fitted in with its complementarity.

Colin Cartwright (Aon Hewitt) advised that changes in Fund Managers could
be made at any time and that such changes would incur transition costs but
that it ought to be a judgement call. The majority of the assets for the next
few years fitted in with complementarity set. It was intended that the
Investment Strategy would be retained and that it would be for the CIV to
ensure that Harrow’s Fund was not being constrained. In relation to
exercising a choice for a Global Equity Manager, it was expected that the CIV
would identify the best managers and present them per se having carried out
various checks, such as monitoring and negotiations on bulk buying.
Members expressed concern about the CIV’s direction of travel and
expressed uncertainty.

Members returned to the papers circulated at the meeting and were generally
satisfied with the draft response and

RESOLVED: That the report be noted, including the comments set out in the
additional pages circulated at the meeting except that page 1 of the papers
circulated be amended to read:

“Subject to suitable investment products being available the timeline we
envisage is, by the end of 2016, 44% of our Fund being invested in the CIV,
by the end of 2018, 568% and by the end of 2020, 96%. Subject to meeting
our strategic objectives, we may/should consider putting up to 10% of our
Fund in infrastructure investments, including local developments, but we are
likely to prefer long term debt infrastructure rather than start up equity”.

126 Pension Fund Committee - 21 June 2016



136.

Pension Fund Committee - 21 June 2016 127 -72-

London Borough of Harrow Pension Fund: Draft Annual Report and
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Members received a report of the Director of Finance setting out the draft
Pension Fund Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2016.

An officer outlined the following key points:
o net assets of the Fund had decreased and its performance was low in
the local authority annual league table of investment returns. Harrow

was ranked 87 out of 90;

o the number of pensioners had increased, including the number of
deferred pensioners whilst active members remained stable;

o management fees, including fees charged by investment managers,
were £3.5m and a further report would be submitted to the next
meeting;

o the major asset classes had performed poorly and the Fund’s

investments reflected this disappointing performance producing an
investment return of -1.9%;

o the number of employer organisations within the Harrow Pension Fund,
including the Council, would have a significant influence on the Fund;

o despite a reduction in net assets of fund available to fund benefits at
the period end from 2014/15 to 2015/16, this was not considered to be
a huge loss and would be an issue for Hymans Robertson LLP
(Council’s Actuary) to address as part of their valuation exercise.

A Member commented that the deferred membership figures were a worrying
trend and asked if this was typical of local authorities. In response, Gemma
Sefton (Hymans Robertson LLP) drew attention to the changes in
membership and that, over time, active membership had fallen due to
redundancies but had now stabilised.

Another Member asked how the increase in cash outflows due to the impact
of falling membership, longevity and pension increases would be factored into
the Investment Strategy. Colin Cartwright (Aon Hewitt) explained that the CIV
would explore alternatives and possibly move to income generating
investments. The intention was to achieve long term growth and, over time,
the Investment Strategy may need adjusting and consideration would be
given as part of the valuation exercise.

Richard Romain (Independent Adviser) queried the Committee’s Terms of
Reference set out on page 105 of the report and an officer undertook to check
these. He also referred to the section on Risk Management on page 110 of
the report and suggested a statement on risk, particularly decision-making risk
and reference to meetings being open to members of the public. John Royle



(Unison) asked about the number of officers who received severance
packages of £100k. Colin Robertson (Independent Adviser) referred to asset
risk and its importance to liabilities. He suggested that performance over a
period of 3/5 years be included under Risk Management and that the
distributions from Pantheon be reviewed.

RESOLVED: That the report and the comments be noted.

137. Information Report - London Borough of Harrow Pension Fund Annual
Performance Review

The Committee received a report of the Director of Finance including a report
from the Fund’s Performance Measurement Adviser, State Street Global
Services (WM Performance Services), on the performance of the Fund for
period ending 31 March 2016.

An officer referred to the disappointing performance of the Fund , including its
position on the league table discussed at Minute 136 above. He drew
particular attention to paragraph 4 of the report about the cessation of
performance measurement services previously provided by State Street
Global Services and that there was a possibility that another organisation
would take over the service. Members noted that the Director of Finance had
requested the data going back to 1974 from State Street Global Services so
that it could be released to another organisation. The date would only relate
to performance.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
138. Quarterly Trigger Monitoring Q1 2016

The Committee received a report from the Fund’s investment adviser, Aon
Hewitt, on Quarterly Trigger Monitoring seeking agreement to no de-risking
actions at this stage.

Colin Cartwright (Aon Hewitt) informed Members that following their request
for quarterly reports on the consideration of an LDI (Liability Driven
Investment which was designed to manage liabilities in line with inflation)
Strategy, the report before them provided an update on the status of three
de-risking triggers which were being monitored: the Fund’s funding level; yield
triggers based on the 20 year spot yield and view of bond yields.

He added that having put these triggers in place, including a fourth trigger
which was not market related, his considered opinion was that there was no
need to proceed with an LDI mandate at present. Additionally, the price of
Bonds was fair and LDI's would be expensive. However, this matter ought to
remain on the agenda for future consideration.

In response to questions, Colin Cartwright replied as follows:

o at present, the London CIV (Collective Investment Vehicle) did not
have an LDI Mandate that would be suitable;

-73- 128 Pension Fund Committee - 21 June 2016



139.

140.

Pension Fund Committee - 21 June 2016 129 -74 -

° an LDI Mandate would be difficult to implement in short time and it was
dependant on the financial markets;

° overall, the Harrow Fund had not performed badly in comparison with
other authorities over the last 3/5 years but that 2015/16 was a poor
year;

o a greater appetite of risk may lead to increased returns but there were

alternative ways of creating yield and these were being examined,
including mitigation and volatility.

Members noted that a move towards an LDl Mandate would be a major
decision for the Committee to take over time and that they ought to be familiar
with its functions and workings. John Royle (Unison) asked why the Pension
Fund was not used to build houses. It was noted that such action would entail
a strategic decision. Richard Romain (Independent Member) added that the
risks involved would be high.

An officer reported that he would capture the discussion relating to ‘local
investment and housing’ as part of the training session on ‘Infrastructure’ prior
to the next meeting of the Committee.

RESOLVED: That no de-risking actions be taken at this stage.
Information Report - Investment Strategy

The Committee received a report of the Director of Finance setting out the
report from the Fund’s investment adviser, Aon Hewitt, on the Fund’s current
investment strategy including expected return and risk.

The Committee noted that the portfolio had been modelled over a 10-year
period in order to provide a headline assessment of the expected return and
volatility for each strategy. The report had been provided to Hymans
Robertson LLP, Council’s Actuary.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
Pension Fund Committee - Update on Regular Items

The Committee received a report of the Director of Finance updating
Members on the draft Work Programme, performance of fund managers for
the previous quarter and issues raised by the Pension Board. The report
invited comments and agreement of the draft Work programme and
highlighted any significant issues raised by the Pension Board.

It was noted that the issues raised by the Pension Board had been highlighted
with Hymans Robertson LLP (Council’'s Actuary) and that these matters -
methodology and level of contribution — would be addressed by their
representative, Gemma Sefton, as part of her presentation on a later item.



A typographical amendment was made to paragraph 8 of the report. A
Member agreed that 13 October 2016, as proposed, was a good date to ‘Meet
the Managers’ but that it ought to be held during the afternoon between
2.00 pm - 7.00 pm. In response to a question, an officer outlined the role of
the Pension Board which was to provide an oversight and act as a critical
friend to the Committee.

RESOLVED: That the Work Programme for the period up to March 2017 be
agreed, subject to the comments above.

141. Information Report - Pension Fund Risk Register

The Committee received a report of the Director of Finance setting out the
revised Risk Register for the Pension Fund. An officer reported that whilst the
revised Risk Register was of a similar nature to the versions considered in
March and July 2015 and stressed that none of the risks were in the ‘red’
zone. Risk Numbers 8, 9 and 16, details of which were set out below, were
listed as ‘critical’, which meant that the situation would be critical if the risk
were to occur but that the chances of such risks happening were low:

Risk 8: The Fund’s assets were not sufficient to meet its long term liabilities.
Fall in returns on government bonds leading to rise in value placed on
liabilities and an increase in deficit.

Risk 9: The relative movement in the value of the Fund’s assets did not
match the relative movement in the Fund’s liabilities.

Risk 16: Long term investment strategy in relation to fund liabilities was
inappropriate.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

142. Information Report - Annual Review of Internal Controls at Longview
Partners

The Committee received a report of the Director of Finance summarising the
contents of the latest internal controls report from Longview Partners LLP.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
143. Exclusion of the Press and Public

RESOLVED: That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the
following items of business, on the grounds that they involve the likely
disclosure of confidential information in breach of an obligation of confidence,
or of exempt information as defined in Part | of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972:

-75- 130 Pension Fund Committee - 21 June 2016



144.

Pension Fund Committee - 21 June 2016 131 - 76 -

Agenda Title Description of Exempt Information
Item No

18. Information Report — Information under paragraph 3 of
Actuarial Valuation Part | of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended),
relating to the financial or business
affairs of any particular
person (including the authority

holding that information).

19. Information Report — Information under paragraph 3 of
Investment Manager Part| of Schedule 12A to the Local
Monitoring Government Act 1972 (as amended),

relating to the financial or business
affairs of any particular

person (including the authority
holding that information).

Information Report - Actuarial Valuation 2016

The Committee received a confidential report of the Director of Finance and a
presentation from Gemma Sefton, Hyman Robertson LLP, on progress on the
triennial valuation to date and, in particular, on the consideration of the
valuation assumptions.

Gemma Sefton circulated a presentation and undertook to explain the
rationale behind other matters raised during the meeting. Her presentation
included an overview of the 2016 Valuation and covered the Funding Strategy
and financial, demographic and pre-retirement assumptions. During her
presentation on the ‘Discount Rate: Modelling of different combinations’,
Richard Romain (Independent Adviser) sought assurances that the figures
had not been overtly influenced. The Director of Finance stated that the
Council worked closely with Hymans Robertson LLP (Council’'s Actuary)
which had taken a prudent approach and due diligence had been applied in
this regard and one which she supported.

Gemma Sefton referred to the Investment and Funding Strategies and how
assumptions had been arrived at and on the basis of all available information.
She added that long term targets were key and whilst contribution rates could
be smoothed, she had not experienced such pressures and, over time, the
justification for rates would need to be evidenced. She added that her role
was to comment on the asset allocation and she understood that the asset
strategy retained flexibility.

Gemma Sefton responded to additional questions on stewardship, 100%
funding, deficits, inflation assumptions, including whether these were forward
looking or based on historical information, and suitability of investments. She
referred to the contribution holiday offered some time in the past and which
had been taken up by Harrow, the responsibility to future generations of
taxpayers, and sustainability and deliverability of the Fund which remained the
remit of the Director of Finance. She also explained why and how the RPI



(Retails Price Index)/CPI (Consumer Price Index) were used in relation to
inflation assumptions and the conservative approach taken.

The Committee noted that future reports to the Committee would address
inflation assumptions but that relevant information would be circulated shortly.

The Chair thanked Gemma Sefton for her presentation.
RESOLVED: That the presentation be received and noted.
145. Information Report - Investment Manager Monitoring

The Committee received a confidential report of the Director of Finance
setting out Aon Hewitt’'s quarterly report on Harrow’s investment managers.
All managers were rated either “Buy” or “Qualified” although the ratings of one
of the managers were being assessed as part of the annual research process.
Colin Cartwright of Aon Hewitt drew Members’ attention to a ‘Flash Report’
circulated previously and how his investment team had arrived at the revised
grading due to the investment processes and risk controls, including the style
of management.

Members discussed their options, including Value Managers and whether the

CIV (Collective Investment Vehicle) might be of any assistance. The

complementarity approach was referred to again and any losses involved,

including fees. Members discussed their options and

RESOLVED: That

(1)  a further report be submitted to the September 2016 meeting of the
Committee and it be noted that Members would be meeting several of
the Fund Managers subsequent to the meeting;

() in the interim, Members be briefed if the position deteriorated.

(Note: The meeting, having commenced at 6.31 pm, closed at 9.40 pm).

(Signed) COUNCILLOR NITIN PAREKH
Chair

-77 - 132 Pension Fund Committee - 21 June 2016



LONDON

__

PENSION FUND COMMITTEE

6 SEPTEMBER 2016

Chair: * Councillor Nitin Parekh

*

Councillors: Jo Dooley

Norman Stevenson

Co-optee * Howard Bluston
(Non-voting):

Trade Union
Observers:

John Royle

Independent * Mr C Robertson

Advisers:
* Honorary Alderman
R Romain
Others: * Mr C Cartwright

* Ms G Sefton

*

Denotes Member present
T Denotes apologies received

146. Attendance by Reserve Members

* Bharat Thakker

T Pamela Belgrave

Independent

Adviser

Independent

Adviser

Council's Aon Hewitt

Investment Adviser

Council's Actuary Hymans
Robertson

RESOLVED: To note that there were no Reserve Members in attendance.

147. Declarations of Interest

RESOLVED: To note that the following interests were declared:

Pension Fund Committee - 6 September 2016 133

-78 -



All Agenda ltems

Councillor Norman Stevenson, a Member on the Committee, declared a non-
pecuniary interest in that he was a Director of Cathedral Independent
Financial Planning Ltd., and that his wife was a member of Harrow Council’s
Local Government Pension Scheme. He added that some of his clients were
also members of Pension Schemes. He would remain in the room whilst the
matters were considered and voted upon.

Howard Bluston, a non-voting co-optee, declared a non-pecuniary interest in
that he was Chair of Edward Harvist Charity, which was managed by
BlackRock Investment Management. He also attended the PLSA North
London Branch meetings. He would remain in the room whilst the items were
discussed and make contributions as a non-voting co-optee on the
Committee.

148. Minutes

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 June 2016 be taken
as read and signed as a correct record, subject to the following amendments:

Minute 135

Page 7 of the agenda — fourth bullet point, should end ‘Longview be included’;
Page 8 of the agenda — second paragraph starting "Members noted ...." in
same section should have "Asset Class" added to read "There would not be
any constraints on the management of the Asset Class Strategy...." and in the
same sentence it should say "Manager" rather than ‘Manage’;

Minute 136

Page 9 of the agenda - fourth paragraph, should read "falling active
membership". The last paragraph in the same section, should be "referred to
asset risk and the importance of assessing it relative to the liabilities".

Minute 138
Page 10 of the agenda - second paragraph, should read "which was
designed to manage assets in line with the liabilities, in particular with regard
to inflation and interest rates".

149. Public Questions, Petitions and Deputations

RESOLVED: To note that no public questions were put, or petitions or
deputations received at this meeting.

RESOLVED ITEMS
150. Information Report - Actuarial Valuation 2016
The Committee received a presentation from Gemma Sefton, the Actuary,

Hymans Robertson LLP, in relation to the progress on the triennial valuation
to date and, in particular, on the initial results and the next steps.

-79- 134 Pension Fund Committee - 6 September 2016



Gemma Sefton referred to her presentation slides on ‘The London Borough of
Harrow Pension Fund - 2016 Valuation - Initial Whole Fund Results’ and
provided a 2016 Progress Report by recapping on the steps taken to date,
valuation results and the next steps. She made the following key points:

. the Fund had taken more time to review due to various changes but
nevertheless was ahead of most of Hyman'’s other LGPS clients;

. there had been an upturn in the job market which had helped the
funding level through the split of active/deferred/pensioner members

. the funding level had risen and the deficit had fallen in cash terms. The
deficit at the last valuation was £234m compared to £228m at the
currentl valuation;

° risk factors needed to be appreciated and she drew attention to the
presentation slide on page 9 ‘Why has the funding position changed?’.

° the ‘Membership Experience’, presentation slide at page 10, showed
that pay growth and pension increased over the last three years were
lower than had been assumed in 2013 with the key driver being lower
than expected inflation. The number of ill-health retirements were
fewer than expected, 31 instead of 95;

° the changes in mortality rates assumed had previously been discussed
and covering the mortality assumption in a training session was
recommended:;

o the ‘Experience since 2013’ presentation slides showed that falling

yields in government bonds had increased liabilities but that asset
growth had been stronger than expected,;

° the ‘Outlook for Financial Markets’ showed a heightened uncertainty
and increased sterling volatility but many of such concerns pre-dated
Brexit;

o further work on the employers’ contribution rates was underway and

would be presented at the next meeting of the Committee with
suggested changes to the existing strategy and contributions;

o there were lower expectations for growth and the uncertain outlook was
not only due to the prospective Brexit negotiations and any further
changes to the Bank of England’s policy. The forecast was that
investors would need to take more risks to generate the same returns.
In response to a suggestion that the assumptions might not be
sufficiently conservative, Colin Robertson, Independent Adviser, was of
the view that the assumptions being made could be considered too
prudent and that higher returning asset classes would contribute to the
Fund return and he presented a more positive outlook. A Member was
of the view that funding, liability and making necessary adjustments

Pension Fund Committee - 6 September 2016 135 - 80 -



would be key to a positive outlook. Gemma Sefton stated that the key
was to understand the funding including its drivers;

o a full asset liability test needed to be carried out for employers and
whether full funding was achievable by a range of contribution rates
needed to be assessed. Potential contribution strategies would be set
out, including long term funding objectives. All Councils would want to
make stable contributions over a period of years to allow them to
budget for future years. Contributions were not considered to be the
only lever, the movement in assets and liabilities would also have an
impact on the Fund. Gemma Sefton added that she would forward a
range of possible outcomes to allow the Committee to make a
judgement on the contributions. The paper from HM Treasury
circulated to Members previously provided some background;

. there was a discussion of discount rates used for determining
contributions vis a vis the discount used in the valuation. Colin
Robertson stressed the importance of considering the assets relative to
the liabilities. These topics, together with others related to the valuation
would be covered in the training session prior to the next Pension Fund
Committee meeting.

During her presentation, Gemma Sefton responded to questions. She
summarised the remaining presentation slides. The Director of Finance /
Section 151 Officer informed Members that the Council contributed £5m a
year towards the deficit reduction and any recommendations for additional
contributions would require further discussions.

RESOLVED: That the presentation be received and noted.
151. Performance Measurement Services

The Committee received a report of the developments in connection with the
provision of performance measurement services for the Fund in line with its
function to administer all matters concerning the Council's Pension
investments in accordance with law and Council policy as conferred by
Part 3A, Terms of Reference of the Council’s Constitution.

An officer outlined the core services that would be provided by PIRC (Pension
and Investment Consultants Ltd) but pointed out that the service would not
include a detailed analysis — the fund specific quarterly service — which the
Committee had been used to receiving. Officers were exploring the
development of the Council’s own fund specific analysis. It was intended to
provide sufficient information to PIRC to allow a meaningful report to be
submitted to November 2016 Committee meeting.

The Committee welcomed Colin Robertson’s offer to advise on the Council’'s
analysis particularly as regards benchmarking.

RESOLVED: That subscription to the performance measurement service be

provided by Pension and Investment Consultants Limited at a cost of £3,000
in 2016-17 and £4,500 in subsequent years be agreed.

-81- 136 Pension Fund Committee - 6 September 2016



152.

153.

154.

Pension Fund Committee - 6 September 2016 137 -82 -

Information Report - London Borough of Harrow Pension Fund:
Management Expenses 2015/16

The Committee received a report setting out details of management expenses
incurred by the Pension Fund during 2015-16. An officer explained that
management expenses had increased mainly due to the replacement of two
Fund Managers with more expensive ones.

Richard Romain, Independent Adviser, highlighted the need to monitor the
costs associated with the CIV (Collective Investment Vehicle).

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

Information Report - Local Government Pension Scheme Pooling
Arrangements Update

The Committee received a report on the development of the pooling
arrangements and the London CIV (Collective Investment Vehicle), including
the problems which had arisen in connection with the launch of the global
equity indexed mandates.

An officer introduced the report and drew attention to the reconsideration of
the options around the provision of passive management through the CIV and
the need to await further developments in this regard. Additionally, the letter
dated 30 August 2016 from the London CIV, including the ‘Global Equities
Procurement — Investment Strategy Lots’ document, would become key
should a Fund Manager need to be replaced.

Members noted that the London CIV was continuing to develop and that the
Chair attended meetings of the CIV.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
Currency Hedging

The Committee considered a report from the Fund’s Investment Advisers, Aon
Hewitt, on currency hedging in line with its function to administer all matters
concerning the Council’s Pension investments in accordance with the law and
Council policy as conferred by Part 3A, Terms of Reference of the Council’s
Constitution.

Colin Cartwright, Aon Hewitt, referred to his report which examined the impact
of sterling weaknesses on the Fund’s equity holdings and whether the current
hedging remained appropriate in the current economic environment. He
explained that the reasons for the recommendation, details of which were set
out in his report. Members also considered a report from Colin Robertson,
Independent Adviser, which had come to a similar view to that of Aon Hewitt.

The Committee noted that since the report had been issued by Aon Hewitt,
sterling had strengthened against the dollar and the euro.



RESOLVED: That no changes be made to the Fund’s current currency
hedging arrangements.

155. Quarterly Trigger Monitoring Q2 2016

The Committee considered a report from the Fund’s investment advisers, Aon
Hewitt, on Quarterly Trigger Monitoring in line with its function to administer all
matters concerning the Council’'s Pension investments in accordance with law
and Council policy as conferred by Part 3A, Terms of Reference of the
Council’s Constitution.

Colin Cartwright, Aon Hewitt, advised that investment risks could be reduced
by hedging liabilities. He also advised that de-risking was not considered
appropriate at the current time.

RESOLVED: That no de-risking actions be taken at this stage.
156. Pension Fund Committee - Update on Regular Iltems

The Committee received a report setting out the draft Work Programme,
performance of Fund Managers for previous periods, including issues raised
by the Pension Board and sought the Committee’s agreement to the proposed
Work Programme.

At the Committee’s request, the officer agreed to arrange an additional
training session on ‘Valuation’ prior to the Committee meeting on
22 November 2016.

An officer referred to the session on ‘Meet the Managers’ on 13 October 2016
and explained that draft questions would be circulated for further input from
the Committee. The officer drew attention to the Fund Valuation and
Performance table and explained that, in the temporary absence of more
sophisticated data, a simple relationship of the valuations of the various
investments compared to the relevant base lines had been used. The
increases in the value of the Fund as at June 2016 had been due to the large
increases in the values of the equities portfolios but the Fund’s currency
hedging strategy had mitigated some of the gains and the current estimate
was that approximately £9m would need to be paid to the currency hedging
manager in tranches of £6m and £4m over the next six months.

The Chair asked about the concerns expressed by the Pension Board over
the length of time taken to change Fund Managers. The officer stated that the
Board was of the view that the Council was not nimble but that it was
important to note that there were costs associated with changing Fund
Managers and there were long term arrangements to consider as well. He
added that at the ‘Meet the Managers’ session, members of the Committee
would have an opportunity to address performance and fees charged by
individual Fund Managers. It was also important to note that the Fund
Manager in question had outperformed other Fund Managers during the
period March — June 2016.

-83- 138 Pension Fund Committee - 6 September 2016



157.

158.

Pension Fund Committee - 6 September 2016 139 -84 -

In relation to the request for a joint meeting by the Chair of the Pension Board,
an officer explained that the training session on 22 November 2016 would be
used as a vehicle for consideration of the actuarial valuation prior to the
scheduled Pension Fund Committee meeting, and that the Board was
welcome to attend both.

RESOLVED: That, subject to the above comments, the Work Programme for
the period up to March 2017 be agreed.

Information Report - Annual Review of Internal Controls at Insight
Investment

The Committee received a report on the contents of the latest internal controls
report from Insight Investment.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
Information Report - Property Opportunities

The Committee considered a report from the Fund’s investment advisers, Aon
Hewitt, on property opportunities in line with its function to administer all
matters concerning the Council’s Pension investments in accordance with law
and Council policy as conferred by Part 3A, Terms of Reference of the
Council’s Constitution.

Colin Cartwright , Aon Hewitt, reported that following the E U Referendum
there had been heightened economic uncertainty and volatility across most
asset classes. The purpose of his report was to consider the impact of Brexit
on the UK property market and identify the scope for tactical opportunities for
the Fund within this asset class.

Richard Romain, Independent Adviser, was of the view that this opportunity
should be given due consideration, particularly if the Council was in a position
to negotiate a discounted price. However, he was concerned whether the
Council’s existing decision-making structures allowed for decisions to be
made quickly which this matter would require. He was of the view that
mechanisms would need to be put in place if the Committee was minded to
take opportunities in the property market. A Member also commented on the
ability to take decisions at short notice.

Colin Cartwright suggested that a committed Fund Manager would be
required to look for opportunities in the property market or it could be done
through contacts. Richard Romain advised that the former route was not one
he could support but that it would be better to work with established estate
agent(s) on a set return and he was recommending a concept policy. This
proposal would require the support of the Council’s surveyors.

An officer responded to questions as follows:

. that no money had been set aside but that property investment with
Aviva was in place;



o that a re-consideration of the Fund’s Investment Strategy would be
required but that it was more likely that the Fund would seek value
through discounted prices for pooled funds rather than buying
discounted buildings;

o in relation to identifying risks, and other matters raised by the
Committee, a report would be presented at the November Committee
on Investment Principles.

The Committee agreed that Aon Hewitt's advice was required on how
properties could be held by the Fund.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted and a further report be submitted on
the holding of properties and whether this opportunity was advisable.

159. Exclusion of the Press and Public

RESOLVED: That in accordance with Part | of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for
the following item for the reason set out below:

Item Title Reason

18. Information Report — Information under paragraph 3
Investment Manager Monitoring (contains information relating to
the financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including
the authority holding that
information).

160. Information Report - Investment Manager Monitoring

The Committee received a confidential report setting out Aon Hewitt's
quarterly report on Harrow’s investment managers. All Fund Managers were
rated either “Buy” or “Qualified” with the rating for one of them having been
downgraded from “Buy” to “Qualified.”

Colin Cartwright, Aon Hewitt, referred to the reasons why one of the Fund
Managers had been downgraded in the last 3 months and referred to the
Committee’s discussions at its previous meeting. He added that a ‘deep dive’
was being conducted and the outcome would be communicated to the
Committee in due course. It would be for Members to set out their confidence
in that Fund Manager.

Colin Cartwright responded to questions on the need to find an alternative
Fund Manager in the context of the CIV (Collective Investment Vehicle) and
advised that there were other Fund Managers who would deliver better
returns over the long term with volatility in the short term. He stressed that a
qualified Fund Manager was still a good manager.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

-85- 140 Pension Fund Committee - 6 September 2016



(Note: The meeting, having commenced at 6.32 pm, closed at 9.01 pm).

(Signed) COUNCILLOR NITIN PAREKH
Chair

Pension Fund Committee - 6 September 2016 141

-86 -



This page is intentionally left blank

142



Agenda Item 15
Pages 143 to 146

Pension Board

Date of Meeting: 2 November 2016
Subject: Information Report - Performance
Monitoring

Responsible Officer: Dawn Calvert, Director of Finance

Exempt: No
Wards Affected: All
Enclosures: None

Section 1 - Summary

Summary

This report presents the Board with performance monitoring information as
currently available and invites it to consider what further information it would
wish to receive.

For information

Section 2 - Report

1. At various of their meetings the Board has rightly suggested that it sees
part of their role as monitoring the service performance of the Fund. Whilst
to date it has received a substantial amount of performance information
through the Fund’s Annual Report and Accounts, the Scheme Advisory
Board’s Benchmarking and Key Performance Indicators return and reports
on the triennial actuarial valuation it has not received monitoring
information specifically designed for its use and in accordance with best
practice.

LONDON

( ﬁé/?/‘fﬂaCDUNCIL )
143



2. This report advises the Board of the information currently published and
suggests what further information could be made available.

3. In the Annual Newsletter the following information in respect of pensions

administration in 2015-16 was published:

SERVICE Performance | Actual (%)
target (%)

Issue letter notifying of dependant’s benefit in 95 41.67
3 days
Provide transfer details to member in 5 days 95 100.00
Calculation and notification of all retirement 95 81.73
(including ill-health) benefits estimate in 7
days
Issue letter to new pension provider detailing 97 100.00
transfer-out quote in 9 days
Calculation and notification of deferred 97 92.71
benefits in 8 days
Calculation and notification of all retirement 95 71.60
(including ill-health) benefits in 3 days
Process refund and issue payment within 5 98 93.24
days
Contact next of kin on notification of death in 3 100 100.00
days
Issue statutory notification on receipt of 95 63.16

transfer funds in 5 days

4. The Board is invited to comment on this performance

5. This pensions administration presentation has been reviewed and it is
suggested that the data be expanded to include numbers of cases when

relevant and the following additional services:

e Transfers out actuals

e Issue of Annual Benefits Statement by the statutory deadline

(currently 31 August)
e Treatment of new joiners
e Quality of data

e Contributions from employers received by statutory deadline

6. Additionally information in respect of other aspects of Fund activity can be

provided as follows:

Communications

Accounts

Contact with employers

e Posting of material on website
e Member satisfaction survey

144

Despatch of Scheme booklet when required
Speed of response to telephone calls

Issue of forms eg expression of wish
Notification of changes to Scheme rules
Availability of Annual Pension Fund Report and Statement of




Investment and funding
¢ Improvement in funding level
¢ Investment performance

Internal dispute cases
e Numbers and progress

Audit reports
e Internal audit
e Annual opinion from external audit
e Annual letter and report from external audit

7. Tables and commentary covering the most current information on all the
above services could be presented to the Board at each of its meetings.

8. The Board is asked to consider whether the information discussed in this
report would meet its requirements for regular performance monitoring
and to comment as it sees fit.

Financial Implications

9. Whilst the provision of performance monitoring information should assist
in the efficient and effective management of the Pension Fund there are
no financial implications arising from this report.

Risk Management Implications

10. All risks are included within the Pension Fund Risk Register.
Equalities implications

11. There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.

Council Priorities

12. The financial health of the Pension Fund directly affects the resources
available for the Council’s priorities.

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

Name: Dawn Calvert |/ Chief Financial Officer

Date: 24 October 2016

145




Ward Councillors notified: Not applicable as the
report is relevant to all
wards.

Section 4 - Contact Details

Contact: lan Talbot, Treasury and Pension Fund Manager
0208 424 1450

Background Papers - None

146




Agenda Item 16
Pages 147 to 156

Pension Board

Date of Meeting:

Subject:

Responsible Officer:
Exempt:

Wards affected:

Enclosures:

2 November 2016

Information Report — Compliance with
The Pensions Regulator Code of Practice

Dawn Calvert, Director of Finance
No

All

Compliance with The Pensions Regulator
Code of Practice

Section 1 - Summary

This report advises the Board of The Pensions Regulator’'s “Code of practice
no.14” entitled Governance and administration of public service pension
schemes, summarises the Funds compliance with it and invites comment from

the Board.

FOR INFORMATION

( %/‘fﬂhCDUNCIL )
147 LONDON



Section 2 - Report

4.

The Pensions Regulator (Regulator) was established under the Pensions
Act 2004 to regulate work-based pensions. The Public Service Pensions
Act 2013 introduced an expanded role for the Regulator in overseeing the
major work-based pension schemes for those working in the public
services.

Under the 2013 Act the Regulator is required to issue one or more codes
of practice covering specific matters relating to public service pension
schemes.

In January 2015 the Regulator published “Code of Practice no.14” entitled
Governance and administration of public service pension schemes which
came into force in April 2015. It sets out the legal requirements for public
service pension schemes in respect of specific matters, practical guidance
and standards of conduct and practice expected of those who exercise
functions in relation to those legal requirements.

The Code can be accessed at:

http://www.thepensionsrequlator.gov.uk/codes/code-governance-

administration-public-service-pension-schemes.aspx

5.

7.

The core areas covered by the Code are:

e Governing your scheme

e Managing risks

e Administration

e Resolving issues
Attached is a table listing the core areas and their sub-divisions, detailing
the legal requirements and The Pension Regulator's Guidance and
summarising the Harrow position.

The Board are invited to review the table and comment as they see fit.

Financial Implications

8.

Whilst matters discussed in this report have very significant financial
implications there are none arising directly from it.

Risk Management Implications

9.

The management of risks is a key part of this report.

Equalities implications

10. There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.

148



Council Priorities

11. Investment performance has a direct impact on the financial health of the
Pension Fund which directly affects the level of employer contribution
which then, in turn, affects the resources available for the Council’'s
priorities

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

Name Dawn Calvert V] Director of Finance

Date: 24 October 2016

Ward Councillors notified: Not applicable as the
report affects all wards

Section 4 - Contact Details

Contact: lan Talbot, Treasury and Pension Fund Manager
0208 424 1450

Background Papers - None

149




This page is intentionally left blank

150



‘sannejuasaldal Jaquia oM) pue saAnejuasaldal Jakojdwa om) sepnjoul pieog ay |

. Buneaw siy) je pajoesues) aq o} ssauisng woly buisue

‘sysaJajul Aejunoad uou Jo Atejunoad, Aue 8so|osIp 0} payse ale slaquiaw pJeog Buneaw yoes jo Buiuuibaqg ayy 1y
"} Aq epige 0} paaibe pue (molieH Joj us} 0} papua)xa) oy dliand jo sajdiouud uanss, ay) pue sjsalajul

Jayjo pue Aselunoad sasSNISIP YoIYM SI0J|IOUN0Y Joj }oNpuo) Jo apo) ay} jo Adood e yim papinoid aiem pieog ay
"901j0B.d JO 9p0) SJojeinbay suoisuad ay) pue Soj|Idunoy Joj JoNPUoy JO 9POD B} UM SOUBPIODDE Ul

10 0} pajoadxa ale siaquaw ‘a|qesiidde aiaym ‘Jeyy uonejoadxe Ue apnjoul PJEOg SU} JO 92UBIBJRY JO SWIS| Y|
‘diysispes)| pue Aysauoy

‘ssauuado ‘Ajjiqejunoooe ‘Ayaijoalgo ‘Ayubajul ‘ssaussayes - a4 2lgnd jo sejdiouud uanss, sy} Yim aoUeploooe
ul JoB }shw pue pun4 ay} ul stakojdwa pue saakoldwa yjoq Jo siysaajul ay} ul Ajlenyedwi Joe o} s|ge aq jshw
ays/ay ey pasinpe sem ‘pieog ay) o} pajuiodde Bulaq / Joy buiAldde o} Joud ‘pieog uoisuad auj jo Jaquiaw yoeg

‘suonouny
119y} Jo 3SI0J9Xa By} Ul SIaquiawl paeoq uoisuad |je

0} palidde aq pjnoys , 84/ 91qgnd jo saydiouud uanss, sy
ET]

AKiojniels sIy) yim 1o11juod ajqissod e 0} asl SaAIB yolym
10 ainjeu ay) (asIMIBYIO JO [e1oueUly) IsaIa)ul [euossad
ojesedas e sey sjuswalinbal Jayjo pue suonelnbas
awayos ypm aoueldwod Buunoss ul Jabeuew awsyos
ay) Buysisse Jo ajoJ Aiojnjels Jay/siy Bulyny ul Jaquiaw
pJeoq uoisuad e usym asie Aew }salajul Jo JOIu0D

sJaquinu [enba ui saAleussaldal Jaquaw
pue sannejuasaldal Jakojdwa apnjoul 0} pJeoq uoisuad
ay} Buuinbay uoisinoid apnjour ysnw suoljeinbal swayos

SROGE O} PaJia)a] SUSWaINDaT Ju]|

Buneaw jo sasodind ay} Jo} sauinbai Algeuoseau sabeuew
BWaYds U} Se UOEBWIOUI Yons YIm Jabeuew awayos
ay} apinoid o} pJeoq uoisuad e Jo Jaquaw pasodoid

10 Jaquiaw Yoes aJinbas jsnw suone|nbas swayos

TIY HEd
e sey pJeog uoisuad ay} Jo auou Jey} ‘awi} 0} dwi} Wodj -
1S@J8)Ul JO JOIJUOD B SABY JOU SI0p pJeog uoisuad
ay} Jo Jaqwaw e se pajuiodde ag 0} uosiad e jey} -
‘payshes
aq 0} Jobeuew awayos ay) Buuinbai uoisinoid apnjoul
1snw suone|nBas sweayos ‘pieog uoisuad ay} 0} uole|al uj

‘paysi|geIsa si pJeog ay) YdIym Joj swayos

pajoauu0d Aue Jo swayds ay} Jo Jaquaw e Buieq uosiad
18y} Jo anpIA Ag Ajpsaw Buisie jsalajul Jayjo Jo [eloueul

B 9pNjoul JoU S30p }| ‘PJEOg UOISUSJ B} JO Jaquiaw

B SB suoljouny Jo asiosaxa s,uostad e aolpnfaid o} Ay

SI YDIYM }S3I3JUI JBYJO JO [BIOUBUL B S| }SBIB)UI JO JOIJU0D VY

uonejussaidal pue Jseseyul Jo spoIL T,

L0

'910Z JoquianoN ¢ Uo pieog ayj Jo Bunjesw ayj Je paiyjosl g (M Syl

‘spaau Bujuiely [euossad Jiayy Apuapl

0} payse Uaag jou aney slaquiaw pue papinold usaq aney sapunpoddo Buuiely oyoads Jayung may ‘IaAeMOH
‘9aRILWOY pun4

uoisuad ayy Jo Buneaw yoes oy Joud palayo suolssas Bujulel} sy} 0} payAul usag Os|e SABY pJeog au} JO SJaquIB|y
"JusW)SaAul

9|qisuodsal Aj|e1o0s pue uofen|eA [elenjoe ay) ‘sasuadxa juswabeuew pue JuswisaAul ‘SJUNOIJY [enuuy s,pun
8y} Jo uoljesapisuod Ba ybnouyy Buuel [ealuyoa) Jo [aAs] swos papinoid aney sbBunesw jusnbasqns jo sepuabe ay |
‘Bululely siy) papusyie peog au} Jo sJaquiaw ||y

JUBWISAAU| -

SJajje|\ 90UBUISAOS) pue [BLENJOY -

97 Aoy pue 8OUBUIBAOYD) -
:Bunanoo JmaH uoy Aq papinosd sem uoissas Buiuies) Aep-jiny e pseog ay} jo Buneaw jsuiy ayy wody buisuy
uswajels Abajens Buipun4 -

sa|dIoulld JUBWISAAU| JO JUBWIE)S -

JuawWale)s aouedwoy SoUBUIBAOYD) -

1oNpuoY JO 9P0OY -

90UBIBJRY JO SWII] -

:ynm papinolid os|e asem Asy |

‘Buipuejsiapun pue abpajmouy o} uoleas ul

901joBl1d JO 9p0Y) S Jojejnbay suoisuad ay) 0} padnpoJjul 8Jom pue ,Ssjei) pue pueibusg ul SpJeog UoiSusdd [e907 JO
uoyjesado pue uoieald ayj uo ddUBPING :(S4DT) BWSYIS UOISUSH JUBWILIBA0S [e207, Uonedlignd s,pleog AIOSIAPY
Mopeys ay| ‘0} uononpouul pue ‘Jo Adoo e yim papirold sem pieog ay) GL0OZ dunf GZ uo Bunesw isuly s Iy

-aoe|d Ul sI sannp J1ay} Jno Auied o} paau Aay) abpsimouy sy uiejas pue alinboe

0} slaquiaw pleog uoisuad Buigeus Joj sJomawel) e jeyy Buunsus Joj sjgisuodsal s| aoueul Jo J0joalIg 8y |

‘pJeoq uoisuad

8y} JO Joaquiaw e se suolouny Jisy) asiolexa Aadosd

0} Way) ajqeus o} Buipuejsiapun pue abpaimou Jo
9albap ajeudoidde ayy aney Asyj jey} ainsus 0} slaquiaw
pJeoq uojsuad [enpiAlpul Jo Ajjigisuodsal ay) si } ‘JoASMOH
‘payuswaldwi

pue padojanap s jJomawely e jey} Bunsus Joj
Aypgisuodsal ayey o} uosiad e ajeubisap pjnoys sawayos
‘siaquiaw pJeoq uoisuad Jiay} Yoddns 0y Buipuejsiapun
pue abpajmouy Buiuieas pue Buuinboe Joy sjuswabuere
pue saljod uleulew pue ysijgeisa pinoys sawayos

pJeog uoisuad

2y} Jo JaquIaW B JO SuoNouny ay) ay} asiosaxa Apadoid o}
lenpiaipul 8y} Buigeus jo sasodind ay} Joy ajeudoidde jeyy
s1 paJinbas Buipuejsiapun pue abpajmouy jo 8aib6ap syl

suonenBal ul paquosaid ale Yolym siajew Jayjo Aue -
suoisuad o} Bunejas me| ayy -

:Jo Buipuejsiapun

pue abpajmouy aAey Jsnw pIeog uolsuad ay} Jo Jaquaw

awayos ay} 0}

uopjejas ul pajdope Buiaq awiy 8y) Joj SI YdIYm SWayos ayy
10 uoneJisiuiwpe ay} Inoge Aoljod Buipliooal Juswnoop Aue -
aWaYos ay} Jo sajnJ ayj -

“U}IM JUBSJBAUOD 8q }SNW pJeog UoISUad ay) Jo Jaquiaw

-

(09-¥¢) siaquiaw pieog uoisuad Aq
palinbai Buipueysiapun pue abpajmouy '}

(66-¢£¢) awayas 1noA Buiuianoo |

NOILLISOd MO¥YVH

JONVAINO SAOLVINOIY NOISNId IHL

SLNINIFHINOIY VO3]

NOILD3S ANV VIV F¥0D




“Jeak e 90UO 3SE3| JB PaMBIASL S| UoIym Ja)siBal 3sii s,pun sy} ul sjusuodwod Asy aJe sanssi [euoesadO

9)ISgaM S,|IoUNo0)

3y} eIA 9]qISS909E A|Isea aJe sajnuiw pue spodal ‘sepuabe Buipnjoul sbBunesw pieog uoisuad |[e Jo s|ieep [in4
‘suonnqLjuod Ajyuow

pue ssaJppe Jo sabueyo ‘sIale)s Mau Jo [IDUN0Y dU} SsIApe 0} saje|dwia} Joayspealds yim papinoid ale siakojdw3
‘sjuswAed juelb yyesp Joj uoijeuILIou

J13y) dyepdn 0} pajiAul pue ssaJppe Jo sabueyo Jo 1Puno) ay) 3SIAPE 0} JEaA UOBS papuiwal aJe siagquaw pasiajed
‘s|IE}op Yueq pue ssalppe Jo sabueyo ‘Auessaosu asaym ‘ajepdn o} Jeak yoes Jno Juss si Jopuiwal e siauolsuad Jo4
‘pua Jeak je papeojdn ale s|ie}ap Aed "papJooal Aadoud |je ate ssaippe jo sabueyo pue sianes)| ‘siaue)s jey)
Buunsua waysAs |josAed ay} woly uns podas asepsiul Alyjuow B eIA 8)ep-0)-dn jday ale spiodal slaquiaw dAloe Jo
‘siseq
Buiobuo ue uo ajep o} dn spiodal s}l UIBJUIBW O} SIEM}OS JaINdWOD Jleyy Paysiigelsa-{lam sy} sasn [1ouno) ay |

'SaWl} ||e Je A03YS aJe
Asy) 1eyy ainsus pue sjuswalinbas buidesy-piooal poddns
0} swajsAs pue sassa004d apn|oUl PINOYS S|OLHUOD [BUIBU|

Apusioyye swsyos uoisuad

J13Y) Ja)siuiWpe pue uanob o} s|ge ag o} spJodas Buunpua
pue ajep-0}-dn ajeinooe dasy Asy) ey} ‘palinbal ataym
‘Joje|nfal sy} 0} ajelisuowap o} |ge aq PINoYs SaWaYdS

¥102 suoljejnbey (sjuswpuawy
snoaue|jaosi\ pue Buideay pIooay) suoisuad
991AISS 2l|qnd BY} Ul INO }os ale sjuswalinbai [ebal ayL

suonoesuel) -

uoljewJoyul Jaquiaw -

:0}) Bunejas

uolewLoyul Jo spJooal daay jshw siebeuew awayos

(9¥1-zz1) Buidaay-piodas swayosg |'¢

(LLZ-L21) uoneysiuIWpY °¢

‘pajuswajdwi shemie

JSOW|e aJe SUOJEPUBWWIODA JIdy} pue pun4 ayj jo uoljiesado ay) malnal Alieinbal jipne [euIa)xa pue [eulajul yjog
"aouewJopad Jo Buuojuow ay) pue sannp jo uoneledss Jouis 0} 1oalgns e ‘spiodal Jo

90UBUSJUIEW BY) PUB S}YBuaq Jo JuawAed ay) Joj a|gisuodsal 8S0Y) PUE SUSWIISAUI Ul PAAJOAUI 3SOU) YJog ‘SJa0I0
‘suelpojsnod pue siabeuew

puny ‘sJaolyo ‘pIeog uoisuad ‘@dRIWWOYD pun4 UoISUSH SU} Usamiaq payslge)sa si salnp Jo uoneledas Jes|o
. Jaumo

3SIy, JOIUSS BI0W B pUB ,JBUMO [0J)u0D, B 0} paubisse s| Ajijiqisuodsal pue Alieinbas pamalnal si Jaysibay ay
Bununoooy -

leuonesadQ -

JUBWISAAU| -

ABajens uawysanu| - buipund -

saljiligel| pue sjessy - Buipun -

9OUBUIBNOY) -

:sauobajes Bumojjoy

ay) ojul yds sysu yueoniubis og Ajejewixoidde Buisudwoo Jaysibay Msiy anIsuaixa ue paydope sey pund ayl

‘s|oJjuoo ajeudoidde Buuojuow pue

Buidojanap pue sysu Buibeuew pue Buenjeas ‘BuiApjuspl
uo juads S| UoiUS}E puB BWI} JUSIDYYNS Jey) SINSUS pue
yoeoudde paseqg-ysu e Aojdwa pjnoys siabeuew swayos
"awayos ayj uo joedwi [eLsjew e aney o} Ajay|

aJe YoIym sysil Jueoyiubis ssalppe pjnoys s|ouod ay |
"aWayos ay}

0} suonnqujuod Buibeuew pue me| Jo sayoealq Bumainal
‘§su Buibeuew pue Buissasse 1oy sainpaoold pajuswnoop
pue Buijew uoIsIoap pue UoNe|edss Joj sassaoold

‘sa)np Jo uopeledas Jes|o B apnjoul piNoYs YdIym S|osuod
[eUIBlUI Jo WaJSAS e ysi|ge)sa Jsnw siabeuew awayos

aWayds ay} Jo S}asse auy) Jo AJnoas pue Apojsno

ajes ay} 10} pamo]|o} 3q 0} Sainpaoo.d pue syuswabuele -
Juswabeuew pue uonessIuILpPE

ey} Buuoyuow Joj sjuswabuelle pue swajsAs -

aWwayds ay} Jo Juswabeuew pue uolesjsiuipe

8y} Ul pamo]|0} 8q 0} SaInpaoo.d pue syuswabuele -
‘sueaw ,S|0Jjuod [eusajul, sasodind asay) Jo4

MET 30T JO SJUSUWRINDaT 3U]|
Y}IM 8OUBPIODOE Ul PUB SBNJ BWBYDS 8U} YIM 80UBPIOdD.
ul peBeuew pue paJs)siuIWpE S| 8Wayds 8y} jey) Buunoss

30 @sodind sy} Joy ejenbspe 8 JsnW 8saY | "S|0JJUOD
|eusajul ajesedo pue ysijgelse jsnw Jebeuew awayos ay |

152

(0Z1-101) Slo13u09 Jeusaju| |'g

(0z1-001) sysu Buibeuen 'z

‘Sjuswale)lS [eloueul4 pue Joday [enuuy s,pun4 8y} Ul pJEOY UOISUSJ U} O} SPEW OS[E S| 80Uy

‘Aunnuios

oliqnd Jo} a|qe|iene aJe pieog ayj Aq palapisuod Je} os spodal j[e ‘wa) suo wouy Pede ‘pue pusjie o} SaySsIM|
oym auoAue Aq panlasqo aq ueod sbuieaw ‘a)Isgam s,[1oun0Y dY} U0 pasiUApE aJe pleogd ayj Jo sbuneaw ay
‘sjuasaidal ays/ay Apoq auy} pue pieog sy} Jo JaguaW Yoea Jo aweu ay} sapnjoul Bunesw yoes Joy epusbe ay |

JuswiasInquial asuadx -

pleog 8y} 0} 3JINPY -

uonewlojul pieog Jo uoneslignd -

sbuneaw Jo Aousnbaid -

wnJonp -

Bunjew uoisioaq -

Agejunoooy -

SIS pue abpajmouy] -

1S8J9)Ul JO S}OIJUOD PUE JONPUOD JO SPIEPUE]S -

ssao0.d jusuwiuioddy -

sJaquiaw [euonIppe

Jo Bundo-09 ‘uiey) Aindaq pue Jiey) jo uonoale ‘syybu Buijon ‘uonejuasaidal jo sjiejap Buipnioul ‘diysiaquisiy -
pleog sy} Jo 30y -

:9pN[oUl 90UBIBJSY JO SWUS] Y|

sBunaeauw |le jo sanuiw

pue suodau ‘sepusbe pue aouala}ey JO SWIS] pJeog uoisuad ay) 0} SSa00e Ases sapinoid 8)sgam s,[Iouno) ay |

"9}9|dwoo pue 8}eindoe si )i 8Insusd o} ejep paysiignd |je
Jojuow 0} sassao0.d pue saljod aAey pjnoys sawayos
‘Aousiedsuel Jo ainyno e ajowold pue

swabebus Jaquiaw awayss abeinodus pue sajnuiw
pue sepuabe ‘siaded pieoq Be ssauisng pieoq uoisuad
noge uoljew.ojul Buysiignd JapISUOD pjnoys sawayos
‘sJaquiaw pseoq uoisuad

[enpIAIpul Jo sanijiqisuodsal pue sajos oloads Aue -

pue ‘ajesado [im }1 Moy Jo sjieap Buipnjoul

‘pJeoq uoisuad ay} Jo} 8oUBIBJRI JO SWISY [N} BY) -
sjuasalidal Jequiaw pJeod uoisuad yoea oym -

ssao0.d juswiuiodde pieoq uoisuad ay} -

Jaquiaw pseoq yoes Aq pjay uonisod JUeA3[a1 JaYI0

Aue pue (Jueasjai alaym) api qol pue juswAodwe ayy -
:Se yons pJeoq uoisuad

ay) Jnoge uonew.oul [njesn ysijgnd pinoys sawayos
‘8jep

o0} dn uonewJoyul yey) desy pue pieoq uoisuad ay} Jnoge
paJinbaJ uonewoul ay} ysiignd jsnw siebeuew awayos
"pJeoq uoisuad juajedwod pue paulel) ‘pajniisuod
Auedoud e aney pjnoys sawayos uoisuad 821AIas dlignd

‘Ayjgisuodsal

s,pJeoq uoisuad ay ulyum Buljjey sispew ayj -

aWaYds 8y} JO sJaquiaw Jo pJeod ay) uo uonejuasaldal -
aJe pJeoq uoisuad ay} Jo sIaquaW dY} OYM -

:apnjoul JsnW uolew.ojul ay |

‘2)ep 0}
dn uonewJoyur jyeyy desy pue awayos 8y} Joy pieod uoisuad
By} Inoge uonewJoyul ysignd jsnw Jebeuew swayos ay |

(66-26)
sawayas jnoqe uonewsopul Bulysiignd ¢}




‘pabueuse aq ued sbulldaW dUO 0} SUQ SJOPIOYSNE)S JOUJ0 PUE SISQUIBW Y)IM S}EDIUNWWOD

0} [IoUN0Y 8y} Aq apew sjuswabelle ay) Uo |Iejep aJow ojul 906 8)ISgam s,[IoUNoD Y UO S|ge(ieA. ,JUSWIRIS
Aollod suonesuNWWo), dAISUSIXa AJan ay ] ‘lews Aq paniaosal Jsanbal Yyoes 0} juss si Juswabpamouyoe
oljewojne uy ‘juswabpajmousor ue puas am sAep 0| ulyIm Adal 0} 3|ge Jou e am pue pPaAlddal S| UoeW.Iojul
10} }sanbal e J|'pjay si ssaippe ajep-0}-dn ou pue JuswAed Joy anp si uoisuad e Ji 8o1AJes BuipJemioy Ja)a) JIsyy pue
dMa Yyim sJom am sasodind Buioesy J04no Burjoesjuo jo uolessas ay) ba sjgejieae sawooaq suoisuad Buipiebas
UONeWLIoJUl MBU JO SWAYDS 3y} 0} aBueyod juesyiubis e s a1ay) JI JnO JUSS OS[E SJe SUOKEDIUNWWOD [eUOHIPPY
'SJaqUIBW PaLIBJEP PUB SAIJOE |[B 0} JuSS aJe SJUSWSJeIS Sjyauag [enuuy

BuLiojuopy eouBWIOMS -

Hoday pun4 uolsuad [enuuy -

s)ybry uoisuad sholnald -

sabuey) xe| pue suoisuad -

uawaunay ul sbuines -

JueI9 yeeq -

“J ainbas A8y} usym uonew.ojul
$S990E 0) 9|qe aJe siaquiaw Bunsixa pue andadsoud
Jey} ainsua 0} sawl |[e je d|qe|iene Ajipeas uonewoul

a)ew pjnoys sawsyds ‘Aousiedsues) sjowold o]

‘€102

suone|nBay ainso|osIg pue €10z 10V SUoISUdd 90IAI9S
21|qnd 8y} Ul payoads spolad awiy sy} Yium aoueplodoe
ur uoljewJoyur apinoid jsnw siebeuew awayos ‘s|gejiene
2W099( [[IM UOBWIOJUI BY} USYM 0} SE UoNedlpul ue

ynm pabpajmousioe aq pinoys jdieoal ‘s|ge|iee Ajipeal jou

papinoid
9Q }SNW UONEWLIOJUI JOUYIO PUB SJUSW).)S }Jouaq MOH -
1sanbaJs U0 pasojosIp 89 }snw Uolewoul JeUAA -

90IAIBS 92UQ SN |13 -|SI ) § ‘UonewLIoul J0} }sanbal e apew sey uosJad e aJayp papinoid aq 0} SI UOBWIOJUI DISE] UBYAA - o™

aseqelep |N Sd97 MaN - ‘as1049xa Buioely e jno Auied pinoys uoljewJoyul 0} PajIUa SI OUMA - Lo
sjuawAed JIX3 403038 2llgnd uo jwi pasodold - ‘a1qIssod Jou S| JOBJUOD BIBYM ‘PUE SIaqUIBW dWAYDS uoneJisIulWpPE SWAYIS JNOGE UolBWIOUI JBYIO -

QAIjeniu| pnel [euolien - JI9U} Ypm JOBjU0D 9xew o} Jdwape pinoys sawayos sjuswajess jyouag - —
spueg Aed uonnqujuo) - *9]qIssa00e AlIsea pue ‘Jo
9102 JUsWaje)S Jyuag [enuuy -| ajesndoe Buiaq se [|om se puejsiapun o) ajdwis pue Jeajo|  joadsal ul suawalinbal [efa] sy} sasuewWWNS apo) ay L
$J9n09 910z AN Ul paysiignd ‘uoisJaA Juaund ay] JeinolJed ul pun4 molleH ay) pue |leJano| aq pjnoys uolewloyu "uoisirold uoisuad Jiayy yim abebus sJayjo pue
aWaYdS dy) O} JUBAS|SI SIajjewW Jo aBuUBJ apIM B SISA0D }| "SJaquIaW SANOE |[e 0} aUll-Uo 3|de|lene apew S| pue| 0} a|qe ale A3y} SaInsua jey) Aem e Ul SIaquiall SWaYdS| SJaquIaW SWayds 0) UONEJISIUILPE SWaYDS pue sjyausq

SJaUOISUR [|e O} JUSS S| }| “JOYIBISMAN [BnuUUY By} S| SIaquaWl S} Yim Bupesiunwiwod Joy 30IYsA Ulew s,pun4 8yj| 0} SUOKEDIUNWWOD JBAIBP pue ubisap pjnoys sawayoS|  Jnoge UoleWIOoUI 3SOOSIP 0} SBWAYDS salinbal me| ay] [-281) siaquiaw 0} uonewoyul Buipinoid ¢'¢
uodal Alessadau Ji pue ssasse 0} 00z 1OV Suolsuad
8y} Jo 0/ uonoas Japun Ainp Aiojnjess Jiay) Jopisuod
0S| PINOYS SaWayds ‘suoljeinfal awayos Y)Im a0UBpIOOD.
ul 8)ep JallJea Ue uo suoinguuod aakojdwsa Aed
0} aJn|ie} e S| aJay) YA\ “poliad paquosaid ayy Jo pus sy}
Jaye pouad 9|qeuUOSESl B UIYNIM Jaquiaw ay) pue Jojejnbias
ay) 0} ainjie} ayy Jo aonou anIb ysnw Asy) ‘suorouny
seunjie} juswied jueoyiubis Ajleusiew Buipodal -| ) 15 fue 1o ssiisxe suy Ul IojeINBal aU) 0} 3ouBDLUBIS
PUE ‘SUONINGLIUOD 8NPIoA0 BUIBBUBW -| o) i01m1 10 aq 0} AjeyIl SI SINIIE} BU} JU} SAB1ISG 0} SSNED
suoinquIuoo Jo JuswiAed auj BUONUOW -| 5 qe1i0cea) sey JeBeuew swayds ay) i ‘pouad paquosald
suonnquiued ay) uiyym pred Jou a1 suonnquIuoo sakojdwa asay
10 JuswAed ay} Jojuow 0} pJooal e Buidojanap - oo &} o
aAjoAUl 0} AjaYl| aJe sessaoo.d pue seinpado.d ajenbspy 11 Ja1ues Jo ‘(pouad paquosaud, ay)) Ajlesiuonose pred
‘sjuswalinbal |eba| Jayjo 4 Aep puzz sy} Aq Jo ‘uoonpap sy} Buimol|oy Yyuow sy}
pue suone|nbal swayds 8y} Yim aoueploooe ul pabeuew| 40 Aep uigl 8y} Aq 1sele| 8y} Je swesyos 8y} jo siebeuew
pue paJslsiuIWpE S sWayds ay) jey) os ‘eleudosdde| 8yj 0} pred aq Jsnw pajonpap junowe ay) ‘Aed sequisw
-aoe|d 9} SMaIAaJ JIpne [Bula)Xa pue [euajul yjoq jey) pue sjuswAed aje| Ayiuspl se ‘saun|ie} JuswAed podas pue sanssi juswAed © Woly pajonpap aJe suonguuod aakojdwa assym
0} JsIxa sainpaooud ‘Buissaooid uonoesuel} Alessasau ayy Jno Alled 0} aoe|d Ul Je S82IN0S3I JUSIOLYNS Jey) PASIAPe|  BAJ0S3J ‘SUONGLIUOD Uoisuad Jojuow piNoys Sawayos *a|qeonoeld Ajgeuoseal se uoos
aJe 99)IWWO0Y pun4 Uoisuad ay} pue JajsiBal ysi ay} ulyIm paynuapl Aljeoyoads si suoingujuod jo JuswAed ay ) suonouny s}l Jo 8sI0JaXa ayj Ul Joyeinbal| se Jojeinbal ay) 0} Jajew ayj Jo Hodal usplm e aalb Jsnw
‘MoLeH je Auessaoau 2y} 0} aoueoyiubis [elayew Jo ag o} Aj9¥I| SI Yolym|Jebeuew awayos ay) ‘suonouny syl Jo Aue Jo as|olaxa ay) ul
Aja1ed s1 s1y) Ing suonsebolqo siy jo papulwal si Jakojdwa ay) ayep anp ay} Aq paniasal Jou ale sjuswAed J| aunjiey JuswAed e o} siayal 2in|iey JuswAed yueoyiubis|iojenbal ayy o) soueoubis [eUS)ewW Jo aq 0} Ajdl| SI anjiey
"JUNODOE YUBQ PUN4 UOISUSH U} UIIM P3|IOU0DaJ PUB Yjuow Yoes apew sjuswAed uo apew ale s)oayd| Ajeusiew, v ‘pouad paquosaid ayy ulyym Jo ‘(s)ayep anp| auj Jey) aaaljag o) asned ajgeuoseal sey Jabeuew awayos
‘Alessadau se spJodal [joshed yyum aoueplodoe ul pajepdn sisiy)|  ay} Aq swayds ay) o} pied jou ale sjuswAed uonnguuod| Suyj pue awayds ay) Japun anp ale Asy) a)ep au) a10jaq Jo
pue suoinguuod Ajyjuow a1y} Bujjiejep siakojdws || 0} Juas si ajejdwa) e Jeak [eoueuly yoes jo buiuuibaq ayy aJaym s! ,aJnjiey JuswAed, v “Jojeinbas ay) 0} saunjiey| uo pied Jou aie suolnquUuod Jakojdwa a1aypn ‘suolenbal
‘suofnquiuod asauy} Jo JuswAed ay} Joj sjuswalinbal Aojniels ay) jo ateme|  jusswAed Ayjuapi o} aoeld Ul sassasold pue sainpaosold awayos ay} ul sjuswalinbal Aue yym aouepioooe
ale siako|dwsa ||e pue ajedIua) syuawisnipy pue sajey s,AIEnoY 8y} Y)IM S0UBPIOIDE Ul JoS SJE SUOINGLIUOD |IY| BAII0SYS ale aIay) Jey) ainsusa pjnoys sJebeuew awayos Ul sWayds ay) 0} pled aq jsnw suonngiuod Jakojdwg (981-2¥1) suonnquyuod Bulurejuie g'¢




‘AjHoys ybnos aq [Im yons o} [lenoldde pue ainpaosoud ,sayoealg Buipoday, e aney 194 Jou saop pun4 8y} ‘JSASMOH
suonouny syl Jo Aue Jo as|olaxa ay) ul Joyeinbiay ayy 0} aoueoiubis [eusjew Jo aq o A1 si Aldwoo o} ainjie) ay) -
yum paidwod ‘Butaq jou S| Jo ‘Usaq Jou Sey sWwayds ay) Jo uolelisiuiwpe ay) o} buiejas Ainp |eba) e -

ey} anslleq

0} 9SNED 3|qeUOSEal S| 813y} 81aym Jojenbay ay) 0} Me| 8y} Jo sayoealq Hodal 0} ‘SIaY}o pue ‘wayj uo juswalinbal
2y} Jo pasinpe Ajjoljdxa alem siaquiaw G0z Isnbny £z uo pseog 8y} Joy papinoid uoissas Buluiel) [eniul sy 3y

‘salinp Buiodau [enuajod Jisy} LNy

0} Way) Mojle o} sassaosold Buipodal pue sjuswaiinbal
|eba) jo Buipuejsiapun pue abpajmouy Jo [9A3] JusIoINS
e aABY p|noys slaquiaw pleog pue siabeuew awsayog
‘slaquiaw pJeoq uoisuad pue

slabeuew awayos Joy Buiuiesy apinoid pjnoys sawayos
"90UEpINg Jojeinbay suoisuad ay) pue syuswalinbas
|eba| au} Jo aieme apew ale sayoealq Burodal

10} 3|qIsuodsas 9soy) Jey) paysiies aq pinoys Sawayos

aWaYDs 3y} 0} UONE[dI Ul dWaYDS ay} Jo siabeuew

ay} Buisinpe ul panjoAul asimIay}o s oym uosiad Aue -
siabeuew puny

pue saLenjoe ‘siojipne Bulpnjoul siasiApe [euolssajoud -
stafoidwsa -

awayos uoisuad 8o1AIas 21ignd B Jo uonesisIuiLpe

8} Ul PAAJOAU SIMIBY}0 SI oym uosiad Aue -

spJeoq uoisuad Jo sIaquIaw -

sJabeuew awayos -

‘ale sawayos uoisuad ao1nas olgnd

Joj Juswalinbai Buiiodal ayy o} 108lgns ale oym ajdoad

aoueonubis [eusjew jo aq o} Aj@y)| st Aldwoo 0} ainjiey ay) -
ynm paijdwod ‘Bulag jou si Jo ‘U] JoU SBY SWaYDS

8y} JO UoleJisIUIWIPE Y} 0} JUBAS|DJ SI YoIym Anp |eba) e -
‘Jeyy anslieq

0} 9sned a|qeuoseal aney Aay) alaym Jojeinbal ayy o}

ME| 3y} Jo sayoealq Hodal o} palinbai aue ajdoad uleps)

(522-1¥2) me| auy Jo sayoeaiq bunoday 2y

"palsiessIp sulewal JUeWIe[o ay} Ji paje[edsa aq Ued ajndsip e WoyYm o} UBWSPIqUIQ SUOISUad

8y} pue 92IAI8S AIOSIAPY SUOISUSd 3] ‘INOge UOHEWIOUI PUE ‘JO S|[IEJap JOBJUOD SapN|oul OS|e 8Inpadold ay |
2INPadoId 8y} Japun sjwWI| dwi) dy} -

Jojeaipnipe ay) jo uoneubisap auy Buipnjoul ssaooid abejg puodsasg ay) -

Jojeaipnipe ay) jo uoneubisap auy Buipnjoul ssaooid abejs isii4 auy) -

2INpadoid ay} Jopun uonesapisuod Joy Aldde 0} moy -

9|ge[leAe aJe s9sS800.d UONN|OS3I SAEUIS)E JeUM -

0} saldde ainpaoold ay} oym —

Buipnjoul syndsip e Jo uonnjosas ay} %9as 0} ssa20.d ay) saquOsap AlES|D 81NPadoId dYL

"901j40 suoisuad ay) 0} UsIA e Jo [[ed suoydaja) e AQ yim jiesp ale swiajqo.d [[e Jsowe Jey) Suswod

pue ainpadoid ay} Buisn noyym sjuredwiod Jo UonN|osal 8y} ¥98s 0} Ysim s,pun4 ay} sasiseydwa ainpaoold ay |

‘siequisw
BWaY0S 0} Juss SIaN] Jo Ajolew ay} U paUOKUBW SI PUB BHISGAM S,pUN- U} UO PUNO} 8q UBD 81NPaold ay L

‘pasinal Buteq Ajua.no si 3 sabueyo [eanjonys pue Buiyess Jusosl 0} eng 'G10z [Mdy ul Apusdss
jsow ‘pajepdn AuenBal si yolym ainpasoid uonnjosay andsiq [eulaiul s,pun4 auy ul paslgnd si sseooud ay |
‘suolje|nBay 8WaYdS UOISUS JUBILIBA0D) [BO0T BU} YiM aul ul sseooid abejs om) e sey pund ay L

"asodind 1o} J1J SI )l 8INSUS PUE SIY} UO SUOISIOBP UMO JIay}
@)ew pNoys sawayos pue ainpasoid uopnjosal sjndsip
au} Jo [lejep By} aquosald jJou saop Mej ay} ‘Ajlelsuss)

awayos Jiay} Joj ajeudoudde aiow si }i ey} Japisuod Aay)

11 ainpaoo.d abejs-a|buis e ydope Aew Asy) ‘Ajoaneussyy
‘uoisioap abejs-sui ay) Bunjepspun ,uosiad payioads,
e y)m ainpaoold abejs-om) e ajesado ued sawayos

"aWayds 8y} JO UONEJISIUILPE pue 8oueuIdanob

aA0aYe 8y} Ul ajod Ay e Aeid Asy] “AjoAnoaye

pue Apjoinb uodn papioap pue pajebiisanul ag 0}
sajndsip awayos uoisuad 10} sassasold pue sainpaosold
JewJo} apinold sjuswabuelle uonnjosal ajndsip [eusaju]
‘Pamalnal aq 0} Jajew Jey} Joj yse o} Wb

ay} aney Asy) ‘(Wway} s}oaye Yolym uoisioap e ajdwexs
J10}) dWaYos ay} o} Bunejal Jepew Aue yum paysies

JOU SI BWAYDS 8y} Ul }S3Ja)Ul UB Ypm uosiad e aIaypn

"sobejs ulepan je ajdoad ulepad 0} UBWSPNQWIQ SUOISUSY
By} pue 80IA18S AIOSIAPY SUOISUS 8y JNOge uonew.ojul
Se [|am se aunpaooud uopnjosal sjndsip s,awWayos

ay} Jnoge uonewJoyul apiroid Jsnw siebeuew awayog

apew aq jsnhw suonesiidde yoym uiyym polad sjqeuoseal
e Ajoads jsnw aunpasoud ay] ‘usAib pue payoeal aq 0}
aJe uoneoldde ue yons o} uoneal ul palinbas suoisioap Aue
YdIUm Ul Jsuuew ayj pue uonesiidde ue yons ul papnjoul aq
}snw yolym sJejnofyed ayy ‘epew ag o} si ayndsip uoisuad
€ Jo uonnjosal ay} Joy uoneoldde ue yoiym ul Jauuew

2y} a}e)s Jshw sainpadold uolnjosal andsip [eusaju|

‘Jl uaye} Buiney jo poad ajqeuOsEal B UIY)IM UOISIOap By}
Jo yueoydde ayy Apou 3snw Asy -uoneoldde auy Buinieoal

1o pouad s|qeuoseal e ulyim andsip ul SIapew ayj uo
paJinbal uoisioap ay} aye) jsnw (ainpasoud s,8WaYds e Jo
Jed se pasn Ji) suosiad palyoads pue siabeuew awayos

T ™

Ja)je Jabeuew swayds ay) Aq usye} uoisioap ay}

Aq paoejdau Jo pawuuod aqg usy) Aew uoisioap s,uosiad
pauoads 8y "sia}ew 8soy} Uo UOISIOap Jlay) aAIB

pue Japisuod o} uosJad Jey} Joy Japlo ui uosiad payoads, e
0} a)ndsIp Ul SJajjew Jajel ISl 0} SWSYDS Y} Ul }SaIdjul Ue

yum ajdoad ainbal Aew sjuswabuelle uonnjosal eyndsiq
~r

R e A e e T
pue anoge pauonuaw salobajed ayj Jo suo ul aq o} Wieyo -
Jo Jaquiaw

anoadsold Jo Aeloysuaq ‘Jequaw e ag do) pasead aney -
aWaYds ay} Jo Jaquiaw dAoadso.d e ale -

aWayos ay}

10 Jaquiaw paseadap e jo Juepuadap Buiainns Jo sauped
JIA10 BuiAinns Jo Jauped [IND BUIAIAINS ‘MOpPIM B BJe -
aWaYds 3y} Jo Jaqual paseadap e

1o Aeoiyeuaq juepuadap-uou BulAIAINS JO JaqWaW e ale -
:Aayy J dwayos ay) Ul }saJayul ue sey uostad v

"uoneBbnsanul Ue paouaWIUIod

SBY UeWSPNQWQ SUOISUSd Y} 8J9UM IO ‘[eundLy Jo

1Noo Aue Ul paouawwod aney sbuipeaoold aiaym sandsip

apnjoul asay] "Aldde jou ainpaooid uonnjosal andsip
[EUIBJUI BU} Y2Iym 0} ,saindsip paydwaxa, ulead ale atay

oo
pajdwiaxa, apnjoxa 8say | "dWAYIS dY} Ul }SaIajul Ue UM,
ajdoad aiow Jo auo pue siabeuew ay) usaM}a] BWBYDS
ay} 0} Bunejal siajjew Janod ,saindsip uoisuad, ‘BWAYIS

2y} Ul }saJajul Ue yym uosiad e pue Jabeuew swayos

2y} usamjag sajndsip suoisuad anjosas djay pue me| au} Jo
sjuswalinbal ayy ypm Aldwoo ey} sjuswabuelle uonnjosal
ayndsip Juswa|dwi pue ayew jsnw siobeuew awayos

154

(oyz-g12) uonnjosal ayndsip [eussiul |y

(522-z12) sanss| buinjosay ‘¢




155

"a|qeonoeld Ajqeuoseal
sI se uoos se Bunum ul spew aq jsnw podal ay |




This page is intentionally left blank

156



Agenda Item 17
Pages 157 to 210

Pension Board

Date of Meeting: 2 November 2016

Subject: Knowledge and Understanding of Local
Government Pension Scheme

Responsible Officer: Dawn Calvert, Director of Finance

Exempt: No
Wards affected: All
Enclosures: Local Pension Board - A technical

Knowledge and Skills Framework:
CIPFA/Barnett Waddingham

Training and  Networking  Seminar
Programmes: CIPFA/Barnett Waddingham

Section 1 - Summary

Summary
The Board are asked to note the requirements in respect of knowledge and
understanding of the Local Government Pension Scheme as set out by CIPFA
and The Pensions Regulator and consider how they wish to comply with these
requirements.

For information

( ﬁé/?/‘fﬂaCDUNCIL )
157

LONDON



Section 2 - Report

1.

At their first meeting on 25 June 2015 the Board were advised of the
publication Guidance on the creation and operation of Local Pension
Boards in England and Wales, Section 6 by the, then, Shadow
Advisory Board. This Section referred to the Pension Act 2004 and
specifically to the requirement that:

An individual to whom this section applies [Member of a Pension
Board] must be conversant with—

(a) the rules of the scheme, and

(b) any document recording policy about the administration of the
scheme which is for the time being adopted in relation to the scheme.
An individual to whom this section applies must have knowledge and
understanding of—

(a) the law relating to pensions, and

(b) such other matters as may be prescribed.

The degree of knowledge and understanding required ........ is that
appropriate for the purposes of enabling the individual properly to
exercise the functions of a member of the pension board.

The Board agreed that, initially, they would seek to comply with these
requirements by receiving relevant documentation and attending a
customised introductory course on various aspects of the Local
Government Pension Scheme to be provided by Aon Hewitt.

The course was presented on 27 August 2015 and all members of
the Board were able to attend. Matters covered were:

Governance and Key Legislation
e The Legislative Framework
e Structure and Governance of the LGPS
e Key Governance Requirements
e LGPS Contributions and Benefits
e Current Hot Topics

Actuarial and Funding Matters
¢ Introduction to Actuaries and Actuarial Work
Triennial Actuarial Valuation
Funding Strategy and Intervaluation Monitoring
Employers in the Fund
Bulk Transfers
Pension Accounting and Auditing
Actuarial Hot Topics

Investment
e Investment Strategy and Financial Markets
¢ Investment performance and Risk Management
e Financial Services Procurement

158



4. Since this presentation additional ad hoc training has been offered
including:

Board Meetings
e Triennial valuation — presentations by the Actuary at each
meeting in 2016

Invitation to Pre-meeting Training of Pension Fund Committee
e Triennial valuation
e Environmental, Social and Governance issues
e Infrastructure

Seminars
e Local Pension Boards — One Year On

5. Whilst the training offered to date has probably complied with the
basic requirements it is important for Board members to keep up to
date and to compare their current levels of knowledge and skills
against best practice as recommended by CIPFA and The Pensions
Regulator.

6. Guidance is available via the CIPFA publication local pension boards
— A Technical Knowledge and Skills Framework attached to this
report. The Framework includes as its Annex A Knowledge and Skills
Responsibilities under the Pensions Regulator Code of Practice No
14.

7. Board members are invited to contact the Treasury and Pension
Fund Manager if they feel that they could benefit from further training.

8. Courses for Board members are available commercially with some of
the the most appropriate likely to be provided by CIPFA/Barnett
Waddingham, Aon Hewitt, Hymans Robertson and PLSA. A current
example from CIPFA/Barnett Waddingham is attached.

9. Members will be kept advised of training opportunities available. They

are specifically asked whether they wish to attend any of the sessions
currently being offered by CIPFA/Barnett Waddingham..

Financial Implications
10. The cost of any training will be met from the Pension Fund.
Risk Management Implications

11. The purpose of this report is to remind the Board of their knowledge
and skills responsibilities to enable them to carry out their duties
effectively.

159



Equalities implications
12. There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.

Council Priorities

13. The financial health of the Pension Fund directly affects the level of
employer contribution which in turn affects the resources available for
the Council’s priorities

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

Name Dawn Calvert (V] Director of Finance

Date: 20 October 2016

Ward Councillors notified: Not applicable as the
report is relevant to all
wards.

Section 4 - Contact Details

Contact: lan Talbot, Treasury and Pension Fund Manager
0208 424 1450

Background Papers - None

160




‘ I PFA The Chartered Institute of
Public Finance & Accountancy

local pension
boards

A Technical Knowledge and Skills
Framework

Barnett
Waddingham

a true partnership approach




CIPFA, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, is the professional body for people in

public finance. Our 14,000 members work throughout the public services, in national audit agencies, in major
accountancy firms, and in other bodies where public money needs to be effectively and efficiently managed.
As the world’s only professional accountancy body to specialise in public services, CIPFA’s qualifications are the
foundation for a career in public finance. We also champion high performance in public services, translating our
experience and insight into clear advice and practical services. Globally, CIPFA shows the way in public finance
by standing up for sound public financial management and good governance.

CIPFA values all feedback it receives on any aspects of its publications and publishing programme. Please
send your comments to publications@cipfa.org

Our range of high quality advisory, information and consultancy services help public bodies — from small
councils to large central government departments — to deal with the issues that matter today. And our
monthly magazine, Public Finance, is the most influential and widely read periodical in the field.

Here is just a taste of what we provide:

® TISonline — online financial management guidance B Recruitment services
i

Benchmarking B Research and statistical information

=

Advisory services Seminars and conferences

=

Professional networks B Education and training

2]

Property and asset management services B CIPFA Regions — UK-wide events run by
CIPFA members

Call or visit our website to find out more about CIPFA, our products and services — and how we can support
you and your organisation in these unparalleled times.

020 7543 5600
enquiries@cipfa.org
www.cipfa.org

162



‘ I PFA: The Chartered Institute of
Public Finance & Accountancy

local pension
boards

A Technical Knowledge and Skills
Framework

Barnett

rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr

163



Published by:

CIPFA \ THE CHARTERED INSTITUTE OF PUBLIC FINANCE AND ACCOUNTANCY
77 Mansell Street, London E1 8AN

020 7543 5600 \ publications@cipfa.org \ www.cipfa.org

© July 2015 CIPFA

Designed and typeset by Ministry of Design, Bath
(www.ministryofdesign.co.uk)

No responsibility for loss occasioned to any person acting or refraining from action
as a result of any material in this publication can be accepted by the authors or
publisher.

While every care has been taken in the preparation of this publication, it may
contain errors for which the publisher and authors cannot be held responsible.

Apart from any fair dealing for the purposes of research or private study, or
criticism or review, as permitted under the Copyright, Designs and Patents Act,
1988, this publication may be reproduced, stored or transmitted, in any form or
by any means, only with the prior permission in writing of the publishers, or in the
case of reprographic reproduction in accordance with the terms of licences issued
by the Copyright Licensing Agency Ltd. Enquiries concerning reproduction outside
those terms should be sent to the publishers at the above mentioned address.

164



Acknowledgements

This framework has been developed by Nigel Keogh (CIPFA Pensions Technical Manager) with
guidance, direction and support from the CIPFA Pensions Panel.

The current members of the Pensions Panel are:

Bob Summers (Chairman) — Independent Consultant

Paul Dale — London Borough of Merton

Geoff Dobson — Suffolk County Council

Geik Drever — West Midlands Pension Fund

Jeff Houston — Local Government Employers Pensions Committee
John Hattersley — South Yorkshire Pensions Authority

Nicola Mark — Norfolk Pension Fund

Susan Martin — London Pensions Fund Authority

Paul Mayers — National Audit Office

Richard McIndoe — Glasgow Council

Chris Megainey — Department for Communities and Local Government
Graeme Russell (Vice Chairman) — Torfaen Borough Council

Trevor Salmon — Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Superannuation Committee
Mark Taylor — Audit Scotland

Chris West — Coventry City Council

John Wright — Hymans Robertson

The Panel would like to thank Annemarie Allen at Barnett Waddingham for her contributions
to the guidance.

The Panel would also like to acknowledge the role of the publication’s sponsor, Barnett
Waddingham, in helping to ensure that this key piece of guidance is available across the
Local Government Pension Scheme.

165 Page iii



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

Page iv 1 6 6



Contents

1. PURPOSE, SCOPE AND STATUS OF THIS GUIDANCE ..iiiivicinuinsiiinssssasssrssnscsssvsnssorisavsnssse ssaves iassnsasasissinssasnnsiss 1
PURPOSE ottt ettt et o4t SR E R RS 1
P it Sy D B TN K o A 2
TSy, m—— o B e M e e s S———— S——————— - 3

2. POLICY AND LEGISLATIVE BACKGROUND .......ccooeririeiirneniinsisiisiisrtesssnssssessssasstesessssassssssesassassessesasssssasnsasneses 3

SEREE OF THE FRIBNVENNIIIRI, s enensnsosssssnonenionmsiussbims ions s s mms a0 s stnssss o s s s s A 7
PENSIGNS LEGTSLATTOR w.msssosmsamess s o iy b (e v e s i B s v ey e oo 7
PUBLIC SECTOR PENSIONS GOVERNANCE ... vooovooeiosceiecess et 8
BENSTOMS KDIMINTSTRATTOM s v esmssessmsssnsss o s s o 0550 e e e o v id wo s vy v s T v v 8
PENSIONS ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING STANDARDS ...t 8
PENSIONS SERVICES PROCUREMENT AND RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT ... 5
INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT ... 9
FINANEIAL MARKETS AND PRODUCT KNOWLEDGE ..o st iimmmsss o 9
ACTUARTIAL METHODS, STANDARDS AND PRACTICES.......onemmnenmsmmmsmnsnssssinsmnissst irosessiss s ssibinsheinsun sedvinkones 9
THE KNOWLEDGEANDSKILLSIFRANAEN QRIC cumcimerssssnurmminsme s s s s s s s s s s asesss 10

4. LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK ........ccccovviiiinniinennnnnn. 11

5. FRAMEWORK STATUS, REPORTING AND COMPLIANCE..........ccovimimininresirennnntnis sttt e ssenas 15
DEVELORPMENT BND MATMTENANCE s i s s s e s i T s s s 5 15
REPORTING AND COMPLIANCE ...ttt e e 15

6. ACHIEVING FRAMEWORK STANDARDS — TRAINING AND SUPPORT .......cccoiiiiiniiiniinininieesie e srnesinienes 177

7. FURTHER READING AND SOURCES OF GUIDANCE ........coicviiinmirniiiiccerneniesnsnsinsnsesessessesssssnssnessssssessesssssnssnseses 19

PRI TP RA vt oo vuwssnsnsimsiesissvesesises it 55 o 505 555 5 0 i B s SN PR 19
OTHER SUIIRCES ..o sommmsrsmsssmmsmasmmpssssmnsssaneasnsst s s i i i i T S 20
OTHER: TRAINING AN SUPPEIRT nemoss s v sssn s s 0 s 5o ns (05 ors o s snsat i s s s 20

ANNEX A — KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER THE PENSIONS
REGULATOR CODE OF PRACTICE NO L& ...ccummeonmmensnssssmmioasccnmmisansiersts corsnsassssssrnmssons sossnats snossssssrsssms sssnssasnsasnennsss 21

ANNEX B — SUGGESTED JOB DESCRIPTION AND ROLE PROFILE FOR THE CHAIR OF A

PENSTIONS BOARD ...ocuviiiieiiinineeeteseeissssessnessnssesanesssssbesssassasssbsssanbisssinssssssssssssatsssssssansisseestessnsesaseesanssnssnnssssassasssanss 25
ANNEX C — LGPS GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS 201 4.......ccoiiiiiiiisiiiiininiisssississsnsssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssassnnss 27
ANNEX D — EXAMPLE OF COMPETENCY SELF-ASSESSMENT MATRIX.......coccoviminiinrinnrneesnnninienssine e 31

1 67 Page v



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

Page vi 1 68



1. Purpose, Scope
and Status of
this Guidance

FURFORE

11 A great deal of work has been done in recent years to address the provision of training to
those who are involved in the administration of public service pension schemes. However in
the absence of any detailed definition of what knowledge and skills are actually required to
carry out a particular role, it is difficult to ascertain whether training is truly effective.

12 Inan attempt to ensure that training can be delivered efficiently and effectively by
identifying and focusing on the key knowledge areas, in recent years CIPFA has developed,
with the assistance of expert practitioners, frameworks covering the knowledge and skills
requirements for officers and elected members/non-executives involved in the administration
of public service pension schemes.

13 The proposals in this publication are intended to further promote good governance in public
service pension schemes’ pension boards by extending these frameworks to cover the training
and development of their board members. The objective is to improve knowledge and skills
in all the relevant areas of activity of a pension board and assist board members in achieving
the degree of knowledge appropriate for the purposes of enabling the individual to properly
exercise the functions of a member of the pension board as required under Section 248a of
the Pensions Act 2004, as amended by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013.

i, Section 248a of the Pensions Act 2004 sets out the following:
Requirement for knowledge and understanding: pension boards of public service pension schemes

(1)  This section applies to every individual who is a member of the pension board of a public service
pension scheme.

(2)  Anindividual to whom this section applies must be conversant with—.
(a)  therules of the scheme, and

(b)  any document recording policy about the administration of the scheme which is for the time
being adopted in relation to the scheme.

(3)  Anindividual to whom this section applies must have knowledge and understanding of—.
(a)  thelaw relating to pensions, and
(b)  such other matters as may be prescribed.

(4)  The degree of knowledge and understanding required by subsection (3) is that appropriate for the
purposes of enabling the individual properly to exercise the functions of a member of the pension
board.

1 69 Page 1



LOCAL

PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

1.4

This guidance is intended to complement the Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice No

14: Governance and Administration of Public Service Pension Schemes (2015)2 The Code

of Practice No 14 sets out the fact that the law requires, amongst other things, that local
pension board members be conversant with the rules of the scheme and documents relating
to its administration. Additionally, in the context of the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) in particular, this will bring board members into contact with matters relating to
investments, actuarial valuations, third party provision, scheme assurance, accounting and
auditing?. This guidance therefore focusses on those areas by expanding on the specifics of
the knowledge and skills requirements associated with public service pension schemes in
general and the LGPS in particular, and assisting both scheme managers and pension board
members in discharging their responsibilities as set out in the Pensions Regulator’s Code of
Practice No 14 insofar as they apply to knowledge and skills (a summary of the respective
responsibilities of board members and the scheme manager can be found at Annex A).

SEOPE

15

Page 2

The guidance is set in the context of LGPS pension boards in England and Wales but pension
boards in other sectors and jurisdictions may find the frameworks of use in determining their
own training programmes for pension board members.

www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/docs/code-14-public-service.pdf

The Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice 14: Governance and Administration of Public Service
Pension Schemes states in paragraphs 42 to 44:

‘For pension board members of funded pension schemes, documents which record policy about the
administration of the scheme will include those relating to funding and investment matters. For
example, where relevant they must be conversant with the statement of investment principles and the
funding strategy statement.

Pension board members must also be conversant with any other documented policies relating to the
administration of the scheme. For example, where applicable, they must be conversant with policies
relating to:

B the contribution rate or amount (or the range/variability where there is no one single rate or
amount) payable by employers participating in the scheme

B statements of assurance (for example, assurance reports from administrators)
B third party contracts and service level agreements

B stewardship reports from outsourced service providers (for example, those performing outsourced
activities such as scheme administration), including about compliance issues

B scheme annual reports and accounts
B accounting requirements relevant to the scheme
B audit reports, including from outsourced service providers, and

other scheme-specific governance documents.’



1. PURPOSE, SCOPE AND STATUS OF THIS GUIDANCE

16  The framework is intended to have two primary uses:

= as atool for scheme managers in meeting the Pensions Regulator's Code of Practice
No 14 which states that scheme managers should ‘establish and maintain policies and
arrangements for acquiring and retaining knowledge and understanding to support their
pension board members'’

B as an assessment tool for individuals to measure their progress and plan their
development in order to ensure that they have the appropriate degree of knowledge and
understanding to enable them to properly exercise their functions as a member of a
pension board.

17 The framework is intended to apply to all pension board members. However, it has

been designed so that organisations and individuals can tailor it to their own particular

circumstances.

18 In addition, in recognition of the more onerous roles of chairs, the framework also includes a

specimen role specification for the chair of a pension board (see the example at Annex B).

STATUS
19 In 2013, CIPFA issued a Code of Practice on Public Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and

Skills.

110 The Code of Practice on Public Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills is underpinned
by five key principles:

1. Organisations responsible for the financial administration of public sector pension
schemes recognise that effective financial management, decision-making, governance
and other aspects of the financial administration of public sector pension schemes can
only be achieved where those involved have the requisite knowledge and skills.

2. Organisations have the necessary resources in place to acquire and retain the necessary
public sector pension scheme finance knowledge and skills.

3. Organisations have in place formal and comprehensive objectives, policies and practices,
strategies and reporting arrangements for the effective acquisition and retention of
public sector pension scheme finance knowledge and skills for those in the organisation
responsible for financial administration, scheme governance and decision-making.

4. The associated policies and practices are guided by reference to a comprehensive
framework of knowledge and skills requirements such as that set down in the CIPFA
Pensions Finance Knowledge and SRills Frameworks.

5. The organisation has designated a named individual“ to be responsible for ensuring that
policies are implemented.

111 In setting out the Code of Practice on Public Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills,

the Institute stated that ‘this Code of Practice applies to all individuals that take on a

&, The officer in question should be the senior officer responsible for the financial administration of the

pension scheme. In the case of the LGPS, this would usually be the chief financial officer; in the NHS,
for example, it would be the accounting officer.

171 Page 3



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

112

113

Page &

decision-making, scrutiny or oversight role. This includes (where relevant to the governance
structures employed in the management of the LGPS):

m  officers of the administering authority

B elected members of the administering authority
employer representatives

®  member-nominated representatives

B pensioner representatives

co-opted members

®m  independent advisors

B internal auditors and audit committee members

®  any other individuals involved in a decision-making, scrutiny or oversight role.

The requirements will also apply to the members of local pension boards as set out in section
5 of the Public Service Pensions Bill, as and when such boards are established.’

It is therefore the professional responsibility of the named individual referred to under
principle 5 above to establish and maintain policies and arrangements for acquiring and
retaining knowledge and skills to support their pension board members. This professional
requirement is in line with the Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice No 14 as set out in
paragraph 38 of that Codes.

This guidance is offered as good practice in line with the previous CIPFA Pensions Finance
Knowledge and Skills Frameworks, and is intended to assist practitioners in meeting their
responsibilities under CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Public Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge
and Skills (2013), particularly principle 4.

Paragraph 38 of the Pensions Regulator’'s Code of Practice No 14 states:

‘Schemes should establish and maintain policies and arrangements for acquiring and retaining
knowledge and understanding to support their pension board members. Schemes should designate a
person to take responsibility for ensuring that a framework is developed and implemented.’

172



2.1

22

23

2.4

25

2.6

2. Policy and Legislative
Background

On 1 April 2015, the governance structure of the LGPS fundamentally changed as a result
of new governance requirements introduced by The Local Government Pension Scheme
(Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2015.

These changes have their origins in the final recommendations of the Independent Public
Service Pensions Commission (IPSPC) chaired by Lord Hutton of Furness. In June 2010 the
IPSPC was formed to undertake a fundamental structural review of public service pension
provision and to make recommendations to the chancellor and chief secretary on future
pension arrangements. The IPSPC produced an interim report in October 2010 and a final
report in March 2011s.

In the final report, the Commission concluded that (page 126):

‘scheme members in all the public services should be able to nominate persons to pension
boards and committees along similar lines to the rights of members in the private sector

to nominate persons to sit on boards of trustees. Pension boards should therefore include
independent professionals and scheme members in similar proportions as apply in the
private sector to boards of trustees. It is also very important that as well as the “lay persons”
there are also independent members, usually professionally trained and with experience of
the pensions environment.’

The Commission went on to make the following recommendation:

‘Every public service pension scheme (and individual LGPS fund) should have a properly
constituted, trained and competent pension board, with member nominees, responsible for
meeting good standards of governance, including effective and efficient administration
(recommendation 17a).’

The Commission’s recommendation was taken forward in the drafting of the Public Service
Pensions Bill (subsequently the Public Service Pensions Act 2013).

Under Regulation 5 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, the responsible authority? for
each public service pension scheme established under the 2013 Act is required to make

www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/207720/hutton_
final_100311.pdf

The “responsible authority” for each public service pension scheme is defined in Regulation 2 of
the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 as ‘the person who may make scheme regulations.” For local
government in England and Wales, this is set out in Schedule 2 of the Act as the secretary of state
(DCLG).

173 Page s



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

27

2.8

29

Page 6

provision in scheme regulations that requires each pension scheme manager® to establish a

pension board to assist the scheme manager in relation to the following:

‘(a) securing compliance with the scheme regulations and other legislation relating to the
governance and administration of the scheme and any statutory pension scheme that is
connected with it;

(b) securing compliance with requirements imposed in relation to the scheme and any
connected scheme by the Pensions Regulator;

(c) such other matters as the scheme regulations may specify.’

Regulation 5 further directs that the scheme manager must include within its own scheme
regulations provisions that require the scheme manager:

‘(i) to be satisfied that a person to be appointed as a member of the board does not have a
conflict of interest, and

(ii) to be satisfied from time to time that none of the members of the board has a conflict of
interest;

(iii) ensure that a member of the board, or a person proposed to be appointed as a member
of the board, be able to provide the scheme manager with such information as the
scheme manager reasonably requires for the purposes of provision under the above;

(iv) ensure that the board include employer representatives and scheme member
representatives in equal numbers.’

As required under Regulation 5, the Department for Communities and Local Government
(DCLG) laid an amendment to the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 on
28 January 2015, setting out the arrangements for establishing pension boards in the LGPS®.
The relevant Regulations (Regulations 105 to 109 of the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013 (as amended) are reproduced in full at Annex C for ease of reference.

A working group of the Shadow LGPS Scheme Advisory Board Governance and Standards Sub-
committee has produced detailed guidance to scheme managers (administering authorities)
to assist them in establishing local pension boards. This guidance can be found at www.
lgpsboard.org/index.php/about-the-board/board-guidance

Regulation 4 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 requires that public service pension schemes

astablished under this Act (such as the LGPS from 1 April 2014) set out in scheme regulations who will
be responsible for managing or administering the scheme. In the case of the LGPS, Regulation 53 of
the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 sets out that each administering authority is
designated the “scheme manager” for their fund.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2015.

174



31

3. Key Skills

The CIPFA Pensions Panel, with input from technical specialists covering each element of
the skills matrix, has identified the key skills that lie at the core of successful public sector
pension scheme administration.

SCOPE DF THE FRAWEWURN

32

33

Due to the complexity of pensions administration, these skill sets extend across several
disciplines from accountancy and audit into areas of investment and actuarial finance, as
well as knowledge of the legislative and governance environment. In total there are eight
areas of knowledge and skills that have been identified as the core technical requirements for
those working in public sector pensions finance. They are:

= pensions legislation

®  public sector pensions governance

= pensions administration

®  pensions accounting and auditing standards

m financial services procurement and relationship management
= investment performance and risk management

®m financial markets and product knowledge

m  actuarial methods, standards and practices.
These are expanded upon below.

The Institute recognises that there will of course be other technical (non-pensions related)
and “softer” skills required in order to be competent in the role of a pension board member
and Regulation 107 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended)
makes specific reference to board appointees having the “capacity” to undertake the role.
Whilst the Regulations do not define “capacity” in this context, the guidance referred to at
paragraph 2.9 takes this to mean that board members should have ‘time to commit to attend
meetings, undertake training and effectively represent employers and (scheme) members

(as appropriate).’ The “soft” skills implied here are considered to be outside the scope of this
framework but should also be considered when determining the ability of pension board
members to effectively discharge their duties.

FENSTONG LEGISLATION

34

The pensions landscape is characterised by a complex legislative framework. In addition to
the legislation of individual schemes, there are industry-wide statutes that apply in whole
or in part to public sector schemes, including the way in which schemes interact with state
pensions, the tax system, the Pensions Regulator etc.

175 Page 7



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

35 A knowledge of this framework and the way in which it impacts upon the operations of
individual schemes is key to understanding the context within which public sector pension
schemes operate and the statutory obligations they are required to discharge.

PUBLIC SECTOR PENSIONS GOVERNANCE

36 On 1 April 2015, the governance structure that surrounds pubhc sector pension schemes
changed significantly. The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 has introduced new bodies
and relationships into what, in the LGPS in particular, was an already complex governance
network.

37 Understanding how the pension board interacts with the other elements of this governance
structure — the administering authority, the Scheme Advisory Board, the responsible authority
(eg DCLG), the Pensions Regulator etc — and the various roles and responsibilities of those
bodies is critical to the success of the board.

38 Also of key importance is a knowledge of the governance frameworks that apply within the
wider pensions industry (such as the Myners principles and the UK Stewardship Code (FRC,
2010)); within individual schemes (such as the LGPS governance statement requirements);
and within the organisations that administer the schemes (for example Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: Framework (CIPFA, 2007)).

PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION

39  Pensions administration is perhaps the most hlghlg reg ulated area of the LGPS. Admlmstenng
scheme benefits, contributions and other transactions is highly complex and is governed by
extensive scheme regulations, as well as industry-wide requirements on disclosure, record-
keeping, data maintenance, dispute resolution etc.

310 Understanding these requirements and assisting the administering authority to ensure
compliance with the various regulations, standards and codes is a key role of the pensions
board, which makes pensions administration a key strand of the knowledge and skills
framework.

PENSIONS ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING STANDARDS

311 The way in which pension schemes are accounted for, both as a scheme and by the
sponsoring employer(s), plays a significant part in the knowledge and skills framework. The
accounting requirements and associated disclosures are complex and involve a large actuarial
element. Consequently this demands an understanding of the regime in order to comply
with the requirements and to communicate the requirements and their implications both
internally and externally.

312 In addition, both internal and external auditors play a significant role in assuring that the
administering authority complies with statutory requirements. Understanding the scope of
their role, and the roles played by providers of third party assurance on outsourced services, is
key for local pension board members.

Page 8 176



3. KEY SKILLS

PENSIONS SERVICES PROCUREMENT AND RELATIONSHIP
MANAGEMENT

313 Such are the scale dwemtg and technical requnements of pensions operatlons the use of
outsourcing is commonplace. Whether it is the use of actuaries, fund managers, pensioner
payroll providers or third party administrators, the skills and knowledge required to procure
and manage outsourced services are central to scheme management in the public sector.

314 In some instances organisations will have specialist procurement units who will play a large
part in the procurement process. In such cases many of the requirements of the framework
may be met by virtue of the pension board member having access to external technical
expertise. In these circumstances, users of the framework should adapt the level of detail in
this skill set accordingly.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

315 In the LGPS and other schemes where contributions are invested and managed to meet future
liabilities, understanding investment risk and performance constitutes a major element of the
role of pension board members.

316 Administering authorities are aware of the requirement to apply the same rigour to an
assessment of their own performance and the performance of those who work on their behalf.
Frameworks and targets must be devised and set, and performance monitored against them
and reported to stakeholders. Pension board members should be equipped which a sufficient
level of knowledge to enable them to assist the administering authority in ensuring that this
is done effectively.

FINANCIAL MARKETS AND PRODUCT KNOWLEDGE

317 In schemes with invested funds, an understanding of financial markets and products is
fundamental. The depth of knowledge will depend to some degree upon the particular
approach to investment management undertaken by the fund (the investment activities of
LGPS funds for example can be split into two groups: those funds that use external managers
to manage all of their investment portfolio; and those that undertake some or all of their
investment activities using in-house investment managers).

ACTUARIAL METHODS, STANDARDS AND PRACTICES

318 The scheme actuary holds a key position in the financial management of a pension scheme.
Pension board members will need to understand, in some level of detail, the work of the
actuary and the way in which actuarial information is produced and the impact it has on both
the finances of the scheme and employers.

‘i%?”“ - m——— -



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

THE KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

319 In the framework which follows, we have identified the key elements of expertlse w1thm
each of the above areas of technical knowledge as they apply to pension board members. In
addition, Annex D provides an example of how the framework can be used as an assessment
tool for individuals.

N 178



4. Local Pension Boards:

A Technical Knowledge and

Pensions legislation

Pensions governance

Skills Framework

A general understanding of the pensions legislative framework in the UK.

An overall understanding of the legislation and statutory guidance specific
to the scheme and the main features relating to benefits, administration and
investment.

An appreciation of LGPS discretions and how the formulation of the discretionary
policies impacts on the pension fund, employers and local taxpayers.

A regularly updated appreciation of the latest changes to the scheme rules.

Knowledge of the role of the administering authority in relation to the LGPS.

An understanding of how the roles and powers of the DCLG, the Pensions
Regulator, the Pensions Advisory Service and the Pensions Ombudsman relate to
the workings of the scheme.

Knowledge of the role of the Scheme Advisory Board and how it interacts with
other bodies in the governance structure.

Broad understanding of the role of pension fund committees in relation to the
fund, administering authority, employing authorities, scheme members and
taxpayers.

Awareness of the role and statutory responsibilities of the treasurer and
monitoring officer.

Knowledge of the Myners principles and associated CIPFA and SOLACE guidance.

A detailed knowledge of the duties and responsibilities of pension board
members.

Knowledge of the stakeholders of the pension fund and the nature of their
interests.

Knowledge of consultation, communication and involvernent options relevant to
the stakeholders.

Knowledge of how pension fund management risk is monitored and managed.
Understanding of how conflicts of interest are identified and managed.

Understanding of how breaches in law are reported.



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

Pensions
administration

Pensions accounting
and auditing standards

Pensions services
procurement

and relationship
management

Investment
performance and risk
management

Page 12

An understanding of best practice in pensions administration, eg performance
and cost measures.

Understanding of the required and adopted scheme policies and procedures
relating to:

B member data maintenance and record-keeping processes

B internal dispute resolution

contributions collection
B scheme communications and materials.
Knowledge of how discretionary powers operate.

Knowledge of the pensions administration strategy and delivery (including,
where applicable, the use of third party suppliers, their selection, performance
management and assurance processes).

An understanding of how the pension fund interacts with the taxation system in
the UK and overseas in relation to benefits administration.

An understanding of what additional voluntary contribution arrangements exist
and the principles relating to the operation of those arrangements, the choice
of investments to be offered to members, the provider’s investment and fund
performance report and the payment schedule for such arrangements.
Understanding of the Accounts and Audit Regulations and legislative
requirements relating to internal controls and proper accounting practice.

Understanding of the role of both internal and external audit in the governance
and assurance process.

An understanding of the role played by third party assurance providers.
Understanding of the background to current public procurement policy and

procedures, and of the values and scope of public procurement and the roles of
key decision makers and organisations.

A general understanding of the main public procurement requirements of UK
and EU legislation.

Understanding of the nature and scope of risks for the pension fund and of the
importance of considering risk factors when selecting third parties.

An understanding of how the pension fund monitors and manages the
performance of their outsourced providers.

Understanding of the importance of monitoring asset returns relative to the
liabilities and a broad understanding of ways of assessing long-term risks.

Awareness of the Myners principles of performance management and the
approach adopted by the administering authority.

Awareness of the range of support services, who supplies them and the nature of
the performance monitoring regime.

180



4. LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

Understanding of the risk and return characteristics of the main asset classes
products knowledge (equities, bonds, property).

Financial markets and

Understanding of the role of these asset classes in long-term pension fund
investing.
Understanding of the primary importance of the investment strategy decision.

A broad understanding of the workings of the financial markets and of the
investment vehicles available to the pension fund and the nature of the
associated risks.

An understanding of the limits placed by regulation on the investment activities
of local government pension funds.
An understanding of how the pension fund interacts with the taxation system in
the UK and overseas in relation to investments.

Actuarial methods, A general understanding of the role of the fund actuary.

standards and practices y,yjedge of the valuation process, including developing the funding strategy

in conjunction with the fund actuary, and inter-valuation monitoring.

Awareness of the importance of monitoring early and ill health retirement strain
costs.

A broad understanding of the implications of including new employers into the
fund and of the cessation of existing employers.

A general understanding of the relevant considerations in relation to
outsourcings and bulk transfers.

A general understanding of the importance of the employer covenant and the
relative strengths of the covenant across the fund employers.

181 | N | ﬁage 13



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

Page 14 182



DEVELOPMENT AND MAINTENANCE

5.1

5.2

53

REPORTING ANG LOVFLINDLE

5.4

5. Framework Status,
Reporting and
Compliance

This framework has been developed by the CIPFA Pensions Panel with input from technical
specialists covering each element of the skills matrix.

As noted in chapter 1, it is the professional responsibility of the section 151 officer (or
other named officer as appropriate) to establish and maintain policies and arrangements
for acquiring and retaining knowledge and skills to support their pension board members.
This professional requirement is in line with the requirement set out in paragraph 38 of the
Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice No 14. This framework is set down as good practice,
in line with the previous CIPFA Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills Frameworks, and is
intended to assist practitioners in meeting their responsibilities under the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Public Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills (2013), particularly
principle 4.

The Pensions Panel is committed to maintaining and developing the framework as knowledge
and skills requirements change over time. Any changes to the framework will go through the
same process of expert review and user testing.

Statement 5 of the “statements to be adopted” in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Public Sector
Pensions Finance Knowledge and SRills requires funds to report annually in their pension
scheme annual reports on:

®  how the knowledge and skills framework has been applied
®m  what assessment of training needs has been undertaken

®m  what training has been delivered against the identified training needs.

| - R —



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

55  CIPFA recognises that in some cases members could be appointed to pension boards with
little or no prior pensions knowledge. The chief officers and the chair should bear in mind the
legal requirements as set out in the Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice No 14 and have in
place a plan that includes pre-induction training, leading into a fuller induction programme.

These factors should be reflected in the training needs assessment and the delivery of
training statement in the annual report.

56  Again, the CIPFA Code of Practice on Public Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and SRills
requirements are aligned with the guidance of the Pensions Regulator, whose Code of Practice
No 14 says this on the subject of demonstrating knowledge and understanding:

‘Schemes should keep appropriate records of the learning activities of individual pension
board members and the board as a whole. This will help pension board members to
demonstrate steps they have taken to comply with legal requirements and how they have
mitigated risks associated with knowledge gaps. A good external learning programme will
maintain records of the learning activities of individuals on the programme or of group
activities, if these have taken place.’

57  The Pension Regulator’s policy and approach to compliance is set out in its Compliance and
Enforcement Policy for Public Service Pension Schemes (2015):.

Practitioners should familiarise themselves with this policy statement.

10.  Paragraphs 34 to 36 of the Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice 14 state that:

‘A member of the pension board of a public service pension scherme must be conversant with:

B therules of the scheme, and

B any document recording policy about the administration of the scheme which is for the time
being adopted in relation to the scheme.

A member of a pension board must have knowledge and understanding of:

B thelaw relating to pensions, and

B any other matters which are prescribed in regulations.

The degree of knowledge and understanding required is that appropriate for the purposes of enabling
the individual to properly exercise the functions of a member of the pension board.

11.  www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/docs/compliance-policy-public-service-pension.pdf

Pagets 184



6.1

6.2

6.3

6. Achieving Framework
Standards — Training and
Support

To achieve the standards set down in the framework, organisations should as a first step
consider undertaking a training needs assessment against the framework standards and
developing appropriate training programmes.

The varied nature of training and the need to demonstrate continuous improvement in
governance, places a high level of priority on forward planning through a business plan and a
related training and development plan.

CIPFA working with Barnett Waddingham offer bespoke assessment, training, support and
monitoring programmes for local pension boards and their members which are built around
the requirements of this framework. This includes the following elements which can be taken
as a whole or in part:

®m  Assessment and planning

Individual local pension board member knowledge, understanding and skills
assessment.

Training plan/programme development.

B Training

Pre-appointment and induction training.

Initial area specific training such as: pensions legislation and guidance; policies,
procedures and working arrangements; overriding legislation and interacting
statutory organisations; and investments and funding.

Ongoing and subject specific training such as regulatory changes and triennial
valuations.

Annual refresher training and updates.
Member requested training.

Bespoke and open courses aimed at retention of knowledge and development of
best practice.

®  Support and mentoring

Ongoing local pension board member mentoring, coaching and support.
BWebstream document access and storage system.
Training and support materials.

®  Monitoring and reporting

Ongoing individual local pension board member assessment.

1é5""”‘ | | " .%@ﬂ



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

—  Monitoring local pension board member training and development, attendance and
progress, maintaining records and reporting.

64  Please contact Annemarie Allen at Barnett Waddingham on 020 7776 3873 or via
annemarie.allen@barnett-waddingham.co.uk or Nigel Keogh at CIPFA on 01204 592311 or via
nigel.keogh@cipfa.org to discuss your requirements in the first instance.

s 186



7. Further Reading and
Sources of Guidance

FROM CIPFA -
Preparing the Annual Report: Guidance for Local Government Pension Scheme Funds (2014)

The Role of the Chief Financial Officer in the Local Government Pension Scheme (2014)

Code of Practice on Public Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and SRills (2013)

Principles for Investment Decision Making and Disclosure in the Local Government Pension
Scheme in the United Kingdom (2012)

Preparing and Maintaining a Funding Strategy Statement in the Local Government Pension
Scheme (2012)

Managing Risk in the Local Government Pension Scheme (2012)

Principles for Investment Decision Making and Disclosure in the Local Government Pension
Scheme in the United Kingdom 2012 (2012)

Buying Time: A CIPFA Pensions Panel Guide to Procuring Efficiency in Public Sector Pensions
Administration (2011)

CIPFA Pensions Panel Guide to Stock Lending by Local Authority Pension Funds (2011)
CIPFA Pensions Panel Guide to Pension Fund Taxation in the United Kingdom (2011)
Narrative Reporting in Public Sector Pension Schemes (2010)

Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Pension Funds: A Guide to the Application
of the CIPFA/SOLACE Code of Corporate Governance in Local Authorities to their Management
of LGPS Funds (2009)

Guidance for Chief Finance Officers Administering LGPS Actuarial Valuations (2008)

CIPFA Pensions Panel: Weighing Up Risk Against Reward: An Introductory Guide to Asset-
Liability Studies for Local Government Pension Funds (2007)

CIPFA Pensions Panel: Freedom of Information Act — Dealing with Requests for Information
Relating to Local Authority Pension Funds (2006)

OTHER SOURCES
Code of Practice No. 14: Governance and Administration of Public Service Pension Schemes
(The Pensions Regulator, 2015)

Compliance and Enforcement Policy for Public Service Pension Schemes (The Pensions
Regulator, 2015)

187  pagers



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

The Pensions Regulator also publishes a range of other helpful materials at
www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/public-service-schemes.aspx

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) — Guidance on the Creation and Operation of Local
Pension Boards in England and Wales (Shadow Scheme Advisory Board, 2015)

OTHER TRAINING AND SUPPORT

The CIPFA Pensions Network provides a range of seminars built around the themes in the
Pensions Finance Knowledge and SRills Frameworks.

The Pensions Regulator also has an online “Public Service toolkit” available at
www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/public-service-schemes.aspx

~ Page20 188



Annex A — Knowledge and
Skills Responsibilities under
the Pensions Regulator Code of
Practice No 14

Nature of requirement

under the Code of Practice No 14?

Pension board member Scheme manager

Legal requirements

Must be conversant with: Statutory
B therules of the scheme

B any document recording policy
about the administration of the
scheme which is for the time
being adopted in relation to the
scheme.

Must have knowledge and Statutory
understanding of:

B the law relating to pensions

B any other matters which are
prescribed in regulations.

Should ensure that the degree of Statutory
knowledge and understanding

they possess is that appropriate for

the purposes of enabling them to

properly exercise the functions of a

member of the pension board.

Practical guidance

Should help pension board Code of Practice (paragraph 37)
members meet their legal
obligations.

Should establish and maintain Code of Practice (paragraph 38)

policies and arrangements for
acquiring and retaining knowledge
and understanding to support their
pension board members.

189 SR



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

Where do knowledge and understandmg TESpOTlSIbllltles rest Nature of requlrement
under the Code of Practlce No 14?

Pensmn board member Scheme ‘manager

Should designate a person to take Coc!e of Practice (paragraph 38)
responsibility for ensuring that

a framework for acquiring and

retaining knowledge and skills is

developed and implemented.

Areas of knowledge and understandlng required

Should prepare and keep an Code of Practice (paragraph 46)
updated list of the documents with

which they consider pension board

members need to be conversant.

This will enable them to effectively

carry out their role. They should

make sure that both the list and

the documents are available in

accessible formats.

Degree of knowledge and understandmg requlred

Clear guidance on the roles Code of practice (paragraph 47)
responsibilities and duties of

pension boards and the members

of those boards should be set out

in scheme documentatlon

Should assist individual pension Code of Pl'aCtICE‘ (paragraph 48)
board members to determine

the degree of knowledge and

understanding that is sufficient for

them to effectively carry out their

role, responsibilities and duties as

a pen51on board member.

Acquurmg, revrewmg and updatmg Imow!edge and understandmg

Should invest sufficient Should provrde pension board Code of Practice (paragraph 55)
time in their learning and members with the relevant training

development alongside their other and support that they require.

respon sibilities and dutles

Newly appointed pension board Should offer pre-appointment Code of Practrce (paragraph 56)
members should be aware that training or arrange for mentoring

their responsibilities and duties by existing pension board

as a pension board member begin  members

from the date they take up their

post.

Page 22 T [ '"-19—-0---



ANNEX A — KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS RESPONSIBILITIES

Nature of requirement

Where do knowledge and understanding responsibilities rest

under the Code of Practice No 14?

Pension board member Scheme manager

Should undertake a personal Code of Practice (paragraph 57)
training needs analysis and

regularly review their skills,

competencies and knowledge to

identify gaps or weaknesses.

Should use a personalised training Code of Practice (paragraph 57)
plan to document training needs.
Pension board members who take Code of Practice (paragraph 58)

on new responsibilities will need to
ensure that they gain appropriate
knowledge and understanding
relevant to carrying out those new
responsibilities.

Learning programmes should: Code of Practice (paragraph 58)

B cover the type and degree of
knowledge and understanding
required

B reflect the legal requirements

E Dbe delivered within an
appropriate timescale.

Demonstrating knowledge and understanding

Should keep appropriate records of Code of Practice (paragraph 59)
the learning activities of individual

pension board members and the

board as a whole.

Page 23



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

Page 24 192



Annex B — Suggested Job
Description and Role Profile for
the Chair of a Pensions Board

PURPOSE OF ROLE
To lead the pensions board in assisting the scheme manager in complying with legislation
relating to the governance and administration of the scheme and any requirements imposed

by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the scheme; and to ensure the effective and efficient
governance and administration of the scheme.

PRINCUTRL RESPONSIDILIEIES S

®m  Ensure the board delivers its purpose as set out in the board’s terms of reference.
m  Prepare for and attend the local pension board meetings, agree the meeting agendas and
approve the minutes.

®m  Scrutinise local pension board papers, lead discussions and provide advice and guidance
to the board.

®m  Ensure that meetings are productive and effective and that opportunity is provided for
the views of all board members to be expressed and considered.

Seek to reach consensus and ensure decisions are properly put to a vote.

®m  Liaise with the scheme manager on the requirements of the board, including training
requirements, budgeting and meeting dates, and lead on resolving member performance
issues.

m  Write reports required by the scheme manager on the performance of the board and
related matters.

®m  Act as the principal point of contact with the Pensions Regulator, the Scheme Advisory
Board and the responsible authority (eg DCLG) in all matters related to the operation of
the board.



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

PERSON SPECIFICATION

; Educatwn al Appropnate fmanual experience
and training.

Knowledge of pension funds and
schemes.

Demonstrable evidence of
knowledge kept up- to date

2. Work experience Chalrmg meetmgs ach1evmg effectwe Previously chaired a board or
outcomes. similar.

Experience of risk and performance

frameworks
3 Ablllttes mtelhgence Chairing SkﬂlS Mathemancal/statlstlcal
and special aptitudes  1pfluencing and consensus building. ~ literacy.
Listening skills. Knowledge of public sector and

Able to asszmﬂate complex mformatlon locel gevenImEnt inamee,

4. Adjustment and Able to establish good working Dlplomacg and tact
social skills relationships with board members,
councillors, officers and advisors.

Able to direct discussions in politically
sensitive environments.

Able to command respect and
demonstrate strong leadership.

Able to achieve consensus when
conflicting views arise.

Able to challenge in a constructive
manner.

Assertive in pursuing the correct course
of action.

Able to work effectively with colleagues
who may have different levels of
expenence and understandmg

5. Motivation Enthusiastic, not easily deterred and
able to convey enthusiasm to others.

Committed to the objectives of the
pension scheme and fund(s).

6 Equal opportumtles Understanding of and commitment
to promoting equality of opportunity
with an understanding of the pension
context



(@

Annex C — LGPS Governance
Regulations 2014

PART 3

Governance

Delegation
105.—(1) The Secretary of State may delegate any function under these Regulations.

(2) An administering authority may delegate any function under these Regulations
including this power to delegate.

Local pension boards: establishment

106.—(1) Each administering authority shall no later than 1st April 2015 establish a pension
board (“a local pension board”) responsible for assisting it—

(a) to secure compliance with—
(i these Regulations,

(ii) any other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the
Scheme and any connected scheme®, and

(iii) any requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the Scheme
and any connected scheme; and

(b) to ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the Scheme
and any connected scheme.

(2) Where the Scheme manager is a committee of a local authority the local pension board
may be the same committee if approval in writing has been obtained from the Secretary
of State.

(3) Where the administration and management of a Scheme is wholly or mainly shared by
two or more administering authorities, those administering authorities may establish a
joint local pension board if approval in writing has been obtained from the Secretary of
State.

(4) Approval under paragraphs (2) or (3) may be given subject to such conditions as the
Secretary of State thinks fit.

(5) The Secretary of State may withdraw an approval if any conditions under paragraph (4)
are not met or if in the opinion of the Secretary of State it is no longer appropriate for the
approval to continue.

See section 4(6) of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 for the definition of connected scheme.

195  page2r



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

(6)

(7)

(8

9)

Subject to paragraph (7), an administering authority may determine the procedures
applicable to a local pension board, including as to the establishment of sub-
committees, formation of joint committees and payment of expenses.

Except where a local pension board is a committee approved under paragraph (2), no
member of a local pension board shall have a right to vote on any question unless that
member is an employer representative or a member representative®.

A local pension board shall have the power to do anything which is calculated to
facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of any of its functions.

The expenses of a local pension board are to be regarded as part of the costs of
administration of the fund held by the administering authority.

Local pension boards: membership

107.—(1) Subject to this regulation each administering authority shall determine—

(2)

(3)

(4)

(a) the membership of the local pension board;

(b) the manner in which members of the local pension board may be appointed and
removed;

(c) the terms of appointment of members of the local pension board.

An administering authority must appoint to the local pension board an equal number,
which is no less than 4 in total, of employer representatives and member representatives
and for these purposes the administering authority must be satisfied that—

(a) a person to be appointed to the local pension board as an employer representative
has the capacity to represent employers; and

(b) a person to be appointed to the local pension board as a member representative has
the capacity to represent members.

Except where a local pension board is a committee approved under regulation 106(2)
(committee that is a Scheme manager is also local pension board)—

(a) no officer or elected member of an administering authority who is responsible for
the discharge of any function under these Regulations (apart from any function
relating to local pension boards or the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory
Board) may be a member of the local pension board of that authority; and

(b) any elected member of the administering authority who is a member of the local
pension board must be appointed as either an employer representative or a member
representative.

Where a local pension board is a committee approved under regulation 106(2)

(committee that is a Scheme manager is also local pension board) the administering
authority must designate an equal number which is no less than 4 in total of the
members of that committee as employer representatives and member representatives
and for these purposes the administering authority must be satisfied that—

(a) a person to be designated as an employer representative has the capacity to
represent employers; and

(b)  Seesection 5(6) of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 for definitions of these terms.

Page 28

196



ANNEX C - LGPS GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS 2014

(b) a person to be designated as a member representative has the capacity to represent
members.

Local pension boards: conflict of interest

108.—(1) Each administering authority must be satisfied that any person to be
appointed as a member of a local pension board does not have a conflict of interest®.

(2) An administering authority must be satisfied from time to time that none of the
members of a local pension board has a conflict of interest.

(3) A person who is to be appointed as a member of a local pension board by an
administering authority must provide that authority with such information as the
authority reasonably requires for the purposes of paragraph (1).

(4) A person who is a member of a local pension board must provide the administering
authority which made the appointment with such information as that authority
reasonably requires for the purposes of paragraph (2).

Local pension boards: guidance

109. An administering authority must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of
State in relation to local pension boards.

Source: The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2015

(a)  See section 5(5) of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 for the meaning of “conflict of interest”.

197 o | Page 29



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

Page 30 198



Annex D — Example of
Competency Self-assessment
Matrix




LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

"BLUBYIS 31 Jo SBupjiom 8yl 03 aie|al

UeWISpNQUIQ Suoisuad ayj pue adnlas filosipy

suoISUad ay3 ‘1o1enbay suoisuad syl ‘H10d sul

Gv ¢zl Joslamod pue sajol 3yl moy Jo buipuelisiapun uy

'Sd97 8yl 03 uonrelal u fiyloyine
SvEZl Buialsiuiuipe ayl Jo 210l sy jo abpajmouy

22ueWIAA0B SUOISUSd — 2
‘Sa[N1 BWBYIS BU] 0] saBuBYD
cHeZI 159121 ay] Jo uonewaldde parepdn fijtenbal y

‘siafedxe)

1e20] pue siafiojdwsa ‘puny uoisuad ayz uo syoedui

sa10110d AleU011813S1P BY1 JO UO1IR|NWLIOS 3y}

SHEZT MOY pUR SUO1131JSIP Sd9DT Jo uoljeldaldde uy

“JUDULISIAUL pUR
uoneLSILILLPE ‘S1yauaq 01 bulje)al sainjea; ulew

3y1 pue awayds ay1 03 dy1dads asuepinb Aioiniels

S¥egel pue uo1ir|siba] ayj Jo bulpueisiapun ||BISA0 UY

N Y3 Ul yiomawel) aane|siba)
s¥eel suoisuad ay3 jo buipueisiapun |elausb y

uolels163] Suolsuad — |
panis Ayby — g SR A
abpaymowy} ou - |

(buiwn pue mmo‘_somv..pm__n buiuery ; sjuawaiinbai buiuresy s1ms fiw ayey . ¢ ssassod [ oa

uejd pue ﬂ:mEm:_:cm: buiurery

sisfijeue spasu buiuieas

sjuawainnbai
Buiurey pue sishjeue spaau buiuiea Hjiomaweld s)IS pue abpajmou) |eI1UYID] Y :Spieog uolsuad |edo7

200

Page 32



‘paliodal
sHeEl ale MP] Ul Saydealg moy Jo buipueisiapun uy

‘pabeurewl pue umEEmEJ
GHczl  2lplsalaiul Jo S101ju0d moy Jo buipuelsiapun uy

‘pebeuewl pue palojuowt m,_.
Sy geg 1 MSuUluawabeurw puny uoisuad moy Jo abpajmouy

'S19P10US} RIS 2] 0] JURA3|3L SUO13dO JUSLLBAJOAUL
sygel pUB UO1IEIIUNLILLIOD ‘U01IRNSU0d Jo abpajmouy

'$3S21931UL 119y} JO a1njeu ay) pue
G+ €z 1 punjuoisuad ayl Jo sIaploysxels ayl Jo abpajpmouy

"S13quIaul pLeog uoisuad jo saipqisuodsal

ANNEX D — EXAMPLE OF COMPETENCY SELF-ASSESSMENT MATRIX

SHEZT pue saunp ay3 jo sbpajmowy paieisp v

- o . ‘aouepinb 30y70S pue E&u..wwmmwmmwmm

Gve2l pue sajdiound sisufip syl jo abpamouy

S R ||si5m_wwo
Builojuow pue 1ainseal) ayl Jo sauqisuodsal

SveZl fl101N121S pue )01 8Y] JO SSaUBLIEME UY

‘s19 mmqw..m.w..wcm Ewn,EmE aulayas
‘sanloyine buifojdwa ‘Aoyine bullsisiuwwipe

3] ‘puny ay3 01 UOLIR]3L Ul S2311LLLIOD puny

SvezZl uoisuad jo ajo1 ay1 jo Buipuelsiapun peolq ¥

(buiung pue sadinos) ueld buiuiel)

:m._n..wpm meEubscwh m.EEE 1 i

"31N30N14S AIURLLIA0D
B3 U1 S91pOQ 19410 UM S10RI3IUL 1 MOY pUue pieog

SveEzl f10SIApY aWayds ayl 40 2101 3y Jo abpamouy

pabys Ayby - g
abpajmowy| ou — 1

sjuswaiinbal bulurer] sjips Aw ayey ¢'ssassod [ oa
_..:..._.: m_.m.mﬂm.mmm&mmm_&mmd‘

Page 33

201



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

“UO1IRLISIULLLPE SL2UAQ 0] UO1IB]aL Ul SBaSI3A0
pue }n 2yl W wa1shs uoexel ay) Yynm sioelaiul
GvEZl puny uoisuad ayj moy Jo buipueisiepun Uy

“(s@ssadoud

3ouelnsse pue juawabeurw sauewioad

‘uo110913s sy ‘si1addns Aued piyl jo asn syl

‘31qeaidde ataym ‘burpnjpul) Ausanep pue fbajens

sveEzl uonensiuiwpe suoisuad ayj jo sbpajmouy

sveel ‘a1e1ado siamod Areuol}aidsip moy Jo abpaimouy

‘S|elId1ewWl pUR UO1IBIIUNWILIOD 3WAYDS m
UO013193]]02 SUOIINQUIU0D m
uolN|osal ayndsip |eulalul m

sassadold
Buideay-plodal pue sJuRUSIUIRWL BIRD JBqUIBW. m

:01 Buipejal saunpadold pue satdjod awayds

SveEzl paidope pue pannbal sy jo Buipueisispun
‘SaInseall
1500 pue adueulloiad Ba uoleSIUILLDE

SvEZ1 suoisuad w1 aonoeld 1seq Jo Buipuelsiapun uy

UOLJRAISIUIULPE SUOISUD — €
paiIvis Aubiy — Eoon
obpajmouy ou — T

(Burwn pue sa2inos) ueyd buiwies) ‘sjuswaiinbai bulures siipis Aiw agey ¢ 'ssassod [ og

ueld pue sjuswainbai buluier) sisfijeue spasu buiuiea

202

Page 34




ANNEX D - EXAMPLE OF COMPETENCY SELF-ASSESSMENT MATRIX

S%ecdl

‘suonyesuebio

pue siaew-uolsidap Ay Jo sajol aul pue
juswaindold Jgnd Jo 2dods pue sanjea ayl Jo
pue ‘saunpado.d pue fonod Juswainooid ognd
1Ua.LINd 031 punoibyoeq ayl jo buipueisiapun uy

juawabeurw diysuopelal pue Juawaindold sadlAIRS suolsuad — §

SYEL]T

) ‘“wau_yoa mucﬁz‘mmm.
fiyred puyy fig pafeld ajoL sy Jjo bulpuelsispun uy

SrEe 1

‘ssanoud
JDURINSSE pue 3JuewldAob ay) ul Jipne |eulaixa
pUB |BUISIUL 410q JO 3101 ay) jo Bulpueisiapun uy

S7ecl

S¥ELT

‘@o1308.d

Buizunoooe ledoid pue s|013U0D [RUIBIUL O3
Bune|al syjuswalinbal aallesiba) pue suolienbay
1PNy pUR S1UN022Y 3yl jo bulpurisiapun uy

spiepue}s bunipne pue FuuNoIIe SUoISUAd — ¥
S .ﬂcmc._.mm_“_m.p.i :.u:m h.ou.F u_rmmcum
juawhied ay) pue 1odal aouewiopad puny pue
JUBLLISAAUL S 19p1A0Ld DY) ‘S1aquUauL 0} PaIa40 aq
01 S1UBWLISBAUL JO 921042 3y} ‘SiuawabueLlie asoys
10 uonietado ay1 01 buneal sayddund ay) pue

151X8 sjuswabuelle JAY 1eym Jo Buipueisispun uy

(buiwy pue saounos) ueid buturery sjuswaennbai bulurely

ueld pue sjuswaiinbai fuiures h

pawis Alyby — g
abpajmouy ou - T

sipis fiw arey

¢ ssassod [ og

sisfijeue spasu buiutean

Page 35

203



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

‘awibal burlojiuoul
douewlioylad ay) Jo aimnjeu ay) pue wayl saiddns
v ezl oym ‘sadiaLes uoddns jo abuel ay) Jo ssaualemy

‘Aiyuoyine buueisiuwiwpe syl Aq pajdope
yoroidde ay) pue jusuwiabeuew sduewlopad
svezl o sajdiound s1sufip 8yl Jo ssaualeme Uy

“SHSLL
wiia1-buo) buissasse Jo sfem jo buipuelsiapun
peOIq B PUB SB131]1qRL) 3Y1 01 9AI1R]3L SUIN1L 19SSE

g% ¢z 1 buuonuouw jo aduenodun ayl jo buipueisiapun uy

JuswebeuRw }SI PUB 3IUBULI0}I3d JUSLIISIAU] — 9
o f.mkmnf.;oi wm&:oﬂ:.o.
119Y1 Jo aoueuiojlad ay) sebeuew pue siojuoul

s¥gel puny uoisuad ayl moy Jo buipueisiapun uy

‘sa1ped
piiyy Bunyos)as uaym s103ae) ysu bullapisuod Jo
aoueyiodwil 3y} Jo pue puny uoisuad ayjy 1oy sySIL

cveel 10 8do2s pue ainjeu ayj jo buipueisispun uy
‘uonjelsiba)

N3 pue yn 4o siuawainbal Juswainoold

Gvegzl agnd wew ay) jo Buipueisiapun |elsush y

(Buluwy pue sadinos) uejd buiurer)

sjuswannbai bulurery

uejd pue sjuawaiinbai buiurelr)

pajpis Auby — g
abpajmowy ou T

siis fiw azey ¢:ssassod 1 oa

sisfijeue spaau buiuies

204

Page 36




ANNEX D — EXAMPLE OF COMPETENCY SELF-ASSESSMENT MATRIX

'S]UBLUISIAUL 01 UOLIR]3.L Ul SBaSIano
pue )N ay3 ui waishs uonexel syl Yyim s1oeialul
sveel puny uoisuad ayl moy jo buipueisisapun uy

‘spuny ucisuad juswuisnob
12201 JO SIIIAIIIR JUBWLISAALL 2y} uo uotyenbal
SYEZT fiq paoeid siwy ay3 Jo Buipueisiepun uy

'$H)SLL pajeLdosse
a1 Jo ainjeu ay3 pue puny uoisuad ayl 01 a|qe|ieae

S3]21Y3A JUDLLIISAAUL 3] JO pUE S1ayiell |eldueuy

Sv ezl a1 Jo sbupjlom sy jo buipueisiapun peolq ¢

‘uoistaap fibaleals JuaLL}saAuL ayl
pue sajdiourid JUBLLLISIAUL JO JUBWBIR]S S,puny ayl
SvEZ1 Jo asuenodu Arewiud sy jo buipuelsispun uy

‘Buisaaul puny uoisuad wial-buoy ul
G4 €21 S95SP[D 1855e 9sayl Jo 30l ayl Jo buipueisispun uy

‘(918 Atadoud ‘spuoq
‘s3171Mba) Sa55B1D 19SSE UIRW 3y] JO SoisLelorleyd
S BRI WIN1a.l pue ysul ayl jo buipueisiapun uy

~ pauts Aybuy — &
abpajmouwy ou - 1

(buiwun) pue saainos) uejd buiuiel sjusawainnbai buiurery ~ subis fiw ey ¢ 'ssassod 1 o

ueld pue sjuawannbai buiurel) sisfijeue spasu buluiean

wmvﬂio:x mamivmi E“E mawxiE _m_u:m:_u_ -7

Page 37

205



LOCAL PENSION BOARDS: A TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK

S¥ect

‘s1ofojduwua puny ay) $5010€ JURUSAOD 8y}
10 sy1buanys aaze|al syl pue jueusaod 1shojduwa
3y1 Jo aoueplodun syl jo buipueisiapun |elauab v

SREel

‘S1ajsuely ng
pue sbu1dInosINo 01 UO1IB]AL Ul SUO1IRIBPISUOD
1uRA3]3L 3Y1 4o Bulpueisiapun jelausb v

E¥gel

‘s1afio)dws Buisixs Jo uo1LsSaD
3yl jo pue punj ayl ojui siafiojdwa mau buipnipul
10 suoneaydudl ay3 Jo buipuelsispun peolq y

S7ecl

'$1S00 UIR4)S JUBWaLIaL Y3jeay |1t pue fAjies
Buiionuow Jo aduelloduwll 8y} JO SSaUIRME Uy

SHETT

‘burlonuows

uonen|eA-131u1 pue ‘Arenioe puny ayl yum
uonaunfuod wi Aibalesns Buipuny ayy buidojaasp
Buipnjow ‘sseooud uorieniea ayy jo abpajmouy

SwEEl

‘Aienioe
puny ayi Jo ajo1 syl jo buipueisiapun jelausb y

s93130R1d pUE SPIEPUE]S ‘SPOYIALL [EHENIOY — 8

 paupisAubly—5

._m..mﬁm:so:x,”oc = ﬁ

(buiung pue saoinos) ueyd buiuer) sjuswanbas bupurer svys fiw ayey

dssassod [ oa

sisfijeue spaau buiuiea

206

Page 38



207



‘ I PFA The Chartered Institute of
Public Finance & Accountancy

Registered office:
77 Mansell Street, London E1 8AN
T: +44 (0)20 7543 5600 F: +44 (0)20 7543 5700
www.cipfa.org
CIPFA registered with the Charity Commissioners of England and Wales No 231060

-~
£

¢ ) INVESTORS
%, IN PEOPLE




e e
Barnett
CIPFA\ Waddingham

true partnership 1

CIPFA & Barnett Waddingham present their
2016/2017 LGPS Local Pension Boards & Officers
information updates, training & networking seminar
programmes

Following our successful Local Pension Boards One Year On event in June 2016, we
are pleased to present our 2016/2017 seminar programmes.
Dates, times & locations are overleaf.

Local Pension Board Programme

Our Local Pension Board seminars are exclusively for Board members and will provide the latest
information updates, training on specific topics and opportunities for discussion and networking
with members of other Funds' Boards.

Our seminars are designed as an opportunity for members of Local Boards to share experiences,
to receive updates, to enhance their knowledge, and to discuss the key issues facing them and
the LGPS in a professional but informal environment. As well as presentations, there will be
interactive sessions to facilitate discussion and networking as well as plenty of networking time
during the refreshment breaks.

Our seminars include:
e Anautumn and spring seminar, each repeated in various locations around the Country and
held in the afternoon and/or evening. The cost of each seminar place is £125 plus VAT and
is inclusive of refreshments.

e A full day Local Pension Boards Two Years On event in central London, including speakers
from key players who will affect Board agendas in the year ahead. The cost of each seminar
place is £175 plus VAT and is inclusive of refreshments.

Officers Programme

Our Officer autumn and spring seminars are exclusively for officers and will enable them to
receive the same latest information updates as the Board members, and updates & training on
specific topics and will provide opportunities for discussion and networking with officers from
other Funds.

They will run in a similar way to the Board member sessions and be held in the morning. The cost
of each seminar place is £125 plus VAT and is inclusive of refreshments.

Further details and booking

Full agendas will be provided prior to each event. For further information please contact:
annemarie.allen@barnett-waddingham.co.uk or neil.sellstrom@cipfa.org

To book your place, go to http://www.cipfa.org/training , enter the course date in the To box, click Go and
find your event below

We reserve the right to alter the =-~~-a1mme where circumstances require.



Local Pension Board and Officer Seminar Programmes 2016/2017

Autumn Seminar - London, Cheltenham, Liverpool, Cardiff

Officers

21 October 2016 9:30am to 12:30pm
London Cheapside House, 138 Cheapside, EC2V 6BW

25 October 2016 9:30am to 12:30pm
Cheltenham St James House, St James Square,
GL50 3PR

26 October 2016 9:30am to 12:30pm
Liverpool Port of Liverpool Building, Pier Head,
L3 1BW

Local Pension Board Members

25 October 2016 1:30pm to 4:30pm
Cheltenham St James House, St James Square,
GL50 3PR

26 October 2016 1:30pm to 4:30pm
Liverpool Port of Liverpool Building, Pier Head,
L3 1BW

8 November 2016 1:30pm to 4:30pm
London Cheapside House, 138 Cheapside, EC2V 6BW

8 November 2016 - 5:30pm to 8:30pm
London Cheapside House, 138 Cheapside, EC2V 6BW

14 November 2016 - 9:30am to 12:30pm
Cardiff Committee Room 2, County Hall, Atlantic
Wharf, CF10 4UW

Spring Seminar — London, Leeds, Bromsgrove

Officers

27 February 2017  9:30am to 12:30pm
London Cheapside House, 138 Cheapside, EC2V 6BW

1 March 2017 9:30am to 12:30pm
Leeds Pinnacle, 67 Albion Street, LS1 5AA

2 March 2017 9:30am to 12:30pm
Bromsgrove Silver Springs House, 2 Topaz Way,
Birmingham Road, B61 0GD

Local Pension Board Members

27 February 2017  1:30pm to 4:30pm
London Cheapside House, 138 Cheapside, EC2V 6BW

27 February 2017  5:30pm to 8:30pm
London Cheapside House, 138 Cheapside, EC2V 6BW

1 March 2017 1:30pm to 4:30pm
Leeds Pinnacle, 67 Albion Street, LS1 5AA

2 March 2017 1:30pm to 4:30pm
Bromsgrove Silver Springs House, 2 Topaz Way,
Birmingham Road, B61 0GD

Local Pension Boards Two Years On, annual event for Pension Board Members

28 June 2017, 9:30am to 4pm
London Cheapside House, 138 Cheapside, EC2V 6BW

Booking

To _book_your place, go to http://www.cipfa.org/training , enter the course date in the To box, click Go and

find your event below

210

V1



Agenda Item 18
Pages 211 to 214

PENSION BOARD

Date of Meeting:

Subject:

Responsible Officer:

Exempt:

Wards affected:

Enclosures:

2 November 2016

Information Report — Work Programme
2016-17

Dawn Calvert, Director of Finance

No

All

None

Section 1 - Summary

This report invites the Board to comment on a suggested work programme up
to the end of the 2016-17 financial year.

For Information

LONDON

( ﬁé/?/‘fﬂaCDUNCIL )
211



Section 2 - Report

1. At its meeting on 22 March 2016 the Board asked for a work programme
to be suggested for its consideration. Below is a programme for the
remainder of the financial year on which the Board’s comments are
invited.

22 November 2016 — Pension Fund Committee

All members of the Board are invited to attend the training session/discussion
on the triennial valuation starting at 17.30 and the Committee at 18.30.

7 March 2017 — Pension Fund Committee

All members of the Board are invited to attend the training session starting at
17.30 and the Committee at 18.30.

Spring 2017 — Pension Board

Results of triennial valuation

Funding Strategy Statement

Long term cashflow and funding

Investment Strategy Statement

Governance Compliance Statement
Communications Policy Statement

Latest Pension Fund Committee Meeting
Pensions Administration — Performance monitoring
Review of Internal Controls at fund managers
Risk register

External audit plan

Training programme 2017-18

Environmental, Social and Governance Issues

Financial Implications
2. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.
Risk Management Implications

3. The Pension Fund has its own risk register .which covers all risks which
might arise from this report.

Equalities implications

4. There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.

212



Council Priorities
5. Whilst the financial health of the Pension Fund and the employer’s

contribution affects the resources available for the Council’s priorities
there are no impacts arising directly from this report.

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

Name: Dawn Calvert V] Director of Finance

Date: 20 October 2016

Ward Councillors notified: Not applicable as the
report is relevant to all
wards.

Section 4 - Contact Details

Contact: lan Talbot, Treasury and Pension Fund Manager
0208 424 1450

Background Papers - None

213




This page is intentionally left blank

214



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Information Report - Actuarial Valuation 2016
	Information Report - Actuarial Valuation - Appendix

	8 Information Report - London Borough of Harrow Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2016
	Annual Report - Appendix - Annual Audit Letter 2015-16
	Annual Report - 2

	9 Information Report - Status of Pension Board/ Insurance Arrangements
	Status of Pension Board - Appendix

	10 London Borough of Harrow Pension Board: Draft Annual Report to Council 2016
	2 2 Report to Council FINAL

	11 Review of Terms of Reference
	12 1 Pension Board Terms of Reference - Appendix 26 March 2014

	12 Information Report - The Local Government Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016
	Information Report Œ The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 - Appendix

	13 Information Report - Statement of Investment Principles/Investment Strategy Statement
	Information Report Œ Statement of Investment Principles  Investment Strategy Statement - appendix

	14 Information Report - Pension Fund Committee Meetings: 21 June 2016 and 6 September 2016
	Appendix 1- Pension Fund Committee Minutes 21 June 2016
	Appendis 2 - Pension Fund Committee Minutes - 6 September 2016

	15 Information Report - Performance Monitoring
	16 Information Report - Compliance with The Pensions Regulator Code of Practice
	Copy of 5 1 TPR Code of Practice

	17 Information Report - Knowledge and Understanding of Local Government Pension Scheme
	Knowledge and Understanding - 1
	Knowledge and Understanding - 2

	18 Information Report - Work Programme 2016-17

